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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Main Income Statement Data

€ mio

2015 2016 2017 2018 (1) 2019

Net Consolidated Revenues @ 3,524.8 3,667.0 3,550.1 3,401.5 2,925.7
Italy 2,554.2 2,675.9 2,555.3 2,421.4 1,982.1
Spain 971.9 992.0 996.3 981.6 946.2
Operating Result (EBIT)® 230.7 (189.3) 226.4 73.7 354.6
Italy 26.1 (413.7) (19.1) (182.9) 91.3
spain 205.2 224.4 245.3 256.9 264.9

EBT @ 196.5 (274.5) 219.9 64.0 381.7
Net Result © 3.8 (294.5) 90.5 468.2 190.3

Main Balance Sheet and Financial

Data
2015 2016 2017 2018 (1)
Net Invested Capital @ 3,806.8 3,698.3 3,774.6 3,589.6
Total Net Shareholders' Equity 2,947.4 2,535.9 2,382.5 2,853.1
Net Group shareholders' Equity 2,293.8 1,947.7 1,916.6 2,409.4
Minorities Shareholders' Equity 653.6 588.2 465.9 443.7
Net Financial Position @ (859.4) (1,162.4) (1,392.2) (736.4)
Operating Cash Flow @ 1,282.3 1,140.7 1,189.9 1,026.1
Investments @ 741.8 710.4 612.0 618.0
Dividends paid by the Parent Company 22.7 22.7 - _
Dividends paid by Subsidiares 44.2 83.3 87.5 95.6
Personnel ®
2015 2016 2017 2018
Mediaset Group Personnel (headcount) 5,484 5,519 5,470 4,760
Italy 4,210 4,245 4,197 3,502 _
Spain 1,274 1,274 1,273 1,258 _
Mediaset Group Personnel (average) 5,680 5,660 5,019 5,004
Italy 4,402 4,385 3,739 3,737
Spain 1,278 1,275 1,280 1,267
Main Indicators
2015 2016 2017 (2) 2018 (1)
Operating Result (EBIT)/Net Revenues 6.6% n.a. 6.4% 2.2%
Italy 1.0% n.a. -0.7% -7.6%
Spain 21.1% 22.6% 24.6% 26.2%
EBT/Net Revenues 5.6% n.a. 6.2% 2.0%
Net Result/Net Revenues 0.1% n.a. 2.6% 13.9%
ROl ) 4.4% n.a. 3.9% 1.3%
ROE 1) 0.1% n.a. 4.7% 19.5%
Number of shares (8) 1,136,402,064 1,136,402,064 1,136,402,064 1,137,142,325
EPS (euro) 0.00 n.a. 0.08 0.41
Dividend per share (euro) 0.02 - - _

(1) 2018 net profit and balance sheet values restated to retroactively acknowledge the impacts on associates equity investment results deriving from
their goodwill purchase price allocation process

(2) Figures from 2017 restated in accordance with IFRS 5 (discontinued operations)

(3) The figures refer to average economic results, as well as balance sheet and financial data. The recognition criteria (pursuant to CONSOB Resolution
No. 6064293 of 28 July 2006 and the CESR Recommendation of 3 November 2005 concerning non GAAP measures) are described in the Directors’
Report on Operations.

(4) Net profit/(loss) from continuing and discontinued operations
(5) Includes temporary and permanent workforce

(6) Group Operating Result (EBIT) / Average Net Capital Invested
(7) Group Net Profit/(Loss) / Group Average Net Equity

(8) Spot date at 31/12 net of treasury shares.




DIRECTORS' REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Dear Shareholders,

In the year ended, in an increasingly dynamic and complex competitive scenario and against a backdrop
of continued uncertainty and ever acuter weaknesses in both reference markets caused by political
instability, the Mediaset Group has consistently performed in line with the strategical pathway set forth
in Mediaset's 2020 Plan, with a focus on monitoring and strengthening its model as a commercial
television broadcaster as it moves forward into a new digital landscape by developing an increased
effectiveness that will help us achieve strong results in our core Italian operations.

Despite the underperformance of the advertising markets in Italy and Spain, our Group has managed to
hold onto and protect our market shares by continuing to invest in our product and in technological
innovation to ensure we have the widest possible reach among our main advertising audiences. Our high
viewership figures are a reward for the quantity and quality of our broadcasting content, both with our
conventional linear services provided on our generalist channels and on our vast range of free-to-air and
pay thematic channels - as well as across our varied series of radio stations in Italy - and with our digital
on-demand service, which allows unrivalled and original content to be streamed online or via the app on
smartphones, tablets, games consoles and smart TVs.

Our Group has also launched an ambitious international development drive by acquiring a 15.1% equity
stake in leading German broadcaster ProsiebenSatl and starting up the MFE-MediaForEurope
broadcasting scheme, which is due to be delivered behind schedule in 2020 due to the legal actions and
proceedings brought by Vivendi. MFE will be the first step towards widespread pan-European
integration, aimed at enabling more efficient operating models to be adopted to sustain investments in
further enhancing the core activities of all Group broadcasters.

By pursuing this strategy, and in spite of the lower advertising revenues, we have managed to record a
greater year-on-year profit and cash flow, in line with the budget forecast, as we have softened the like-
for-like impacts on Operating Result (EBIT) of the 2018 pay asset write-downs of EUR 162.7 million,
while also softening the impact on Net Profit/(Loss) of the EUR 498.2 net capital gain achieved in 2018
following the deconsolidation of EI Towers. These outcomes have enabled the Group to retain renewed
optimism for 2020, despite the still-uncertain economic climate, which has been aggravated in recent
weeks by fears of further unanticipated slowdowns linked to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) health crisis,
which the Group is promptly acting to tackle.

The consolidated financial results for the year are summarised below:

= Consolidated net revenues amounted to EUR 2,925.7 million (-14.0% compared to the previous
year's figure of EUR 3,401.5 million).

= Operating Result (EBIT) was +EUR 354.6 million, compared to the +EUR 73.7 million recorded in
the previous year; consolidated operating profit was 12.1%. If we exclude the impact in the last two
years of the write-downs and provisioning of pay assets carried out following the recoverability
testing conducted at the end of the previous year, Operating Result (EBIT) would amount to EUR
303.2 million, compared to the figure of EUR 236.5 million in 2018.

= The Group's net profit was EUR 190.3 million, compared to the EUR 468.2 million recorded in
2018. It should be noted that the Consolidated Net Profit/(Loss) for 2018 has been restated (to the
EUR 471.3 million previously reported) to show the retrospective impact (since 1 October 2018) on
profits of the depreciation of the assets identified in accordance with IFRS 3, due to the -EUR 3.0
million allocation of goodwill generated following the closing of 2i Towers Holding's takeover bid of
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El Towers, launched in 2018. This valuation process had a -EUR 12.1 million impact on Mediaset's
consolidated net profit for 2019. Calculated net of those components, of the net capital gain
generated by the sale of EI Towers equal to EUR 498.2 million in 2018, of the takeover bid-related
costs reflected in the profit/loss of the subsidiary 2iTowers in 2018, and of the net impacts of the
write-downs of pay assets recognised in 2018, the net profit would amount to EUR 167.3 million,
up from EUR 97.4 million the previous year.

The net financial position, calculated in accordance with Consob Communication 6064293 of 28
July 2016, shows consolidated net financial debt of EUR 1,348.3 million. If we exclude the
liabilities recognised under IFRS 16 from 2019 onwards and the financial payable for the equity
investment in ProsiebenSat.1 Media SE, consolidated net financial debt was EUR 768.8 million
compared to EUR 736.4 million on 31 December 2018. The core cash flow in Italy and Spain was
positive at EUR 263.5 million, a clear improvement on the EUR 211.7 million recorded in 2018.

At 31 December 2019 the workforce of the Mediaset Group companies in the consolidation area
totalled 4,984 employees (4,760 at 31 December 2018), with this increase due to the change in
Mediaset Espafia’s consolidation area in 2019 following the acquisition of a controlling interest in

El-Desmarque and other companies in which it had previously held a significant interest.

The parent company Mediaset S.p.A. closed the year ending 31 December 2019 with a net profit
of EUR 126.0 million, compared to the profit of EUR 111.8 million recorded in 2018.

In Italy:

Consolidated net revenues from the Group's Italian operations amounted to EUR 1,982.1 million,
down -18.1% compared to 2018. This figure mainly reflects the reduction in Premium-specific
revenues due to the discontinuation on terrestrial television of football content during the second
half of the year and of Premium Cinema and Series content from June 2019.

Gross advertising revenues, including free and pay-TV channels and the Group's share of website
revenues, and revenues from proprietary radio broadcasters managed under a sublicense from
Mediamond, amounted to EUR 1,939.0 million in 2019, down 8.2% compared to 2018. If we
compare like for like, by excluding the impacts of programming discontinued since 2018 - namely
the Pay Calcio service, the 2018 FIFA World Cup (broadcast exclusively by Mediaset) and free-to-air
UEFA Champions League matches (broadcast exclusively by Mediaset in the first half of 2018) -
then the loss in Mediaset's television advertising revenues is limited to -3.6%, compared to the -4.3%
like-for-like figure of the market overall (by excluding the impact of the FIFA World Cup). Based on
Nielsen data, in 2019 the overall conventional advertising market contracted by 5.1% compared to
2018.

In 2019 the total audience over the 24-hour period was 9,859,000 viewers on average, which was
slightly down on 2018. Mediaset channels maintained their leadership with the commercial target
audience with a 34.0% share over the 24-hour period, a 35.1% share of the early evening share and
a 33.8% share of the daytime slot. Canale 5 was the most watched Italian channel among the
commercial target audience across all time slots.

Other revenues from television operations amounted to EUR 317.1 million, compared to the EUR
610.3 million for the same period the previous year. Net of the core revenues from Mediaset
Premium programming that was discontinued in June 2019, other revenues as a whole increased
by EUR 34.4 million, mainly driven by the proceeds ensuing from the commercial agreements
entered into with Sky in the first quarter of the financial year for the sub-licensing of free and pay-
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TV channels and for the use of the Premium technological platform, and from other agreements
entered into with other parties for the sub-licensing of content.

As a whole, Operating Result (EBIT) for total Italian operations was EUR 91.3 million, which
compares favourably against the -EUR 182.9 million loss posted in the previous year, which
reflected the EUR 162.7 million in write-downs of pay television rights. Total costs (personnel
expenses, purchasing and service costs and other expenses, amortisation of broadcasting rights
and other fixed assets, excluding the impact of the pay asset write-downs for both years) were
reduced by 20.6%, mainly due to the termination of long-term contracts for Premium Calcio content
that were still active in the first half of 2018.

Net profit EUR 76.3 million (compared to EUR 364.8 million in 2018).

In Spain:

The consolidated net revenues of the Mediaset Espafia Group amounted to EUR 946.2 million, a
decrease of -3.6% compared to 2018.

Gross advertising revenues amounted to EUR 916.5 million, a decrease of -4.9% compared to
2018. Mediaset Espafia maintained its leadership in its television market with a share of 43.4%, thus
consolidating its position of leadership built up over the past few years, by diversifying and
launching innovative publications and advertising products. Based on Infoadex data, conventional
advertising investments in Spain decreased by -5.8% in 2019.

In 2019, the total free-to-air television offer of the Mediaset Espafia Group, including not only the
general-interest channels Telecinco and Cuatro but also the special-interest channels Factoria De
Ficcion, Boing, Divinity, Energy and Be Mad (HD channel), obtained on average audience share out
of total viewers, over the 24-hour period, of 28.9% and 30.7% among the commercial target
audience.

The total costs (personnel costs, other operating costs, amortisation and depreciation) were EUR -
681.3 million, a reduction of -6.0% compared to the same period in the previous year.

Operating Result (EBIT) amounted to EUR 264.9 million, compared to the EUR 256.9 million
recorded in 2018. This corresponds to an operating profit of 28.0% compared to the 26.2% of the
previous year.

Net profit came to EUR 211.7 million compared to EUR 200.3 million for the previous year.




GENERAL ECONOMIC TRENDS

With GDP growth of +2.9% in 2019, the global economy grew more slowly than the previous year
(+3.6%).

The risks associated with escalating geopolitical tensions, tariff conflicts and Brexit negatively affected
global growth, as investment, industrial production and world trade were curbed. The final months of
2019 brought a reduction in the risks associated with tariff conflicts and the United Kingdom's
departure from the EU, while also bringing an overall aggravation of geopolitical tensions, in particular
between the United States and Iran.

Against this backdrop, all leading central banks stated a desire to adopt or continue to deploy expansive
monetary policies. As expected, in 2019 the Federal Reserve cut the federal funds rate by 75 basis
points to a range of 1.50%-1.75%. Meeting on 12 December 2019, the Governing Council of the ECB
confirmed that official rates would remain at their present or lower levels until it has seen the inflation
outlook robustly converge to a level close to 2%.

Emerging markets continued to drive the global economy, albeit with a general slowdown and the
continued risk of lower-than-expected growth in China.

At the year-end, the United States recorded GDP of +2.3% in 2019 thanks to the stimulating effect of

private consumption, has had previously occurred in 2018.

The eurozone economy continued to experience reduced growth, with estimated GDP growth of around
+0.9%; also in 2019, the eurozone suffered a worsening of business expectations and an enduringly
weak manufacturing sector. The economy was supported by domestic demand, which was positively

influenced by a well-performing labour market.

The slackening of industrial production (especially in the automotive sector) affected Germany in
particular, although the trend in the latter part of 2019 was better than expected; GDP growth stood at
around +0.5%, which was down sharply compared to the previous two years.

The Italian economy was characterised by weak growth in productivity during 2019, with a +0.2%
change in GDP; in the second half of 2019 in particular, the increase in GDP was underpinned by a
positive trend in domestic demand, which was in turn driven by the recovery in private consumption,
which recorded year-on-year growth of +0.5%. Household spending was more dynamic in the purchase
of durable goods (estimate of +3.1%), with more restricted growth for non-durable; spending on services

was also less dynamic.

The labour market has seen an improved trend, with growth of people in employment and a decrease in
the unemployment rate to 9.8%, which nevertheless remains among the highest in Europe. Foreign
trade trended positively, both for goods and services. By December, year-on-year growth was +4.2%,
mainly due to the effect of sales to non-EU countries, whereas imports showed a declining trend, at -
2.2%.

In Spain, GDP grew by 1.9% in 2019, a figure slightly down on the previous year. This included final-
quarter growth of 0.4 percentage points, which was stable compared to 2018, albeit with less dynamic

activity in terms of internal demand.
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DEVELOPMENTS IN TELEVISION-SECTOR LEGISLATION

Refarming of the 700 MHz band

The Budget Law 2018 (Law No. 205/2017 of 27 December 2017) identified steps and procedures for
transitioning to 5G technology as outlined in the Action Plan of the European Commission (COM-2016
588 final and Decision (EU) 2017/899 of the European Parliament and of the Council).

Among other things, the Law sets forth that rights of use over the 700 MHz (from 694 to 790 MHz)
band, currently used for digital terrestrial television broadcasts, are to be re-modulated and intended
for 5G broadband electronic communications services. To this end, television broadcasts on the 700
MHz band must end by 30 June 2022.

On 27 September 2018, the TV 4.0 Coordination Table - which brings together representatives of the
competent broadcasting institutions, television operators and trade associations - was set up at the
Ministry of Economic Development with the aim of introducing the legislative amendments necessary to
be included in the imminent budget law and of coordinating activities concerning the release if the 700
MHz band.

The recent Budget Law 2019 (Act No. 145/2018) introduced a series of innovations for the refarming
of the 700 MHz band.

The main changes include the abolition of the requirement for one-third of transmission capacity to be
in the hands of local broadcasters, leading to an increase in the number of networks allocated to
nationwide network operators from 10 to 12 (out of a total of 14). The two new networks deriving from
this abolition will be allocated by means of a no-raise competitive economic tendering procedure, with
the frequencies divided into four lots equal to half of one multiplex, whereby the criteria and tender
principles will be favourable to current corporation-sized nationwide network operators.

In the meantime, the Authority has launched the new procedure for issuing definitive securities, by
means of Resolution 39/19/CONS of 7 February of last year, which provides an update of the National
Frequency Allocation Plan in which 12 nationwide networks have been planned.

On 19 April 2019, Resolution No. 129/19/CONS on the Definition of criteria for converting rights of use
to domestic digital terrestrial service frequencies into rights of use to broadcasting capacity and for the
domestic allocation of rights of use to the frequencies under the Italian Frequency Allocation Plan
(PNAF), and Resolution 128/19/CONS on the Commencement of the procedure to define the steps for
allocating further domestic broadcasting capacity and terrestrial frequencies, were published on the
AGCOM website.

On 5 August 2019, the Ministry granted rights of use for the first 10 national channels, allocating
Elettronica Industriale two rights of use for national network frequencies No. 1 and 9, and one right of

use for half of a multiplex, with no frequencies specified.

On 28 November 2019, the Ministry updated the Road Map by stipulating the dates for the staged
phase-one switch-off. 1 January 2020 for the areas of Oristano and Sassari.

Finally, AGCOM must establish the procedures for tendering 4 multiplex vehicles, which must be called
by the Ministry. Elettronica Industriale may take part in the tender and acquire a further multiplex

vehicle, in addition to the 2.5 already allocated.

As regards the EUR 762 million total financing available for the refarming of the 700 MHz band under
the Budget Law, EUR 272 million are allocated to the costs of upgrading transmission facilities, EUR

151 million are allocated as a contribution towards the purchase of new TV sets (of which 25 for 2019,
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76 for 2020 and 25 for each of 2021 and 2022) and EUR 66 million are allocated for miscellaneous
purposes including public information.

Programming and Investments in European Productions

On 6 August 2019, Italian lawmakers passed Act No. 81/2019 (as converted, with modifications, from
Decree-Act No. 59/2019 of 28 June 2019, containing urgent measures regarding the personnel of
symphonic and opera foundations, supporting the cinema and audiovisual sector and funding for the
activities of the Ministry of Cultural Heritage and Activities and for the holding of UEFA Euro 2020),
which again affected investment and programming investment quotas and scheduling of European
audiovisual productions by television broadcasters, thus amending the “Franceschini Decree".

Therefore, linear programming quotas for European productions by broadcasters were brought under a
limit of 50% of airtime; from 1 January 2020, those same broadcasters must keep a 10% quota for
original Italian productions, with this quota being increased to 17% in 2021 and thereafter.

As regards quotas for investment in independently-produced European productions were increased from
their current level of 10% of the editor’s revenues, net of revenues from pay-tv sports programming, to
11.5% for 2020 July and to 12.5% for 2021 and subsequent years.

Furthermore, a quota was set to invest 5.8% of revenues in recent original Italian drama productions by
independent producers in 2020 and 6.3% for the following years, as well as a quota to invest 3.5% of
revenues in recent original Italian cinema productions by independent producers in 2020 and
thereafter.

Finally, a more restrictive and thorough system has been established for non-linear services.

Gambling Advertising with Cash Prizes

Italian Decree-Act No. 87/2018 of 2 July 2018, "Urgent provisions concerning the dignity of workers
and enterprises" (also known as the Dignity Decree) has implemented some measures to combat
gambling addiction, including a specific provision concerning a “Ban on gambling and betting
advertising” in Art. 8.

This article bans any form of direct or indirect advertising relating to gambling or betting with cash
prizes, irrespective of the advertising vehicle, which shall include sporting, cultural and artistic events,
television and radio broadcasting, daily and periodical newspapers, publications generally, billboards

and online advertising.

Advertising agreements will be exempt from this ban when their execution is already underway as of the
date on which the Decree comes into force (14 July 2018), until 14 July 2019.

The Decree provides for a very severe penalisation mechanism, with failure to comply with its provisions
giving rise to a fine payable by the customer and the owner of the vehicle of a sum equal to 5% of the
value of the advertising; this fine will always be at least EUR 50,000 for each instance of non-

compliance. Agcom is responsible for supervising compliance and imposing penalties.

With Resolution No. 132/19/Cons, published on 26 April 2019, Agcom adopted the Guidelines on the
implementation methods of Article 9 of Decree-law 87/2018 of 12 July 2018, containing "Urgent
provisions for the dignity of workers and businesses", following the December 2018 consultation
(Resolution 579/18/Cons - Questionnaire on the implementation methods of Article 9 of Decree-Law
87/2018 of 12 July 2018) in which Mediaset was a participant.
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AGCOM PROCEDURES
Advertising - Radio Self-Advertising

In January 2018, AGCOM ordered R.T.I. to stop the self-promotion on television channels of our radio
programmes, a practice that it is has legitimately adopted since March 2016. The Authority's stance,
which is currently directed at our broadcasters only, prohibits cross-platform advertising beyond the
crowding limits, which is a widespread physiological practice carried out by the various publishing
groups operating in the Italian television market.

These resolutions were promptly appealed and an application for interim relief was filed by R.T.l. with
the competent administrative judge. The matter was discussed in the Council Chamber on 7 February
2018. On the outcome, the Regional Administrative Court set the public hearing concerning the appeals
for 28 November 2018.

On 16 April 2019, the three judgments of the Regional Administrative Court were published, dismissing
the three appeals against AGCOM's cautionary resolutions against the television advertisements of the

Group's radio stations; appeals have been filed with the Council of State against the judgments.

R.T.l. promptly took it upon itself to bring its conduct in line with the new stance of AGCOM outlined in
the above mentioned resolutions. Specifically, R.T.l. began to bring its conduct into line on 7 February
2018 (in the absence of a deadline set by the resolutions themselves), thus complying with the time
limits for processing the application for interim relief. Nevertheless, in April 2018 AGCOM challenged
Italial, Canale5 and Rete4 with regard to their advertising overcrowding during the months of January
and February 2018 (despite the Council Chamber having met after those dates) for the tally of the
Group's radio self-advertising spots (Radio 105).

In November 2018, AGCOM brought the proceedings to an end, imposing penalties of EUR 20,658 to
Canale5, EUR 20,658 to Italial and EUR 20,658 to Rete4.

All penalties were appealed with the Regional Administrative Court (TAR) in January 2019.

Child Protection

In 2019, AGCOM did not initiate any child protection proceedings under section 34 of the Consolidated
Audiovisual Media Services Act.

In April 2019, an appeal was filed with the Regional Administrative Court (TAR) against the penalties
imposed by AGCOM in 2019 for the broadcasting of content unsuitable for underage viewers during
“Grande Fratello 15".
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MEDIASET SHARES

Stock market performance

In 2019, the performance of the Italian financial market was influenced by events inside and outside the
country. In particular, domestic political uncertainty and the growth in political and economic tensions
globally brought moderate volatility. In the first half of the year, the growing tensions within the
majority government coalition, which resulted in a reshuffle of the governing parties, caused a high level
of uncertainty and led investors to become increasingly cautious of exposing their portfolios to the
Italian market. The formation of the new government in September was welcomed, but international
analysts nevertheless remained cautious as they awaited the outcomes of certain institutional stress
tests (e.g. the looming shadow of electoral and constitutional referenda). Internationally, market
volatility and uncertainty was caused by the stepping-up of the trade war and spiralling protectionist
measures between the USA and China, the slowdown of economic growth in China, the uncertainty
surrounding Brexit and the slowdown of the German economy. On the other hand, In the fourth quarter
Italian stock market indices benefitted from the quantitative easing programme rolled out by the ECB at
the year-end.

The FTSE MIB closed the year positively at +28.23%. In 2019, the index recorded a minimum of
18,218.40 on 3 January and peaked at 24,003.64 on 20 December, averaging 21,399.32 for the year.

Mediaset shares experienced a similar trend to those of other European broadcasters over the year,
with peaks linked to the announcement of the MEDIAFOREUROPE deal and the expectations among
market forces that the deal would be closied.

The European-wide trend in the industry was relatively stable during the first half of 2019, with a
downwards correction beginning in the summer months as advertising revenue forecasts were revised

downwards in major European markets.

The shares most affected by this derating were Atresmedia (-19.26%), which also suffered from
domestic political instability in Spain during the second half of the year, and Prosieben (-7.61%).
Mediaset Espafia’s shares also reacted negatively, albeit more restrainedly so (-0.21%) due to the
expectations surrounding the closing of the MEDIAFOREUROPE deal. There was growth for TF1
(+7.02%), which benefited from the positive forecasts on the French advertising market, and ITV
(+28.02%), thanks to a reduction in Brexit-related uncertainty. On the other hand, Mediaset reined in its
negative share performance to -5.51% at the close of 2019.

In 2019, Mediaset's average share price was EUR 2.8, with a low of EUR 2.6 recorded on 8 February
and a high of EUR 3.0 recorded on 20 June.
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Mediaset share price 2019 2018 2017
Maximum Price (EUR) 3.0 3.4 4.4
20th June 7th May 11st January
Minimum Price (EUR) 2.6 2.5 2.9
8th February 6th September 10th November
Opening Price 1/1 (EUR) 2.8 3.2 4.2
Closing Price 31/12 (EUR) 2.7 2.7 3.2
Average Volume (m) 12.6 4.3 5.2
Maximum Volume (m) 12.6 30.8 29.0
20th August 3th April 10th October
Minimum Volume (m) 0.5 0.9 1.4
27th December 3th September 25th August
Number of ordinary shares (m) * 1,137.1 1,137.1 1,136.4
Capitalisation 31/12 (EUR m) * 3,024.8 3,120.3 3,670.6
* own share not included
Mediaset versus Euro Stoxx Media Index (2019)
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND KEY CORPORATE TRANSACTION
FOR THE YEAR

On 22 January 2019, AGCOM (the Italian Media Authority) authorised the transfer of a controlling
interest in the company R2 Srl from Mediaset Premium S.p.A. to Sky Holding S.p.A., which occurred on
30 November 2018. On 8 March 2019, AGCOM notified the parties that an investigation had been
opened into this transaction. Following the developments in this investigation, which considered it
improbable that the Authority would grant its unconditional authorisation to the transaction, and in
accordance with the provisions of the sale agreements, on 12 April 2019 Mediaset and Sky Italia agreed
and executed the re-transfer of R2 to R.T.I.

In January 2019, Mediaset repaid the EUR 375 million corporate bond and during the subsequent
months proceeded to consolidate and prolong committed lines of credit by entering into new loans with
four and five-year maturity periods, for a total amount of EUR 350 million.

On 24 January 2019, the Board of Directors of the subsidiary Mediaset Espafa authorised the
commencement of a share buy-back plan up to a maximum of 9.9% of share capital, with the total
maximum disbursement limited to a maximum of EUR 200 million, to be concluded by 20 February
2020. On 5 June 2019, as part of the launch of the cross-border merger project announced on 7 June
2019 for the merger takeover of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia by Mediaset Investment N.V, as
described below. This scheme was terminated and 14,419,910 sales were purchased, constituting a
4.4% shareholding, against a total disbursement of EUR 94.6 million.

On 6 March 2019, Mediaset Espafia acquired a 60% stake in the share capital of EI Desmarque Portal
Deportivo SL, the parent company of sports news and content website EI Desmarque. During the first
guarter of 2019, Mediaset Espafia also increased its shareholdings in Megamedia Television S.A. (from
30% to 65%) and Supersport Television SL (from 30% to 62.5%).

On 26 March 2019, a deed was signed for the merger takeover of subsidiary Mediaset Premium S.p.A.
by R.T.Il. S.p.A., taking legal effect on 1 April 2019, and took effect for tax and accounting purposes
from 1 January 2019.

On 28 March 2019, a deed was signed for the reverse merger takeover of 2i Towers Holding S.p.A. (in
which Mediaset held a 40% stake) and 2i Towers S.p.A. by the subsidiary El Towers S.p.A., on which date
the merger took effect for legal, tax and accounting purposes. Following this transaction, Mediaset holds
a 40% stake in El Towers S.p.A.

On 29 May 2019, Mediaset reported that it had purchased a 9.6% minority shareholding in German
broadcaster ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE.

On 11 November 2019, the subsidiary Mediaset Espafia announced the acquisition of a 5.5% stake in
ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE.

To manage the investment risk, both Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia also entered into a collar
agreement with the financial intermediary brokering the deal (put option purchase and call option sale).
The total financial outlays for the purchase of the equity investments stake and the hedging instruments
as part of these deals were EUR 349.1 million by Mediaset and EUR 182.0 by Mediaset Espafia.

These transactions mean that, as at the reporting date, the Mediaset Group holds a 15.1% equity

interest (15.57% of voting equity excluding treasury shares).

This friendly capital investment in ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE follows a forward-looking strategy to create
value from an increasingly international perspective, as fast-paced globalisation increasingly
necessitates European broadcasters to develop economies of scale in order to compete with top global
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players. Moreover, the transaction further strengthens the trade relationship that already exists
between the two Groups. In the past five years, Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia have built up a strong
business relationship with ProSiebenSat1 as partners in the European Media Alliance (EMA).

With Mediaset having no appointed representatives on the management and supervision bodies of
ProsiebenSat.1 Media SE, the non-controlling interest does not qualify as a significant interest under
IAS 28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures); in other words, the investor cannot exercise
significant influence by participating in its financial and operating policy decisions. It is therefore
recognised and treated in these consolidated financial statements as a financial asset under IFRS 9
(Financial Instruments) and, as a result, the accounting values of the equity investment and related
hedging derivatives are recognised at fair value. As provided for by IFRS 9, the Group has elected to
recognise the fair value changes at each reporting date, or any gains and losses arising to financial
assets of this type, under the item Valuation reserves of Shareholders' equity, with no recycling to profit
and loss, whereas dividend income will be recognised through profit and loss.

Dividend income of EUR 26.0 million was recognised for this equity investment in 2019 (recognised
under Financial expenses), whereas a portion of this dividend income, totalling EUR 18.6 million, was
paid to the financial intermediary brokering the deal under the collar agreement and recognised through

profit and loss under Financial expenses.

During the first half of the year, Mediaset secured exclusive free-to-air broadcasting rights of the best
Tuesday match during the next two editions (2019-20 and 2020-21) of the UEFA Champions League,
as well as the highlights of the same match, images relating to the round-up of Italian teams' matches

and highlights of all the week's matches.

Following Newco 11 Srl (Sony group) having acquired licenses for the provision of audiovisual media
services on the "Pop" and "Cinesony" channels and for their respective LCNs, as authorised by AGCOM
and the ltalian Ministry of Economic Development, two new channels began broadcasting on 10 July
2019: Boing Plus (Lcn 45) and Mediaset Extra 2 (Lcn55).

On 15 July 2019, the Court of Rome sentenced French website Dailymotion, which belongs to the
Vivendi Group, to pay compensation of more than EUR 5.5 million to Mediaset for having uploaded 995
copyrighted videos to its website without authorisation from 2006 onward. In addition to this ruling,
which was handed down in the first case brought in 2012, Mediaset has six further legal actions
underway in the courts against the same website following subsequent repeated violations. the
outcomes of which are expected shortly and which could give rise to total compensation in excess of
EUR 200 million, in view of the economic criteria upheld in the first award.

On 18 July 2019, the Court of Rome also sentenced the website Vimeo, for the second time in a matter
of months, to pay compensation of approximately EUR 5 million to Mediaset for having uploaded 498
copyrighted videos to its website without authorisation.

These rulings are of significance for all publishing houses and audiovisual companies in Italy, as they
help reset the balance of relationships between content producers and the operators of online
platforms. Both rulings also anticipate a hefty penalty (EUR 5,000) for each day of delay in deleting
each video that is on the website illegally. The website will automatically be subject to this penalty if
unauthorised Mediaset material is uploaded in future.

Both rulings, which are provisionally enforceable, have been appealed by the other party. In these
appeals, Dailymotion and Vimeo requested and were granted a suspension on the enforcement of their
compensation obligations arising from the judgment of the first-instance court until the appeals
proceedings are complete. On the other hand, the injunctions on the undue use of Mediaset video
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content and the associated fines for breach events were upheld. With these proceedings still pending, no
income was recognised in these financial statements for the judgments so far rendered.

Refarming of the 700 MHz band. In compliance with Italian Law No. 145/2018, also known as the
Budget Law 2019 (as already reported in the Directors’ Report on Operations contained in the
Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2018) and, more particularly, in accordance with
the Road Map setting forth the dates for the staged local switchover to digital terrestrial by 2022, on 5
August 2019 the Ministry of Economic Development allocated two frequency rights of use to
Elettronica Industriale to broadcast digital terrestrial television services in the DVB-T2 standard over
channels 36 and 28, in addition to a further non-frequency-specific right of use over half of a nationwide
multiplex.

On 16 September 2019, after having heard from Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
Mediaset S.p.A. completed its assessment of the terms and conditions set forth in the 2015-2017
medium-long term incentive plan regulation for the year 2016.

MFE - “MEDIAFOREUROPE" CROSS-BORDER MERGER PROJECT

Please see below a description of the main terms of the merger plan approved on 7 June 2019 by the
boards of directors of Mediaset S.p.A. (Mediaset), Mediaset Espafia Comunicaciéon S.A. (Mediaset
Espafia) and Mediaset Investment N.V. (DutchCo), as submitted for approval to the shareholders of
Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia at the extraordinary shareholders’ meetings held on 4 September 2019
and at the subsequent extraordinary shareholders' meetings held on 10 January 2020 and 5 February
2020, respectively.

Please further see below an updated description of the main events regarding the project's
implementation, including the judicial proceedings commenced in Italy, Spain and the Netherlands upon
initiative of Vivendi S.A. (Vivendi) and Simon Fiduciaria S.p.A. (Simon Fiduciaria). As a consequence of
the foregoing (as better described below), at the date hereof the effectiveness of the resolution adopted

by the shareholders’ meeting of Mediaset Espafia on 4 September 2019 is temporarily suspended.

The merger plan provides for the creation of a new holding company by executing a tripartite cross-
border merger by absorption of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia with and into DutchCo, a Dutch wholly-
owned direct subsidiary of Mediaset, which will be renamed "MFE - MEDIAFOREUROPE N.V." (MFE -
MEDIAFOREUROPE or MFE) (the Merger).

The Merger is part of a single and broader transaction (the Transaction) which also envisages the
following steps, aimed at maintaining the operations and business activities of Mediaset and Mediaset
Espafia, respectively, in Italy and Spain, to be completed prior to the effectiveness of the Merger: (i) the
transfer by Mediaset, by means of a contribution in kind, of substantially all of its business and certain
shareholdings to Mediaset Italia S.p.A., an Italian newly-incorporated wholly owned direct subsidiary of
Mediaset (the Mediaset Reorganization); and (ii) the segregation (segregacidn) by Mediaset Espafia of all
its assets and liabilities, including its shareholdings in other companies, to Grupo Audiovisual Mediaset
Espafia Comunicacion, S.A. (a Spanish wholly-owned direct subsidiary of Mediaset Espafia) (the Mediaset

Espafia Segregation and, together with the Mediaset Reorganization, the Preliminary Transactions).

From a strategic, operational and industrial perspective, the Transaction is aimed at creating a pan-
European media and linear and non-linear entertainment group, with a leading position in its local
markets, a sustainable capital structure combined with a strong cash flow generation profile, and

greater scale to compete and potential to expand further in specific countries across Europe in order to
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play a pivotal role in the context of a possible future consolidation scenario in the European video media

industry.

The Transaction is envisaged to allow the creation of cost efficiencies and savings of about Euro 100-
110 million per annum (before taxes) in the next 4 years (from 2020 to 2023), representing around
Euro 800 million on a net present value basis.

The election of the Netherlands as the legal framework to which the resulting company from the Merger
(MFE) will be subject is reasonable and justified in light of the objectives to be pursued by virtue of the
Transaction; furthermore, it enables the company to seize the opportunities of a system that provides
an articulated and effective array of tools, remedies and procedures aimed at ensuring efficient
management and protection for all shareholders.

After the Merger:

- each Mediaset shareholder, including the depositary bank under the Mediaset American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) program, will receive one MFE ordinary share for each Mediaset share held;

- each Mediaset Espafia shareholder (other than Mediaset, as the shares held by Mediaset in Mediaset
Espafia will be cancelled by operation of law) will receive 2.33 MFE ordinary shares for each

Mediaset Espafia share held;

- MFE ordinary shares will be listed on the Mercato Telematico Azionario, organized and managed by
Borsa Italiana S.p.A. and on the Spanish stock exchanges of Barcelona, Bilbao, Madrid and Valencia,
which are organized and managed by their respective managing companies of the stock exchanges
(sociedades rectoras de las bolsas de valores) (the Spanish Stock Exchanges) and are traded
through the automated quotation system of the Spanish Stock Exchanges, organized and managed
by Sociedad de Bolsas, S.A.U.;

- MFE will be tax-resident in Italy;

- MFE will adopt a one-tier governance model, and the board of directors is expected to be composed
of 14 members. In order to encourage and support the project over the long term, MFE will adopt a
special voting mechanism whereby long-term shareholders will be granted special voting shares to
which multiple voting rights are attached in addition to the one granted by each MFE ordinary share
that they will hold; such mechanism, which has already been tested and appreciated by investors in
similar transactions, is aimed at fostering the development and continued involvement of a core
base of long-term shareholders in a manner that reinforces the group’s stability.

The completion of the Merger is subject to the satisfaction of a limited number of conditions precedent,

among which:

- the amount of cash, if any, to be paid by Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia to Mediaset and Mediaset
Espafia shareholders exercising their withdrawal right in relation to the Merger and/or to creditors
of Mediaset and of Mediaset Espafia exercising their right of opposition to the Merger shall not
exceed in the aggregate the amount of Euro 180 million (the Amount of Withdrawal Rights and
Oppositions), provided, however, that, for clarity, the Amount of Withdrawal Rights and Oppositions
shall be calculated net of the amount of cash payable by Mediaset shareholders or third parties for
the purchase of Mediaset shares pursuant to Article 2437-quater of the Italian civil code, and of the
amount of cash payable (or paid) by third parties pursuant to any purchase or commitments to
purchase the withdrawn Mediaset and/or Mediaset Espafia shares. The redemption price payable to
Mediaset withdrawing shareholders, calculated pursuant to applicable law, is equal to Euro 2.77 per
share. The redemption price payable to Mediaset Espafia withdrawing shareholders, calculated
pursuant to applicable law, is equal to Euro 6.5444 per share;
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- the necessary requlatory authorisations shall have been obtained and the MFE ordinary shares, to
be issued and allocated to Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia shareholders upon completion of the
Merger shall have been admitted for listing on the Mercato Telematico Azionario. Admission to
listing will also be subject to the necessary authorisations from the AFM (the Dutch financial
markets authority) and/or from other competent authorities being obtained;

- no governmental entity of a competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, promulgated,
enforced or entered any order which prohibits the consummation of the Transaction or makes it
void or extremely burdensome.

The Merger will only be executed upon satisfaction (or waiver, as the case may be) of all conditions
precedent established for the Merger and once all preliminary formalities for the Merger have been
completed.

From an accounting perspective, the Merger does not give rise to any change of control, as Mediaset
currently holds the entire share capital of DutchCo and the majority of the share capital of Mediaset
Espafia.

Therefore, and from a substantial standpoint, the Merger will entail the acquisition of shares held by the
minority shareholders of Mediaset Espafa in exchange for the issuance of new MFE shares, and will thus
constitute a business combination involving entities and businesses under common control: as such, it
will be outside the scope of application of IFRS 3 - Business Combinations. Therefore, in the
consolidated financial statements following completion of the Merger, any difference between the fair
value of the newly-issued shares and the carrying value of the non-controlling interests attributable to
the minority shareholders of Mediaset Espafia (at the Merger date) will be recorded in an equity reserve,
whereas the consolidated net profit/loss subsequent to the Merger will incorporate the entire ty of the
revenues generated from the Mediaset Espafia business.

As disclosed in the context of the Merger, it is expected that, following the effective date of the Merger,
MFE (i) will make a distribution of a dividend, pursuant to Dutch law, for a total gross amount of Euro
100 million to all shareholders of MFE ; and (ii) will launch a buy-back program for a maximum
aggregate amount of Euro 280 million (less the aggregate amount actually paid to withdrawing

shareholders or to creditors opposing the Merger), up to a maximum price per share equal to Euro 3.4.

In the context of the Transaction, Citigroup Global Markets Ltd (Citi), Banca IMI S.p.A. (Intesa San Paolo
group) and Mediobanca acted as financial advisors to Mediaset and J.P. Morgan Securities plc (JP
Morgan) acted as financial advisor to Mediaset Espafia. On 7 June 2019, Citi and JP Morgan delivered
an opinion to the boards of directors of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia, respectively, on the fairness
from a financial point of view, for holders of shares in the share capital of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia

(other than Mediaset and its subsidiaries), of the exchange ratios of the proposed Merger.

The board of directors of Mediaset Espafia entrusted the analysis of the envisaged Transaction, the
corresponding decision-making process and the preparation of the common cross-border merger plan to
a merger committee composed by four members: three independent directors and one “other external”
member of the board of directors of Mediaset Espafia (the Merger Committee). Along the same lines,
and following the best corporate governance practices pursuant to Articles 228 and 229 of the Texto
refundido de la Ley de Sociedades de Capital (the Spanish company law), the proprietary and the
executive directors of Mediaset Espafia refrained from participating in the discussions, negotiation and
voting on the common cross-border merger plan, which has therefore been approved with the votes cast

by the “other external” and independent directors of the board of directors of Mediaset Espafia.
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In the context of the Mediaset Reorganization, on 3 July 2019 Mediaset Italia S.p.A, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Mediaset, was incorporated and on 9 July 2019 was registered in the Companies’
Register of Milan. By means of the execution of a notarial deed on 27 February 2020, effective as of 1
March 2020, Mediaset transferred substantially all of its business and certain shareholdings to Mediaset
Italia S.p.A. Please see below for further information.

On 4 September 2019, the common merger plan relating to the Merger was approved by the
extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset and by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of
Mediaset Espafia.

On the same date, in line with the recommendations issued by the CNMV (Comisién Nacional del
Mercado de Valores) relating to trading of issuers’ treasury shares, the board of directors of Mediaset
authorised a purchase plan of shares of its subsidiary Mediaset Espafia, directly on the stock market, for
a maximum aggregate amount equal to Euro 50 million, to be carried out by 31 October 2019. Upon
conclusion of such purchase plan, Mediaset acquired a stake equal to 1.63% of the share capital of
Mediaset Espafla, for an aggregate disbursement equal to Euro 31.6 million. As a result of these
purchases, the group's interest in the outstanding share capital of Mediaset Espafia has increased to
55.69%. The acquisition of Mediaset Espafia shares by Mediaset does not affect the maximum amount
equal to Euro 180 million payable by Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia to withdrawing shareholders or to
creditors opposing the Merger, as provided for in the common merger plan, nor does it affect the Euro
100 million cash dividend or the buy-back program which is expected to be launched by MFE following
completion of the Merger for a maximum aggregate amount of Euro 280 million (less the aggregate

amount actually paid to withdrawing shareholders or to creditors opposing the Merger).

On 19 September 2019 Mediaset signed, following the resolution of the board of directors, an
agreement with Peninsula Holding S.a.r.l. (Peninsula) aimed at limiting the potential outlays for the
companies involved in the Merger resulting from the purchase withdrawn shares that have not been
otherwise placed. On the basis of the agreement, Peninsula has committed to purchase - upon request
from Mediaset - up to a maximum of 355 million MFE shares deriving from (i) the withdrawal by
shareholders of Mediaset with a stake of not less than 5% of the share capital, and (ii) the withdrawal by
shareholders of Mediaset Espafia up to a maximum of 17.8 million MFE shares. The Peninsula
commitment is conditional, among other things, on the completion of the Merger and a total number of
MFE shares resulting from the exchange of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia shares subject to withdrawal
of not more than 470 million (without prejudice to restoration of floating capital on the first day of
listing of MFE shares). Based on the terms of the agreement, a commission will be payable and the
purchase price will be equal to the withdrawal price, minus a discount. On 20 December 2019, Mediaset
activated Peninsula's commitment to purchase the maximum 17.8 million MFE shares deriving from the
exercise of the withdrawal right by shareholders of Mediaset Espafia. Such purchase is conditional upon
completion of the Merger and will be executed on the withdrawal settlement date: as such, MFE shares
will be purchased (deriving from the exchange of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia shares following the
Merger). In addition, Mediaset and Peninsula have agreed to amend the long-stop date, moving it to 30
September 2020. Under the terms of the agreement, Peninsula has taken on stand-still and, with regard
to all purchased MFE shares, lock-up commitments. The board of directors of Mediaset was supported
by a leading financial institution that issued an assessment of the fairness of the terms and conditions of
the operation from a financial point of view. Peninsula is a holding company, registered under
Luxembourg law, operating in the European private and public equity sector. Peninsula manages the

capital of some of the leading sovereign funds and international institutional investors.
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Following the extraordinary shareholders' meetings of Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia held on 4
September 2019, on 16 September 2019 Vivendi initiated a legal action in Spain to challenge the
legitimacy of the resolution adopted by the shareholders' meeting.

Similarly, on 19 September 2019 Vivendi filed an application for interim relief measures in the
Netherlands, calling upon the court, inter alia, to prevent DutchCo from introducing the provisions
envisaged under Articles 13 (“Certain provisions concerning Special Voting Shares"), 42 (“Shareholder
obligations™) and 43 (“Mandatory bid requirement") of the proposed articles of association of MFE (the
Proposed Articles), attached to the common merger plan approved by the shareholders’ meetings of
Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia on 4 September 2019. On 16 October 2019, Vivendi withdraw its
application.

On 1 October 2019, Vivendi served Mediaset with a writ of summons whereby it requested the Court of
Milan, inter alia, to cancel the resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of
Mediaset held on 4 September 2019; to cancel and, in any case, to invalidate the resolutions adopted by
the corporate bodies of Mediaset in relation to and in execution thereof, including the resolutions
whereby Simon Fiduciaria was not entitled to participate and vote at the above-mentioned shareholders’
meeting with its 19.19% stake in Mediaset; to ascertain and declare that Fininvest S.p.A. (Fininvest)
exercises the management and control of Mediaset; to ascertain and declare that Vivendi is the
legitimate holder and may exercise all economic and administrative rights attached to its 9.61% stake in
Mediaset; to ascertain and declare that Vivendi may exercise the economic rights attached to Simon
Fiduciaria's stake in Mediaset, that Vivendi may give voting instructions in relation to this stake, within
the limits of the mandate granted to Simon Fiduciaria, and that the latter may exercise the related
administrative rights; and to ascertain and declare that certain conducts of Mediaset and Fininvest are
unlawful and, generally, to condemn Mediaset and Fininvest to compensate the past and future damage
incurred by Vivendi, pursuant to Article 278 of the Italian code of civil procedure.

On 11 October 2019, Mediaset Espafia signed an agreement with Credit Suisse Securities (Europe)
Limited (Credit Suisse) so to ensure satisfaction of the condition precedent to the Merger relating to the
Amount of Withdrawal Rights and Oppositions. Under this agreement, any withdrawn shares exceeding
the above threshold (net of those purchased by other persons pursuant to the law or other contractual

agreements) will be sold to Credit Suisse at a discount on the market price.

Following expiration of the terms provided for the exercise of the withdrawal rights under applicable law
in Italy (21 September 2019) and in Spain (10 October) withdrawal rights were exercised as follows:

- In Italy, withdrawal rights were exercised in relation to No. 492,691 Mediaset shares, equal to
approximately 0.0417% of outstanding shares, for an aggregate consideration of
approximately Euro 1.4 million at the redemption price of Euro 2.77 per share (as determined
under Article 2437-ter, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code). On 5 November 2019 the term
provided for the opposition of creditors expired and no opposition was filed by creditors.

- in Spain, withdrawal rights were exercised in relation to 39,025,777 Mediaset Espafia shares,
equal to approximately 12.5% of outstanding shares, for an aggregate consideration of
approximately Euro 255.4 million at the redemption price of Euro 6.5444 per share.

In Italy, upon expiration of the statutory rights’ offer period (on 6 November 2019), Mediaset
shareholders elected to purchase - both by exercising their option rights and by exercising their pre-
emption rights pursuant to Article 2437-quater of the Italian Civil Code - No. 239,092 Mediaset shares
in relation to which withdrawal rights were exercised at the redemption price of Euro 2.77 per share. In
particular, option rights were exercised in relation to No. 226,763 withdrawn shares and pre-emptive
rights were exercised in relation to No. 12,329 withdrawn shares. As the number of withdrawn shares

19



e

purchased under the statutory rights' offer period is lower than the aggregate number of Mediaset
withdrawn shares, the outstanding No. 253,599 Mediaset shares which remained unsold will be
acquired by MFE upon effectiveness of the Merger. The completion of the above procedure and the
settlement of the shares purchased under the statutory rights' offer period are conditional upon
completion of the Merger.

Given the suspension of the effectiveness of the resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders’
meeting of Mediaset Espafia on 4 September 2019 (as described in detail below) and, therefore, the
delay of the possible effective date of the Merger, the board of directors of Mediaset Espafia resolved to
enable withdrawing shareholders to voluntarily revoke the exercise of their withdrawal right between 19
February 2020 and 3 March 2020. Upon expiration of such period, the amount of shares in Mediaset
Espafia in relation to which withdrawal rights were revoked was equal to No. 3,795,263. Therefore, the
revocation of withdrawal rights has made the aggregate amount of Mediaset Espafia withdrawn shares
decrease to No. 35,230,514 (from No. 39,025,777).

On 9 October 2019, Simon Fiduciaria served Mediaset with a writ of summons whereby it requested the
Court of Milan, inter alia, to suspend, by way of urgency, the execution of the resolution adopted by the
extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset on 4 September 2019, and, on the merits, to cancel
the resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset on 4 September 2019
and to cancel and, in any case, invalidate the resolutions adopted by the corporate bodies of Mediaset in
relation to the execution of the resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of
Mediaset on 4 September 2019.

On 11 October 2019, the Court of Madrid ordered the temporary suspension of the resolution
approving the Merger adopted by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset Espafia on 4
September 2019. Mediaset Espafia filed an appeal.

On 14 and 15 October 2019, in the context of the complaints already lodged and joined in the
meantime, Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria served Mediaset with two applications for interim relief
measures under Article 2378 of the lItalian Civil Code and Article 700 of the Italian code of civil
procedure, whereby they requested the Court of Milan, inter alia, to suspend the effectiveness of the
resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset 4 September 2019 (as well

as any preliminary, associated or consequent resolution).
These two proceedings for interim relief were joined.

After the first hearing held on 30 October 2019, Mediaset declared that it was willing to amend the
resolution challenged by Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria and requested the court to schedule a new
hearing to reach a conciliation pursuant to Article 2378, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code. At the
hearing held on 4 November 2019, the Court of Milan, in an attempt to reach a conciliation, postponed
the hearing until 22 November 2019 to enable the parties to evaluate the grounds for a conciliation
and, for this purpose, ordered the interim suspension of the resolution appealed until the date of that
hearing.

On 30 October 2019, Vivendi served DutchCo with a writ of summons before the Court of Amsterdam,
whereby it filed the same applications as the ones that were filed in the interim proceedings withdrawn
on 16 October, namely for the prohibition to adopt articles of association containing provisions such as
Articles 13, 42 and 43 of the Proposed Articles.

On 22 November 2019, the board of directors of Mediaset - while considering that each and all the
provisions of the Proposed Articles and of the related Terms and Conditions for Special Voting Shares

(the SVS Terms and Conditions) were lawful and corresponding to a specific interest of the merging
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companies - resolved that a prompt completion of the Merger prevailed over its individual components.
Therefore, it resolved, among other things, to call an extraordinary meeting of shareholders on 10
January 2020 (the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting) to which not only the approval of certain
amendments to the Proposed Articles and to the SVS Terms and Conditions (as suggested in Court), but
also the approval of additional amendments - aimed at further aligning some specific governance-
related aspects with current best practices - were submitted. In particular, shareholders were requested
to approve (i) the elimination from the Proposed Articles - and from the SVS Terms and Conditions and
the "Terms and Conditions for initial allocation of Special Voting Shares A" - of all references to
restrictions to the holding of shares in MFE (the so-called Qualified Shareholding Obligation and
Contractual Obligation, as set out under Article 42 of the original version of the Proposed Articles); (ii)
the elimination from the Proposed Articles of the clause related to the conventional threshold (set at
25% of voting rights) triggering the obligation to launch a takeover bid, so to adapt such threshold to
that provided under Dutch law (i.e., 30% of voting rights).

The resolutions proposed at the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting did not entail any of the conditions
provided for the exercise of the withdrawal right under Article 2437, paragraph 1, of the Italian Civil
Code and under Article 5 of the Legislative Decree 108/2008, nor did they have any material or
financial impact on the merging companies, without prejudice to the withdrawal rights already exercised
in relation to the resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset held on 4
September 2019 and without the need to provide creditors of Mediaset with a new term to oppose the
Merger pursuant to Article 2503 of the Italian Civil Code.

The Merger Committee of Mediaset Espafia has resolved in favour of the proposed amendments, once
again confirming the strategic importance of the project for the Mediaset group and all its shareholders
and stakeholders.

On 29 November 2019, the attempt at conciliation, as suggested by the Court of Milan in the context of
the aforementioned proceedings pursuant to Article 2378 of the Italian Civil Code and Article 700 of the
Italian code of civil procedure, failed; at the hearing held on 6 December 2019, the Court postponed the
discussion on the matter to 21 January 2020, i.e. to a date following the Mediaset Extraordinary
Shareholders' Meeting.

At the same time, the Court also extended the provisional suspension of the resolution dated 4

September 2019 until the outcome of such hearing was known.

On 5 December 2019, the board of directors of Mediaset Espafia resolved to call an extraordinary
shareholders' meeting on 5 February 2020, to which the approval of certain amendments to the
Proposed Articles and to the SVS Terms and Conditions, corresponding to the amendments submitted

for the approval of the Mediaset Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting.

On 3 January 2020, Vivendi filed an application for interim relief with the Lazio Regional
Administrative Court, calling for the judicial authority to order the suspension of AGCOM resolution No.
178/17/CONS dated 18 April 2017 until the date of the first hearing. On 9 January 2020, the Lazio
Regional Administrative Court rejected the application for suspension and scheduled a hearing on 15
January 2020. On 13 January 2020, Vivendi definitively withdrew its application for the suspension of
the AGCOM resolution.

On 10 January 2020, Mediaset Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting approved the amendments
proposed by the board of directors.

On 21 January 2020, Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria served Mediaset with separate writs of summons
under Articles 2377 and 2378 of the Italian Civil Code, accompanied by an application for interim relief
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under Article 2378, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, in which, among other things, they requested
the Court of Milan to suspend, by way of urgency, the execution and validity of the resolution adopted
by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting (and any preliminary, associated and/or consequent
resolutions) and, on the merits, to cancel the resolution adopted by the Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting (and any preliminary, associated or consequent measures, including those which did not allow
Simon Fiduciaria to participate and vote at the above-mentioned shareholders' meeting with its 19.19%
stake in Mediaset) and, generally, upon ascertaining their conducts to be unlawful, to condemn Mediaset
and Fininvest to compensate Vivendi for past and future damage incurred.

These new proceedings have been joined with those already pending.

On 23 January 2020, the minutes of the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of Mediaset were
registered with the Milan Companies Register.

On 3 February 2020, the Court of Milan ruled to reject all applications for interim relief filed by Vivendi
and Simon Fiduciaria, which had called for the suspension of the resolutions adopted at the
extraordinary shareholders' meetings held on 4 September 2019 and 10 January 2020. This ruling was
challenged by Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria. The complaint, which was originally scheduled to be heard
on 12 March 2020, was later postponed until 2 April 2020.

On 5 February 2020, the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset Espafia approved the
specific amendments to the Proposed Articles and the SVS Terms and Conditions, corresponding to
those already approved at the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset held on 10 January
2020.

On 14 February 2020, the Audiencia Provincial of Madrid definitively ruled, without the possible of
appeal, to reject Mediaset Espafia’s appeal against the interim relief measures ordered by the Court of
Madrid on 11 October 2019.

On 17 February 2020, a notice was published in Dutch national newspaper "Trouw" and in the Dutch
Official Gazette (Staatscourant) relating to the filing of the common merger plan and its annexes with

the Dutch Commercial Register.

On 26 February 2020, the Court of Amsterdam rejected the application for interim relief filed by
Vivendi, in which it had called for DutchCo to be prohibited from executing the Merger. The Dutch court
rejected all of Vivendi's applications for interim relief and held that, among other things, the special
voting mechanism provided for in the Proposed Articles and the entire Merger transaction are in
accordance with Dutch law.

On 27 February 2020, the notarial deed of contribution relating to the Mediaset Reorganization was
executed. The transaction is effective as of 1 March 2020. Completion of the Mediaset Reorganization is
one of the conditions precedent to the Merger.

The contribution is aimed at maintaining all the operations and business activities of Mediaset in Italy: by
virtue of the contribution, Mediaset Italia S.p.A. will be allowed to continue operating the businesses of
Mediaset, once the Merger is completed, within the same legal and business framework as the one
regulated by the laws currently applicable to the activities of Mediaset, without prejudice to any
potential cost efficiencies and savings that may be achieved within the framework of the Transaction. As
a result of the contribution, Mediaset will hold the 100% shareholding in Mediaset Italia as well as other
shareholdings. In exchange for the contribution, Mediaset subscribed all the newly issued shares that
were issued by Mediaset Italia in execution of the share capital increase approved on 27 February 2020;
the value of such newly issued shares (including capital and share premium) is not higher than the value
of the contributed branch of assets, as certified by the independent expert on the basis of the
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contribution balance sheet as at 30 September 2019. The contribution benefitted from the exemption
set forth by Article 14 of the regulation containing provisions relating to transactions with related
parties, approved by Consob with Resolution no. 17221 dated 12 March 2010, as amended and
supplemented (the Regulation), and by Article 7, let. d) of the "Procedure for transactions with related
parties" adopted by Mediaset. Pursuant to such exemption, Mediaset did not publish the relevant
information document pursuant to Article 5 of the Regulation.

It is expected that Mediaset Espafia will execute the Mediaset Espafia Segregation prior to the effective
date of the Merger.

On 3 March 2020, Vivendi threatened new legal action in the Netherlands against DutchCo on the
ground that, according to Vivendi's Dutch lawyers, the procedure adopted by DutchCo in the
Netherlands is in breach of applicable Dutch law as, among other things, it allegedly breaches
shareholders' right to information.

Despite considering this additional initiative by Vivendi to be ungrounded and deceptive, in order to
avoid any pretext for umpteenth legal proceeding by Vivendi and any delay deriving from such
proceedings, DutchCo voluntarily decided to withdraw the filing of the merger plan with the Dutch
Commercial Register on 5 February 2020. DutchCo did so solely with a view to running with the
competent authorities all necessary checks and to move forward with a new filing. Therefore, Mediaset
and DutchCo do not expect that the new action threatened by Vivendi will delay the completion of the
MFE project.

In the context of the proceedings on the merits currently pending in Spain, on 5 March 2020 Mediaset
Espafa filed an application whereby it requested the Court - also in light of the change in circumstances,
following the resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on 5 February 2020 - to lift
the order to suspend the effectiveness of the resolution adopted by the extraordinary meeting of
Mediaset Espafia on 4 September 2019.

Given the status of the legal proceedings described above, which have led the effectiveness of the
resolution adopted by the extraordinary shareholders' meeting of Mediaset Espafia on 4 September
2019 to be temporarily suspended, at the reference date of the present consolidated financial
statements none of the financial commitments assumed by Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia regarding the
Merger had any impact on assets or finances as at the reporting date of these consolidated financial
statements, with the exception of the accounting treatment of the EUR 40 million premium offset in
shareholders' equity, as provided for by the backstop agreement described above, which Mediaset

entered into with Peninsula on 19 September 2019.

MEDIASET - VIVENDI - SIMON FIDUCIARIA PROCEEDINGS

A brief summary is provided below of the proceedings pending before the Court of Milan, to which
Mediaset S.p.A. and R.T.l. Reti Televisive Italiane S.p.A., on the one part, and Vivendi S.A., on the
other, are party, as well as those between Mediaset S.p.A, Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria concerning,
among other things, the challenging of certain resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting of Mediaset
(some of which already described in the financial statements for previous years). The main
developments during the last the financial year and during the first months of 2020 were as follows:

Proceedings before the Court of Milan - Companies Division B - Case No. 47205/2016

On 19 August 2016, Mediaset S.p.A. and R.T.l. S.p.A. brought an action against Vivendi S.A. seeking a
declaration ordering the latter to perform the share purchase agreement (SPA) entered into on 8 April

2016, as well as the award of damages for the late performance of that agreement.
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Vivendi S.A. entered an appearance calling for the action to be thrown out, for the SPA to be declared
invalid and for R.T.l. to be ordered to pay damages.

At the preliminary hearing of 21 March 2017, the action was joined with Case No. 47575/2016,
brought against Vivendi S.A. by Fininvest S.p.A. in a writ of summons served on 23 August 2016. At the
same hearing, the defence for Mediaset and R.T.I filed a “plea and counterclaim for damage to its image
and reputation, to be compensated ex aequo et bono, in consideration of the gravity and repeated nature
of the behaviour, which persisted until 20 March 2017". Moreover, “for the purposes of a full decision
being reached on the claims for damages already brought”, all plaintiffs (including Fininvest) denounced
“the ‘takeover’ by Vivendi of Mediaset stock that has been occurring in recent months”. Finally, Mediaset
and R.T.l filed a “claim for damages, the amount of which will be determined in the course of
proceedings”, with reference to the unlawful transaction carried out by Vivendi,.

During the hearing on 4 December 2018, Mediaset and R.T.| amended their claim against Vivendi, from
demanding the performance of the agreement to demanding its termination, together with a claim for
damages, and proceeded to plead as follows:

1) that Vivendi be ascertained and declared to have committed a serious breach of the SPA, dated 8
April 2016, executed with R.T.l and Mediaset.

2) that the SPA executed with R.T.I and Mediaset on 8 April 2016 be terminated on the grounds of
serious breach.

3) that Vivendi be ordered to pay compensation to Mediaset and R.T.| for all pecuniary and non-
pecuniary damage actually incurred and expected, the amount of which to be determined in the
course of proceedings, and which may be more precisely determined based on the outcome of the
preliminary investigations, or, where appropriate, as settled by the Judge ex aequo et bono, in
accordance with Article 1226 of the Italian Civil Code.

4) that the following be ascertained and declared: (a) that Vivendi has breached its prohibition on
acquiring shares in Mediaset under the Agreement; and/or (b) that the acquisitions of shares in
Mediaset are null and void, due to Vivendi having breached Article 43 of the Consolidated Law on
Audiovisual and Radio Media Service (TUSMAR); accordingly, that Vivendi be ordered to pay
compensation to Mediaset and R.T.I for all pecuniary and non-pecuniary damage actually incurred
and expected, the amount of which will be more precisely determined in the course of proceedings
and, where appropriate, determined by the Judge ex aequo et bono, in accordance with Article 1226
of the Italian Civil Code.

5) that the plaintiffs be awarded costs and lawyers’ fees”.

By writ dated 28 January 2019, Mediaset Premium also joined the action, filing a separate claim against
Vivendi for compensation of pecuniary and non-pecuniary damage incurred as a result of the breach by
Vivendi.

Proceedings before the Court of Milan - Companies Division B - Case No. 30071/2017:

In a writ of summons dated 30 May 2017 and served on 9 June 2017, Mediaset, Fininvest and R.T.I.
brought proceedings against Vivendi S.A. for it to be asserted that: (a) Vivendi breached certain of its
commitments to Mediaset and R.T.l. assumed in the SPA; (b) Vivendi breached regulations pertaining to
the public economic order contained in Article 43 of Italian Legislative Decree No. 177/2005 (the
Consolidated Law on Audiovisual and Radio Media Service - TUSMAR), with the intention, among other

things, of securing the disposal of the Mediaset shares acquired by Vivendi in breach of this provision
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and of the SPA; (¢) Vivendi committed acts of unfair competition against Mediaset and Fininvest; and for
Vivendi to be ordered to pay compensation for the damage incurred by Mediaset and R.T.l (and by
Fininvest, a plaintiff alongside Mediaset and R.T.l.).

To date, the case has not been joined with Case Nos. 47205/2016 and 47575/2016.

The defendant, Vivendi, entered an appearance, filing a statement of defence on 29 November 2017. In
its statement of defence, Vivendi called on the Court to rule as inadmissible the claims made by the
plaintiffs (entering a plea alleging, inter alia, a lack of jurisdiction and standing) and to “rule as
unfounded and, therefore, to dismiss all claims made by Finanziaria di Investimento Fininvest S.p.A.,
Reti Televisive Italiane S.p.A. and Mediaset S.p.A.".

At the hearing of 4 December 2018:

(@) the plaintiffs amended their claims, supplementing the claims made in the writ of summons with a
claim for the Agreement to be terminated on the grounds of breach by Vivendi, pursuant to Article
1453 of the Italian Civil Code.

(b) the judgment was kept separate from the “joined judgments" (Case Nos. 47205/2016 +
47575/2016).

(c) the parties were granted time limits by which to lodge any pleadings aimed at supplementing their
preliminary petitions: (i) the plaintiffs lodged a pleading on 30 January 2019 (in which they
produced two experts’ reports concerning the damage caused by the behaviour of Vivendi); (ii)
Vivendi lodged its pleading on 28 February 2019.

On 12 March 2019, a hearing took place to discuss the admission of the preliminary petitions.

On 29 July 2019, the Court, having consulted the Bench to assess all arguments in the preliminary
applications of the parties following the decision over the applications to suspend the judgment and over
the preliminary issues of procedure and of substance raised by the defendant, ordered a hearing to be
held on 22 September 2020 to clarify the conclusions reached.

Proceedings pending before the Court of Milan concerning, among other things, the appeal against
certain resolutions of Mediaset's shareholders' meeting

On 26 October 2018, Mediaset was served notice of a writ of summons filed by Simon Fiduciaria
concerning Mediaset's Shareholders' Meeting held on 27 June 2018, in which the plaintiff called on the

Court of Milan to order preventive measures and open substantive proceedings.

The plaintiff applied for preventive measures to suspend the execution of the resolutions taken at
Mediaset’'s Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting held on 27 June 2018 in relation to items C.4 (Proposal for
establishment of a medium/long-term incentive and retention plan; related resolutions) and F.10
(Authorisation for the Board of Directors to purchase and dispose of treasury shares, also to service
stock option plans and other share-based medium/long-term incentive and retention plans; related

resolutions) on the agenda.
With regard to substantive proceedings, Simon Fiduciaria pleaded:
1. that the above mentioned resolutions be repealed.

2. that Simon Fiduciaria be ascertained and declared as entitled to participate in ordinary and
extraordinary meetings of the shareholders of Mediaset, with full participation and voting rights, and to

exercise all participation and voting rights attached to its shares in Mediaset.
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Mediaset received a favourable outcome to the application for preventive suspension. On 27 November
2018, the Court of Milan rendered a decision throwing out the petition to suspend the two resolutions
appealed by Simon Fiduciaria (see the press release published by Mediaset on 26 October, entitled
"Mediaset has received an appeal from Simon Fiduciaria relating to two resolutions of the 2018
Shareholders' Meeting™).

On 25 January 2019, the Court of Milan threw out Simon Fiduciaria's appeal against the order of 25
November 2018.

On 1 August 2019, Simon Fiduciaria filed a “writ to withdraw its petition”, declaring that it "waives...its
petition, for procedural effects only, brought in the matter under point 2 (“that it be ascertained and
declared that, under the mandate granted by Vivendi S.A. on 6 April 2018, Simon Fiduciaria S.p.A. is
entitled to participate in ordinary and extraordinary meetings of the shareholders of Mediaset S.p.A.,
with full participation and voting rights, and to exercise all participation and voting rights attached to its
Shares in Mediaset S.p.A."), without in any way withdrawing from the proceedings themselves, or
waiving substantial law or its right to direct action, and expressly reserves the right to bring this petition

again, in whole or in part, before another jurisdiction”.

The substantive proceedings in the case are pending and a hearing for the specification of the pleadings
has been scheduled for 24 November 2020.

Moreover, on 5 November 2018, the Lazio Regional Administrative Court (Third Division) issued an
order in which it declined to rule on Vivendi's application to repeal AGCOM ruling 178/17/Cons of 18
April 2017, instead ordering that the administrative proceedings be stayed and that the decision on the
guestion referred for a preliminary ruling by Vivendi in its application be referred to the Court of Justice
of the European Union. More specifically, the Court of Justice was asked to assess whether the
principles regarding freedom of establishment and freedom to provide services referred to in Articles 49
and 56 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, Articles 15 and 16 of Directive
2002/21/EC on electronic communications networks and services and the principles regarding the
protection of media pluralism and competition in the broadcasting sector referred to in Directive
2010/13/EU on audiovisual media services are in contrast with the domestic legislation contained in
Article 43, paragraph 11 of the Consolidated Law on Audiovisual and Radio Media Services (TUSMAR).

In July 2019, Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria filed two separate writs of summons against Mediaset with
the Court of Milan. With these acts: (a) both parties contested the resolution whereby the Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting of Mediaset held on 18 April decided to insert an “enhanced voting” mechanism
into Mediaset’s bylaws under section 127-quinquies of the Consolidated Finance Law (item D.4 on the
agenda, calling for it to be ascertained that they were entitled to be entered on the roll); (b) In its writ,
Simon Fiduciaria also contested the resolution of the ordinary Shareholders' Meeting, held on the same
date, concerning the purchase of treasury shares (item C.3 on the agenda); (¢) Vivendi called for its

rights in relation to Mediaset shares to be ascertained.

In an appeal filed under section 700 of the Italian Civil Procedure Code and served upon Mediaset on 26
August 2019, Vivendi requested, as an interim measure, to be allowed to participate at the

Shareholders’ Meeting of 4 September in enjoyment of its 9.61% stake in Mediaset.

On 31 August, the Court admitted this petition for interim relief and ruled as follows: “Mediaset spa and
the person invited to chair the shareholders’ meeting called for 4 September 2019 are ordered to admit
the 113,533,301 shares directly held by Vivendi S.A., representing 9.61% of the share capital of
Mediaset spa and 9.99% of voting rights, and for Vivendi S.A. to be allowed, at the meeting, to exercise
voting rights and all related participation rights attached to its 9.61% shareholding”, further stipulating
that “the assessment of Mediaset's objection brought against Vivendi under section 43, paragraph 11 of
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the TUSMAR is therefore upheld, taking into account the effective position of Simon Fid, which holds a
19.19% shareholding as the trustee of Vivendi”. The objection regards the fact that "the exercise of
voting rights over the 19.19% shareholding by Vivendi through its trustee Simon Fid spa is already
paralysed, as things stand, by the decision of AGCOM and by the interim measure rendered in RG
50173/2018 (interim relief proceedings established upon complaint with order dated 17/1/2019 - doc.
2 Mediaset’s pleading), which remains in place between Simon Fid and Mediaset until such time that the
legal and factual situation changes or until the case is decided in its substance”.

As seen above, during the month of October 2019, Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria served two writs of
citation and two interim appeals, calling for the cancelation and suspension of the validity of the
resolution passed by the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Mediaset on 4 September 2019; in
January 2020, Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria served two writs of citation and two interim appeals,
calling for the cancelation and suspension of the validity of the resolution passed by the extraordinary
shareholders’ meeting of Mediaset on 10 January 2020. After the hearing to discuss these interim
proceedings held on 21 January 2020, the Court joined the above-mentioned cases brought by Vivendi
and Simon concerning the resolutions passed by the shareholders’ meeting on 18 April 2019 with the
appeal proceedings concerning the resolutions of the shareholders’ meetings of 4 September 2018 and
10 January 2020, and suspended the first hearing until 5 May 2020.
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GROUP PROFILE AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW BY BUSINESS
SEGMENT

Mediaset is a multinational media group, which has been listed on the Milan Stock Exchange since 1996,
mainly operating in the television industry in Italy and Spain.

In Italy, Mediaset is the leading operating by audience share and advertising market share in the
commercial television broadcasting sector, with three of Italy's biggest general interest networks and an
extensive portfolio of thematic free-to-air and pay TV channels - both linear and non-linear/OTTV) - with
a broad range of cinema, TV series and children’s channel content. In recent years, Mediaset has also
set up its own radio segment through acquisitions, bringing together four of the largest national
broadcasters.

In Spain, Mediaset is the main shareholder of Mediaset Espafia, with an interest of 53.26% at 31
December 2019 (55.69% of voting rights, not including treasury shares). Mediaset Espafia is the leading
Spanish commercial television broadcaster with two main general interest channels (Telecinco and
Cuatro) and a range of free-to-air thematic channels. Mediaset Espafia is listed on the Madrid stock
exchange. Mediaset Espafia is listed on the Madrid stock exchange.

Italy

Media and distribution platforms are becoming more and more integrated in response to developments
in the advertising market. In the television sector, in particular, competition has led to a proliferation of
multichannel and multi-platform offerings, which has influenced advertising as much as production and

editorial strategies.

For advertising, different media need to be managed jointly to maximise their viewer reach and leverage
information profiling of the various target audience segments. Production and editorial operations, on
the other hand, require coordination and synergy for content planning and strategies acquisition.

In this environment, the Mediaset Group has developed an integrated television free-to-air/pay
television, linear/non-linear content model, which generates synergies and leverages the know-how
gained over the years from producing entertainment, news and analysis programmes, together with the
distinctive expertise developed by the Medusa and Taodue subsidiaries in movie distribution and the
production of films and television dramas, in addition to the acquisition of sports, film and television

series content from third-parties.

Also in keeping with this model is the development of web activities, increasingly oriented towards free
online television-based video - with the capacity to rebroadcast and amplify content and supply, as well

as launching original products.

The integrated television offer model consists of the following core business areas and other activities

core business:

- original content production and third-party content acquisition, driving the broadcaster’s offer
and generalist and thematic television programming; these activities have associated costs of
production and self-produced content creation (news, entertainment drama) and key investments
include the acquisition of multi-year rights licences from third parties, particularly for films and TV
series supported by the Group;
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editorial content distribution for linear and non-linear, and free-to-air and pay-per-view television
across various platforms and for radio content by Group broadcasters.

advertising sales for television operations, through the Group's concessionaires, and for the
Group's radio broadcasters and websites, as managed by Mediamond as part of a joint venture with
Mondadori; this partnership underpins the Group's main source of revenue, namely the sale of
advertising space on various media with a view to cross-media coverage;

other activities: film production and distribution, teleshopping, publishing activities, licensing and
merchandising, foreign advertising concessions under the umbrella of the subsidiary Publieurope.
These activities generate other revenue components, in particular through film distribution and the
sale and/or sublicensing of content and multiplatform rights, as well as the rental of transmission
capacity to other sector operators.
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CONTENT PRODUCTION AND ACQUISITION
Productions

In 2019, R.T.I. S.p.A. produced 290 television programmes.

The following table shows the number of productions made in 2019 by type, split by general interest
channels, thematic channels, semi-generalist channels and pay TV channels.

Types Numbers of in-house productions

2019 2018

Prime Day Prime Day
Time Time Total Time Time Total
Film = = = - - -
Fiction = = = 2 - 2
Cartoon - - - - - -
News 11 26 37 9 30 39
Sport 4 13 17 4 13 17
Entertainment 51 74 125 38 79 117
Education 5 4 9 1 5 6
Teleshopping 4 22 26 4 18 22
Promotion = 8 8 - 8 8
Total Generalist Networks 75 147 222 58 153 211
Film = = = - - -
Fiction s = = - - -
Cartoon - - - - - -
News 3 7 10 - 5 5
Sport 2 13 15 - 6 6
Entertainment 2 26 28 3 35 38
Education 2 4 6 - 3 3
Teleshopping = = = - 0 0
Promotion = 7 7 - 7 7
Total Multi-Channel 9 57 66 3 56 59
Film s = = - - -
Fiction - - - - 0 0
Cartoon - - - - - -

News - - - - 0
Sport - - - 2 19 21

Entertainment = = = - 3
Education - - - - - -
Teleshopping s = = - - -
Promotion - 2 2 - 2 2
Total Pay-tv Networks = 2 2 2 24 26
TOTAL 84 206 290 63 233 296

A total of 12,065 hours of final programme time was produced in 2019, compared to 15,312 hours in
2018, as detailed in the following table:
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Types Hours of finished products

2019 % wheight 2018 % wheight
Film - - -
Fiction - - 22 0.1%
Cartoon - - -
News 3,732 30.9% 3,718 24.3%
Sport 507 4.2% 702 4.6%
Entertainment 2,714 22.5% 2,568 16.8%
Education 81 0.7% 52 0.3%
Teleshopping 29 0.2% 33 0.2%
Promotion 28 0.2% 36 0.2%
Total Generalist Networks 7,092 58.8% 7,132 46.6%
Film - - -
Fiction - - -
Cartoon - - -
News 3,770 31.2% 3,838 25.1%
Sport 702 5.8% 588 3.8%
Entertainment 385 3.2% 1,006 6.6%
Education 103 0.9% 9 0.1%
Teleshopping - - -
Promotion 10 0.1% 11 0.1%
Total Multi-Channel 4,969 41.2% 5,451 35.6%
Film - - -
Fiction - - -
Cartoon - - -
News - - -
Sport - - 2,720 17.8%
Entertainment - - 4
Education - - -
Teleshopping S - S
Promotion 4 - 6
Total Pay-tv Networks 4 - 2,729 17.8%
TOTAL 12,065 100.0% 15,312 100.0%

Entertainment Productions

Mediaset continued to invest heavily in 2019.

News programmes, which in recent years have formed the backbone of the Canale5 daytime schedule,
were this year extended to Prime Time. This has given a new identity to Rete4 and bolstered its
viewership with a more prestigious target.
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The offer of entertainment productions has continued to grow and its wide range of formats (self-
produced and international) has this year enabled our channels to reach the most varied viewership
bands.

PRIME TIME

Canale5 has maintained its long-held leadership with the commercial target audience, with a varied
offering characterised by various types of traditional and new productions (talk shows, reality shows,
game shows, dating shows), which are always able to catch and intrigue a consistent number of viewers
across all age bands.

Leading continuing productions include the programmes made by Fascino, owned by Maria De Filippi,
which has ensured the success of Channel 5 both in the daytime and early evening slots, with viewership
figures continuing to rise year on year:

= After 18 seasons, C'é posta per te registered viewership figures as high as 29.0%, once more
surpassing the highest average from 2010 to date (peaking at 42.0% of 20-year-old women)

= Amici improved further with 22.6% of all viewers (more than 39.0% of women under 25). The first
edition of its VIP spin-off show averaged more than 18.0% and grew further with older viewers.

= Tu Si Que Vales remained the number one choice in the Saturday evening slot, averaging 29.0%,
and strengthened among younger viewers (30.9% of the commercial target audience)

= Both editions of Temptation Island also enjoyed great success, with the summer edition reaching a
new record high of 23.2% (54.0% of younger women), whereas the VIP edition, in the autumn,

maintained its firm grip on female viewers (47.0% of teens).

Also performing strongly were the channel's reality shows, including Isola dei Famosi (with almost 10
million hits) and Grande Fratello, which attracted an even larger portion of female viewers (more than

31.0% of viewers up to 35 years) and boosted Mediaset Extra thanks to its daily live feed.

Canale5's other flagship presenters - Bonolis and Scotti - also rated successfully with their customary
shows:

= Paolo Bonolis enjoyed great success with the eight edition of Ciao Darwin, which surpassed a 23.0%
share of all viewers (27.8% of the commercial target audience) and a 40% share of 15-34 year olds

= Twenty years after his first broadcast, Gerry Scotti presented Chi Vuol Essere Milionario? in the
prime time slot, which again managed to record 8.5 million hits.

Also in 2019, the entertainment offering was strengthened with numerous new productions, which gave

a new lease of life both to the peak season and the summer months.

= Two history productions were launched on Italian television:
La sai l'ultima? Digital Edition took almost 17.4% of the commercial target audience, capturing a 21.5%
share among 20-24 years old.

Eurogames, a revamped version of Giochi senza frontiere, garnered 11.3 million net hits on its debut.

= The offerings of two of Canale 5's most valued female presenters also increased:
Michelle Hunziker, hosting All Together Now, also starring J-Ax and played out in front of
spectacularly imposing wall of 100 judges, captured a 20% share of viewers under 35.
A new prime-time slot for Barbara D'Urso, whose 28 early evening screenings of Live - Non é la

D'Urso reached 9.8 million hits throughout the year, averaging a share of almost 15.0%.
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= After Adriano Celentano’s return to television in the first episode had attracted 10 million hits, the
show's spring broadcast brought a decline, nonetheless averaging a 15% share of the commercial
target audience, which was then followed by a graphic novel which managed an 11.5% share of 15-
64 years old.

= Canale5 also brought music to prime time: Al Bano, a two-episode-long special production marking
the singer's 55-year career to date, won the channel a 28% share of older women (17.0% of all

viewers).

Italial, which has always enjoyed a strong evening viewership thanks to the investigative reporting of
Le lene, which remained a flagship programme capable of reaching both a younger audience (20.4% of
15-34 years old) and an adult audience (19.4% of 35/44 years old) thanks to the strong impact of the
cases described in the broadcasts.

The return of Colorado managed a 12.4% share of the channel's target audience, recording its highest
figures among teenagers (14.8%).

Rete4, coming off the back of the previous year's relaunch, consolidated itself as a general interest

channel engaged in news and culture programming.

The news flagship Quarto Grado hit almost 7.0% throughout the year, peaking at an 11.0% share of

women aged 65 or more.

There was healthy consolidation of the productions broadcast in 2018 (Quarta repubblica, Freedom and
La repubblica delle donne), while the two new releases during the year (Dritto e rovescio and Fuori dal
coro, which was passed to prime time) also performed strongly.

Not to be overlooked were the theatrical comedy productions in the evening slot, with four summer and
Christmas specials by | Legnanesi and their self-produced television film Non é Natale senza Panettone

(8.0% of the channel's target audience).

DAYTIME

Canale5 was once again the number one channel among all viewers in the 7am to 8.30pm daytime slot,
with a dominant leadership among the commercial target audience throughout the daytime slot.

As the leader in infotainment shows (Pomeriggio Cinque, Verissimo and Domenica Live), Canale5 is also
the number one choice in the time slots dedicated to the broadcast of Forum (18.0%, reaching nearly
25.0% among older women) and Uomini e Donne (22.0%, reaching 37.0% among 20-year-old women,

surpassing last year's record).

Saturday afternoon show Amici remained popular with a viewer share of more than 20.5%, while its
popularity among young women was particularly high (more than 35% of 15-25 years old).

Canale5 bolstered its already-comprehensive early evening schedule with the launch of new game show
Conto alla Rovescia (18.7% of all viewers, with a particularly strong showing among younger viewers:
24.0% of males aged 15-19), while also continuing to command its loyal viewership of Caduta Libera
(20.2% of all viewers, peaking at more than 23% among women aged 45-54).

Striscia la notizia also remained strong in its 32nd edition, with every episode beating its game show
competitors in commercial target ratings (average ratings of 20.6%) to claim the seasonal crown.
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In the late evening slot, too, the channel's deep-dive and interview programmes maintained strong
viewership figures, in particular Maurizio Costanzo Show and Matrix, with Tiki Taka also taken on loan
from Italia Uno for the peak season (9.2% of 15-64 years old).

Italial, the second top-rated generalist channel among young people, both in the 24-hour period with
ratings of more than 9.0%, and in the late evening slot where it pulls in more than 12.0% of 15-34 years
old.

Also on the schedule where the daily shows Saranno Isolani, Isola dei Famosi and Grande Fratello, which
range from a 6.0% and a 7.4% share of the channel's target audience, with the afternoon comedy shows
Mai Dire Talk and Colorado Pills surpassing a 7.0% share of 15-34 years old.

Rete4 maintains a strong foothold in the daytime slot, with Lo Sportello di Forum (more than 12.0% of
women aged 65+) and Stasera Italia (more than 7.0% of over 55s).

Other productions of note are Sunday programmes / Viaggi del Cuore and Donnavventura, which grew in
popularity compared to 2018, attracting an even larger audience among young people.

Productions funded partially or entirely by product placement also remained strong.

Brand integration is used for the leading early evening programmes and in specific points of the daytime

schedule, both in generalist and thematic programming.

Several new programmes were also launched on Italia Uno during 2019: aside from the continuation of
Git in 60 secondi (nearly 10.0% of the channel’s target audience), the partnership was tightened with
Radio 105, with the production of W Radio Playa Rimini (18.7% of men aged 15-34), and with the
automobiles sector, with NCC Noleggio con conduttore. Canale5 also continued to broadcast In Forma
con Starbene and Le ricette di Giallo Zafferano, in addition to Hit The Road Man in the late evening slot
Other notable programming on Rete4, on the other hand, include the histories of Borghi Ritrovati and

the various special episodes of Donnavventura.

These activities also helped bolster programming on thematic channels (Adesso il capo sono io, Basta

Poco and Follow Me on La5; Speciale Italia-Cina on Mediaset Extra).

News and Sport productions

THE INTEGRATED INFORMATION SYSTEM

In 2019, Mediaset continues its integrated system model for News and Sports across its networks and
multimedia platforms, established upon several pillars:

Television news broadcasts

= Tg5, always a leader for the 15-64 commercial target with Prima Pagina morning news (18.7%
share), in the morning editions (19.7% share), afternoon (18.7% share) and evening (20.3% share).

= Studio Aperto, which successfully covers the young audiences (15-34) of Italia 1 both in its
midweek morning (15.7% share) and in its evening editions (8.9% share); The summer saw the
addition of magazine programme Studio Aperto Mag., on air at 7pm, which rated strongly among
young people (7.2% share).
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= Tg4 achieved almost a 5% share of the channel's typical target audience (over 55s) both in its
morning and evening editions, having been given an editorial makeover last autumn with the
introduction of a more talk show-like format.
Furthermore, Studio Aperto and Tg4 were reinvented during 2019 to becoming integrated brands
of News Mediaset under the editorial directorship of Andrea Pucci.

= Sport Mediaset, with its traditional 1pm midweek slot, remained popular among younger segments
(15.7% of 15-34 years old), improving on its 2018 showing by almost one and a half percentage
points. The same was true for the Sunday edition Sport Mediaset XXL, which averaged 10.5% of
audiences aged 15-34, which was 2 percentage points up on 2018. As an alternative to the 7pm
repeat editions, sports-themed programmes were created as part of the TgCom24 schedule.

Infotainment and journalistic analysis, by Videonews

= Canale 5 daytime with Mattino 5, Pomeriggio 5, Verissimo and Domenica Live, all commercial target
leaders in their own slots, respectively achieve a 15.4%, 18.5%, 19.0% and 14.3% share.

= Also on the flagship channel, Videonews appeared in the early evening slot with Live - non & la
D'Urso, which pulled in an average of 15.2% of the commercial target audience.

= Rete 4's daytime programme Stasera Italia achieved a 5% share (7.2% of over 55s) in its Monday to
Friday show presented by Barbara Palombelli and 4.5% (6.3% of over 55s) in its weekend show
presented by Brindisi and Gentili; in December 2019, Gentili became the sole presenter. Also on
weekends, morning programme Dalla parte degli animali drew in 4.5% of the channel's target
audience.

= Rete 4's prime time programming included established shows and new ventures that were greeted
with success: Quarta Repubblica on Mondays (5.4% of all viewers, 7.7% of the channel's target),
Quarto Grado on Fridays (6.9% of all viewers, 8.3% of the channel's target) and Dritto e Rovescio on
Thursdays (5.8% of all viewers, 8.1% of the channel's target) were flanked by #CR4 la repubblica
delle donne on Wednesday (4.8% of all viewers, 6.3% of the channel's target) and Fuori dal coro
(5.9% of all viewers, 8.3% of the channel's target); in the autumn, this latter programme was
switched to Tuesdays at prime time, a time slot which is usually characterised by political talk shows
and in which its investigative reports and tough-talking tone ensured that it was immediately given a
positive reception by news audiences.

= The late evening slots on Canale 5, with the production partnerships of Supercinema, X-style and
#Hype, and Confessione Reporter on Rete 4.

Sports news

In addition to broadcasting international football tournaments such as the UEFA Nations League and
European Championship Qualifiers, the autumn Mediaset's programming was bolstered by football’s
most prestigious tournament: the Champions League. Thanks to an agreement with Sky, broadcasting
rights were acquired to one event per Match Week which, under the new formula which sees four Italian
teams qualify automatically, means that more big matches can be broadcast. All the main events related
to the world of football were monitored, processed and analysed by Mediaset's news, commentary and
in-depth programmes. In particular, Tiki Taka secured almost 10.3% of younger viewers, whereas
Pressing Champions League, a show on ltalia 1 which covers the Champions League, drew in 11.7% of
15-34 years old.

Football content was supplemented with various motorsport programmes: Formula E consolidated its
position in its second broadcasting season and, in the autumn, a new production model was introduced,
with field units replacing OB vans.
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This led to a significant reduction in production costs. In addition to the broadcasting of events, a series
of collateral products has been created under the E Planet brand: E Planet settimanale (44 weekly
episodes on issues concerning environmental sustainability); E Planet Magazine (a series of 10 episodes
on the world of Formula E).

The All News TGCOM24 system

In its various forms: including the television network (available on the DTT Channel 51 and SKY 509),
“breaking news" on the free general and thematic networks, on the RadioMediaset radio network and on
the main national radio stations, the website TGCOM24.it, apps for smartphones and tablets and official
accounts on social media networks (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and LinkedIn) and a dedicated
YouTube channel. Also of note is the performance of news and sports information multimedia, in
particular in terms of the viewer figures for video (VOD) on the internet and mobile version of
TGCOM24.it! (340 million videos viewed in 2019). The multimedia offering of TGCOM24 is followed by
over 30 million unique browsers per month2. In relation to mobile use, there were over 6 million
downloads of the TGCOM24 app, with an increase of 3.6% compared to the previous year (data updated
to December 2019), SportMediaset app downloads amounted to 4,061,162 (December 2019) with an
increase of 3.4% compared to December 2018.

1 Source: Webtrekk; figure includes TGCOM24, SportMediaset and meteo.it
2TgCom24 TAL Aggregate
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DEVELOPMENT OF IN-HOUSE PRODUCTIONS

The development of the number of hours of in-house productions (in 2019 amounting to over 8,800
hours of in-house productions broadcast: about 7,600 hours of in-house produced News and about
1,200 hours of in-house produced Sport broadcast, including events, news and comment) is the result
of a structure rooted in key organisational, technological and logistical innovations to the process:

The News Mediaset Agency

Created in March 2010, the agency provides a constant stream of news for Tgcom24 and supplies
content to the three national television news broadcasts (Tg5, Tg4 and Studio Aperto) and for
infotainment (Videonews). In January 2020, the team of journalists numbered 216. Another essential
step was taken in June 2019 to strengthen the Agency and make it boost its multimedia credentials.
This organisational development, linked to the closure of six stations (TG4, Studio Aperto, Tgcom24,
Sport Mediaset, Pagina 101 and RMC), led to a change in the Agency's mission as it turned from a mere
station services provider into a producer and distributor of cross-platform content through its brands. A
total of 67 journalists transferred from the individual stations to the Agency.

The Dalet Digital Production System.

First introduced into newsrooms as of 2011, with a view to integrating all news reporting programmes
into a single digital environment, the Dalet system is today fully up and running on the News in the
Cologno Monzese and Rome Palatino production centres and in the 9 regional newsrooms. The
newsrooms of the 2 production centres are synchronised, allowing all users to access the same content,
regardless of location. The digitalisation of TG5 has reduced both the use of post-production facilities
and production costs. The extension of the digital system has made journalists even more autonomous
in searching for video material, freeing up resources that are used more effectively in describing archive
material. Thanks to the shared technology, the system enables real-time exchange of services and
content without any physical transfer of materials, facilitating synergies between publications and news
programmes. In early 2017, the Dalet system was updated from version 3.5 to Galaxy. In 2018, the first
structured approach to rights management was introduced, with the recognition of the REUTERS and
APTN agencies WATERMARKS. The development of this part of material management will be one of the
most important work strands of the coming years. In 2019, streamlining activities continued so as to
enable materials to be more quickly exchanged between the various Dalet systems (news, tg5, sport,
mam). The exchange of videos to and from all external post-production rooms was streamlined using
Dalet's material export rules. In September 2019, a project began to upgrade Dalet’s tg5 system from
the current Galaxy version to Galaxy five, which introduces artificial intelligence into news production
systems.

Logistics

As regards logistics, the production centre in Cologno Monzese houses TG4 and Studio Aperto at studio
4 (the only shared studio for two national news programmes), while TGCom24 is produced in the in
futuristic studio 15. The newsrooms are located in the technologically advanced spaces of Viale Europa
44,

Improved Productivity

Process innovations (organisational, technological and logistical) enabled a significant improvement in
productivity compared to 2011, the year in which the Dalet production system was introduced: against
a reduction of the total cost for News, the number of hours produced in-house more than doubled.
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VIDEONEWS, Production Factory: creating, developing and producing content

Videonews is a network that produces insight programmes for all of Mediaset's generalist channels:
news is no longer the sole domain of dedicated news broadcasts, but also talk shows, debate
programmes, investigative reporting and journalism. In just a handful of years, Videonews has grown to
produce nineteen programmes in 2019, across 200 prime time slots.

The News Department is the main content contributor to the daytime schedule of Canale 5, which is
currently Italy's most viewed channel among the commercial target audience. Videonews produces a
prime time show for Canale 5 and, since September 2019, has produced five prime time shows for Rete
4 broadcast from Monday to Friday across the entire TV season, as well as producing shows for access
prime time, again for Rete 4, all year round (with the exception of the August summer holiday,
Christmas and New Year).

Our programming is on air 7 days a week and revolves around infotainment: a mixture of entertainment
and news. Famous TV stars such as Barbara D'Urso, Federica Panicucci, Silvia Toffanin and Piero
Chiambretti work actively with the newsroom to produce broadcasts that provide insight and comment
on news, current affairs, lifestyle and society.

Top journalists such as Nicola Porro, Paolo Del Debbio, Mario Giordano, Gianluigi Nuzzi, Barbara

Palombelli, Giuseppe Brindisi and Veronica Gentili present features on news, politics and current affairs.
Programmes

= of CANALE 5:
Mattino Cinque, Pomeriggio Cinque, Verissimo, Live-non & la D'Urso, Domenica Live, X-Style, Hype,
Vernice, Supercinema.

=  Oof RETE 4:
Quarta Repubblica, Fuori dal Coro, #CR4-la Repubblica delle Donne, Dritto e Rovescio, Quarto Grado,
Stasera Italia, Confessione Reporter, Pensa in Grande, Dalla Parte degli Animali, Super Partes.

THE ALL NEWS TGCOM24 SYSTEM

The TGCOM24 brand continued to strengthen its multi-platform mission by building an editorial identity
capable of adapting language to its output channels.

In 2019, the All News channel (51 DTT and 509 SKY), reaching 3 million people on an average day,
bolstered its fresh-faced image by taking on new presenters. It doubled its programmes made in
partnership with European organisations and developed collaborations and synergies with international
broadcasters.

Its schedule was also enhanced by new programmes dedicated to sport and the economy, in line with the
channel's market position. As part of its drive to consolidate its editorial content, it successfully
continued the educational programme on TG dei Ragazzi in collaboration with "la Citta dei Bambini e dei
Ragazzi”, at the Old Port of Genoa, a weekly programme broadcast every Sunday afternoon and on air
since 30 October 2016 for a total of 164 original episodes.

The leading position of TGCOM24 on mobile (in December 2019 the TgCom24 app had over 6 million
downloads) and the website figures (almost 10 billion page views in 2019) make the brand a central
asset on the digital landscape. TGCOM24 is also very popular on social media networks, with 2.2
million likes for the official Facebook page (up 3% compared to December 2018 - source: Facebook
Insights) and a Twitter account with 988,000 followers (an increase of 3.8% on December 2018 -
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source: Twitter Insights). The Instagram profile (launched in late 2017) has 577,000 followers (source:
Instagram Insights). The LinkedIn profile was launched in late 2019.

The spread of Breaking News on the RadioMediaset network was also consolidated. TGCOM24 news
shorts are broadcast simultaneously by 5 radio stations on the RadioMediaset® and RadioNorba
networks, at 5 peak audience periods, potentially reaching over 11 million listeners a day and over 26
million listeners a week.

To complete the picture of TgCOM24's cross-media system, we also note breaking news items broadcast
on the Mediaset Free Channels (generalist and thematic channels) that reach about 6 million people a
day during the week and 8 million a day on weekends.

METEO.IT

The Mediaset brand meteo.it is the leading Italian weather forecasting system, spread across TV, online,
mobile and radio, and is completely free of charge.

Meteo.it is a qualified, influential programme in the national scientific sector, with a team of specialists,
journalists and weather experts, with over 10 million users that follow the Mediaset brand's forecasts
each day on a number of multimedia platforms.

Some figures:

- 25 different TV productions per day, 365 days a year, to meet all the needs of the different TV
channels of the Mediaset universe, totalling about 9,200 productions per year.

In 2019, special live events were broadcast during exceptional bad weather events, providing a
public utility service.

- 8 million viewers everyday (unique users, unique contacts) receive the TV information of meteo.it
(cumulated data derived from the meteo.it windows on Mediaset networks).

- Daily radio broadcasts, including Mediaset group radio and other national and regional radio
stations.

- In 2019, monthly digital traffic for www.meteo.it on internet and mobile amounted to 262,465
unique visors a day, with 612,000 page views (daily average on a monthly basis - source: Audiweb),
totalling 31.5 million unique browsers on the internet and app (source: Webtrekk).

- Thereare 1,184,000 meteo.it users on Facebook, 36,700 on Twitter and 113,000 on Instagram.

PRODUCTION PARTNERSHIPS

Partnership Coordination produced 14 original News and Infotainment productions in 2019, broadcast
on generalist and thematic channels.

Of this production volume, 70% was made in collaboration with Publitalia’80 and Mediamond, as part of
the activities of the Branded Content Committee. A further 30% was made from editorial projects in
partnership with international organisations (European Parliament - European Commission). In
particular, the department doubled the volume of productions made under European Parliament
projects, following Invitations to Tender and Calls for Proposals published during the year in the media
sector.

3105, Virgin, R101, Radio Subasio and RMC
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The procured funding gave rise to four formats in collaboration with Mediaset Espafia and Ansa,
broadcast on Mediaset channels in Italy and Spain, and disseminated across Ansa circuits. The
programmes produced were also distributed on the media platforms of the European Commission and
the European Parliament.

The Mediaset information system benefits from valuable original content: in 2019, the Mediaset and
Mondadori Libri collaboration was consolidated, based on the synergistic exchange of editorial content
its aim is to enhance new publications and give authors greater visibility.

TRAINING INITIATIVES

The entire newsroom staff of news programming (Tg5, Tg4, Studio Aperto e Tgcom24) and the
Mediaset News agency are now able to fully use the new digital system: for visualising and selecting
images, editing and voice-over tasks, and scheduling and airing news reports. The summer of 2019 saw
the formation of the Videonews team (35 journalists and 115 production staff), who would be involved
in the soft news digitalisation project, with courses lasting an average of three years.

TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION IN THE NEWS PRODUCTION PROCESS

During 2019, the use of Net Videoboxes (aka Totems) and field units was consolidated, and filming

production equipment was enhanced with drone-mounted cameras.

In May 2019, the first Videonews project was launched (Mattino 5, Pomeriggio 5, Domenica Live and
Fuori dal Coro), replacing the Inews newsroom with the Dalet newsroom. The pilot programmes began
in August, with normal programming beginning in September using Dalet also for broadcasting. In 2019,
a fixed Videobox terminal was set up on IP technology inside the European Parliament in Brussels. Also
in Brussels, Mediaset became the only European television station to have an advanced fixed terminal
inside the Parliament building. In the second half of 2019, a reporting system was developed in-house
which enables the proper management of the material contained in the Dalet system and the monitoring
of production processes. In December, journalists were issued with the first field-test tablets using Dalet
on the Go technology, which allows journalists to see schedules and news agencies, and to quickly share
media (photos, video, audio) directly from the application to the production system regardless of their
location. The tablet also comes with EiTstream, a web application developed in-house that enables
repeats of programmes broadcast by our channels and studios to be viewed from anywhere.

It also contains the FLOW application for managing organisational workflows and approving editing in all
internal and external post-production rooms.

In-house Drama Productions

R.T.I. S.p.A. possesses the know-how and the organisation to select projects and develop the production
of highly popular drama series. These products are commissioned to major national partners and, in
some cases, are sold abroad or leveraged via the non-linear platform, thus contributing to covering
production costs.

In 2019, the drama line continued to be reviewed, which will have an increasing effect in the coming
years both in terms of volumes and new titles.
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R.T.l. continued to film drama productions where possible in Italy, avoiding the use of de-localisation by

investing in professional expertise in the Italian production chain.

Also in 2019, R.T.l. continued its production relationship with its subsidiary Taodue S.r.l., the leading

Italian producer of drama content. Taodue S.r.l. makes audiovisual content exclusively for R.T.I. for use

in television and cinema.

Main Drama Productions in 2019:

The new editorial line led new projects to be delivered in 2019, including: L'ora, a TV series made
by Indiana Production; confirmation of the a sequel to Il silenzio dell’acqua, a TV series made by
Vela Film; Giustizia per tutti, a TV project made by Showlab and starring R. Bova; Masantonio, a TV
series made by Cattleya; and Tutta colpa di Freud, the serialisation of a film project made by Lotus
Film.

During 2019, R.T.l. signed a deal with Netflix to co-finance seven TV movies. So far, the following
projects are in the development/production phase: Sulla stessa onda, Sotto il sole di Riccione, Ultras
and Divin Codino.

It was also confirmed that the 2019 Drama Investment Plan would include the production and
broadcast, in autumn 2019, of the third season of L’isola di Pietro in autumn 2019. The series,
produced by Lux and starring G. Morandi, enjoyed tremendous success among audiences, as it had
in previous seasons.

The ongoing production partnership with holding company Taodue Film S.r.l. led to the completion
of filming and the broadcasting, in autumn 2019, of a sequel to drama production Rosy Abate. This
series, now in its second season, enjoyed tremendous success among audiences, thus placing in
evidence the quality of Taodue productions. During 2019, the production of a new editorial project
on the birth of fashion in Italy, entitled Made in Italy, was completed. This project, which is waiting
to be scheduled next year on Mediaset channels, was previewable on the Amazon Prime platform,

garnering excellent feedback from audiences.
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CONTENT ACQUISITION

Acquisition of Broadcasting Rights (Movies, TV Series)

R.T.l. S.p.A. owns the biggest television rights library in Italy and one of the biggest in Europe.

The Company's objective is to manage the Mediaset Group's asset base of television broadcasting rights
for Italy, by acquiring, developing and producing rights for domestic broadcasting on Free TV and Pay
TV.

The following table provides a breakdown of the television broadcasting rights acquired for broadcast on
free-to-air and pay TV channels by the Mediaset Group at 31 December 2019.

TV rights library breakdown at 31 December

2019 Free Tv Pay Tv-PPV

No. of No. of

titles Episodes titles Episodes
Film 4.9 4.9 2.1 2.1
Telefilm 0.9 16.5 0.5 9.4
Telenovelas 0.1 5.3 0 0
Mini-series 0.3 1.3 0.1 0.3
Soap 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.1
Tv movies 0.8 0.9 0.2 0.2
Documentaries 0.3 1.7 0.0 0.5
Others (Musicals, Variety, Short,
Docum., ecc.) 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.1
Total 7.5 32.6 2.9 12.6

The television broadcasting rights library is constantly being expanded through acquisitions from:

Major American film studios: R.T.l. S.p.A. has existing agreements with all major U.S. producers and
distributors (Universal, Warner Bros. International, Twentieth Century Fox, Paramount, Walt Disney and
Sony). Under the agreements, rights are acquired for an average duration of 5 years, with permission
for five or six television showings. In particular, there are strategic multi-year agreements in place with
Warner Bros International Television Distribution Inc., which on the basis of the volume deal signed
during 2015, ensures the Group has exclusive access for Italy for all television platforms and
exploitation windows, both in linear (Free/Pay) and non-linear pay (SvoD, On Demand) mode, to movies
and TV series distributed by the US major for the periods 2016-2020, and with Universal, which on the
basis of the deal signed during 2018, ensures the Group has exclusive access for Italy for free-to-air
rights to movie and television productions for the periods 2019-2022. Warner and Universal account for
40% and 50%, respectively, of the world’'s major film productions.

The following developments took place in 2019:

- A significant two-year movie and TV-series deal was struck with Fox; in particular, this secured the
renewal of cartoon franchise The Simpsons.

- In terms of major productions, a two-year deal was struck with Paramount to premiere movies and
TV series on free-to-air television and to broadcast top productions from the evergreen movie
catalogue.

International television producers: R.T.l. S.p.A. has long-standing and significant arrangements with
U.S. and European producers for the acquisition of television rights to highly-popular productions such

as television movies, soap operas, mini-series and television series.
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The serial nature of the majority of these works, produced in seasons, makes for a long-term
producer/user relationship and enables audiences to be retained by the broadcasting network.

Italian film producers/distributors: National operators provide packages consisting of both television
broadcasting rights for self-produced films (which, together with European products, are particularly
significant also in view of compliance with broadcasting and investment quotas established by the
television broadcasting regulations) and broadcasting rights for international films.

In 2019, the recent focus being placed on Italian film - both in terms of the Group's in-house productions
and third-party productions - continued with the acquisition of the broadcasting rights to the films
distributed by Medusa Film and Vision Distribution during the 2018 season.

As for classic movies, the owned film library was also enhanced during 2019 with the acquisition of full
ownership rights to the films directed by Massimo Troisi, including /I Postino, Pensavo fosse
Amore:...invece era un calesse and Le vie del signore sono finite. An illustrious deal was also struck with
Melampo for the television broadcast rights to the masterpieces of Roberto Benigni, including La Vita é
bella, Non ci resta che piangere and Pinocchio.

The channel Free TV Focus consolidated its purchase of documentary and factual content with
approximately 400 hours acquired and a supplier portfolio of over 30 independent Italian and

international operators.
In 2019, R.T.I. S.p.A. strived to further strengthen its free TV and pay TV broadcasting rights library.
The many agreements signed and projects developed included:

= acquisition for free TV and pay TV networks, by virtue of existing agreements, of availability for
films including: Ocean’'s Eight, 15:17 To Paris, Napoli Velata, Poveri Ma Ricchissimi, Ready Player
One, Rampage;

= acquisition for free TV networks of availability for the films: It, Geostorm, Justice League, Terapia
di Coppia per Amanti, Despicable Me 3, Fortunata, Pacific Rim 2: Up-rising, Fifty Shades Freed, X-
Men Apocalypse, Ice Age: Collision Course, Rogue One: A Star Wars Story, Guardians Of The Galaxy
2, Pirates Of The Caribbean: Dead Men Tell No Tales, Baywatch, Transformers: The Last Knight;

= acquisition for Pay TV networks, by virtue of existing agreements, of availability films including: A
Star Is Born, Smallfoot, Fantastic Beasts: The Crimes Of Grindel, La Prima Pietra;

= the acquisition of availability of free TV and pay TV first-run series: Legacies, Roswell New Mexico,
God Friended Me;

= acquisition of free and pay TV rights for new episodes of the most successful TV series, such as:
Riverdale, Will&Grace Il Ritorno, Law & Order: Special Victims Unit, Suits, Chicago Fire, Chicago PD,
Mr. Robot, The Goldbergs, The Big Bang Theory, Arrow, Flash, DC Legends of Tomorrow;

= the acquisition of availability of free TV first-run series: Shooter, Magnum PI, Station 19, The Fix,
Miracle Workers, Harry Quebert, La Catedral del Mar;

= acquisition of free TV rights for new episodes of the most successful TV series, such as: New
Amsterdam, Black-ish, Grown-ish, Simpsons, Family Guy;

= acquisition of Pay TV rights for first-run series: The Perfectionists;

= acquisition of pay TV broadcasting rights for the new episodes of the series: Splitting Up Togheter,
Kripton, Orange is The New Black, Claws, Animal Kingdom;

= acquisition from Medusa Film S.p.A., for the current television season, of films including: L'Ora
Legale, La Ragazza nella Nebbia, The Place, Mamma o Papa.

Acquisition of sports broadcasting rights

On 13 September 2019, R.T.I. S.p.A. and Sky lItalia S.r.l. entered an agreement for the sub-licencing of

free-to-air broadcasting rights, via digital terrestrial television, satellite, IPTV, Internet and mobile, to a

44



e

selected game in each Matchweek of the UEFA Champions League, seasons 2019-2020 and 2020-
2021, plus highlights, in Italy, San Marino and the Vatican City.

On 11 November 2019, ATP Media Operations Ltd confirmed to R.T.l. S.p.A. that it had been awarded
Italian free-to-air broadcasting rights to the "“Internazionali BNL d'ltalia” for the years 2021, 2022 and
2023, as well as exclusive rights to broadcast one match per day of the ATP Masters Rome.

On 26 November 2019, R.T.I. S.p.A. and DENTSU SPORT EUROPE LTD entered a licencing agreement
covering the acquisition of certain Italian free-to-air broadcasting rights to the FIFA Club World Cup
2019 and 2020, to be exercised exclusively save for the rights reserved by the Licensor, via cable,
satellite, DTT, IPTV, Internet Broadband and mobile.

On 27 November 2019, R.T.I. S.p.A. and DAZN Limited entered an agreement for the sub-licencing of
free-to-air broadcasting rights (DTT, cable, satellite and online streaming) to the “Super Bowl" (2
February 2020) and the “Thanksgiving Game" (28 November 2019), in Italy, San Marino and the
Vatican City.

LINEAR AND NON LINEAR, FREE-TO-AIR AND PAY PER VIEW CONTENT
DISTRIBUTION

Free-to-air and pay linear offering

Mediaset Group's free-to-air offering currently consists of 17 channels covering all major targets for
advertisers, including three long-standing general interest channels (Canale 5, Italia 1 and Rete 4), and
a diverse portfolio of thematic and semi-generalist channels: Boing, Boing Plus, Cartoonito, Iris, La 5,
Mediaset Extra, Mediaset Extra 2 (replaced by Cine34 in January 2020), Italia 2, Top Crime, TgCom 24,
R101 TV, Virgin Radio TV (also viewable on satellite from 2020), Canale 20 and Focus.

The Group's general interest channels — Canale 5, Italia 1 and Rete 4 — are controlled by R.T.l. SpA,
which is responsible for the creation and development of programme schedules, the production of
original content and the acquisition of television rights. The Mediaset networks' overall offering is
designed to attract audiences between the ages of 15 and 64, which is the target audience of greatest
interest for advertisers and a segment in which Mediaset is a strong market leader.

Canale 5 is the Group's main network and is targeted at the modern Italian family.
Italia 1 is the leading Italian channel for younger viewers.

Rete 4 targets its scheduling at a more mature audience, in terms of age and income.
The free-to-air multichannel offering includes the following channels:

Boing, launched on 20 November 2004, was the first Italian free-to-air children’s channel. The channel
was set up as a joint venture between R.T.l. S.p.A., which holds 51% of the share capital of Boing S.p.A.,
and Turner Broadcasting Systems Europe Limited, a Time Warner Group company, which owns the
rights to some of the world's most popular cartoons. Despite growing competition, the channel has
capitalised on its strong position by promoting and boosting the fame and attractiveness of the brand.

Cartoonito, launched on 22 August 2011, is a channel aimed at pre-school-age children (up to 6 years
old). Like Boing, it is a joint venture between Mediaset and Turner Broadcasting Systems Europe
Limited. Cartoonito is targeted at a more specific audience than Boing.

Boing Plus, launched on 11 July 2019. The schedule is made up of a combination of programmes
broadcast by the “Boing"” and “Cartoonito” channels.
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Iris is a thematic channel focused on quality films. In addition to all the great movie classics, it also
broadcasts programmes about cinema news, film stars and leading film festivals.

La 5 features programmes targeted at a modern female audience.

Mediaset Extra is a thematic channel that broadcasts a selection of the best in Mediaset entertainment
programmes from the past and present.

Mediaset Extra 2, launched on 11 July 2019, broadcasts a one hour delay of the main channel
“Mediaset Extra” during the daytime, with different programming in the evenings. When the Cine34
channel launched on 18 January 2020, Mediaset Extra 2 ceased broadcasting.

Italia 2 is targeted at younger male viewers. featuring TV series, sitcoms, cult cartoons and sports and
music programmes, in addition to live sports coverage of events such as world championship motorcycle
racing.

Top Crime is the network dedicated to the investigation and police drama genre launched in June 2013.

Tgecom24 is Mediaset's all-news channel. Broadcast free-to-air, 24-hours a day, it also online at

Tgcom24.it and viewable on smart phones and tablets through free apps.

R101 TV is the thematic channel affiliated with R101, which covers music; it broadcasts music videos

on rotation and some repeats of concerts already broadcast on Italia 1.

Virgin Radio TV is the thematic channel affiliated with Virgin Radio, which covers music; it broadcasts
music videos on rotation. Since January 2020, Virgin Radio has featured in Sky's satellite package and,
since 1 March 2020, it has returned to DTT. In the meantime, at the outset of 2020 its position on DTT
was taken over by Radio 105 TV, a new thematic affiliate channel of Radio 105, whose programming is

based on broadcasting back-to-back music videos.

Canale 20, launched on 3 April 2018 with exclusive live broadcasting of the UEFA Champions League
quarter-final match between Juventus and Real Madrid, offers the top-quality contemporary films,
innovative TV series and other sporting events.

Focus, launched on 17 May 2018, is the TV version of Italy's most read cultural and scientific magazine,
covering science, nature, environment, animals, technology, history and current events with simple,
clear and compelling language.

Following the agreement made with Sky on 30 March 2018, Premium's traditional DTT offering was
extended to Sky customers on satellite and via a new DTT subscription offered by Sky. On 31 May 2019,
Mediaset stopped directly offering Mediaset Premium channels, including Premium Play, to its
subscribers over the DTT platform. From 1 June 2019 Mediaset Premium channels have been available
on SKY SAT DTH, SKY DTT and MEDIASET INFINITY.

In 2019, Elettronica Industriale submitted 158 applications for authorisation to install new equipment,
modify aerials or change broadcasting power to Municipalities and the Ministry in an effort to improve
multiplex coverage and television signal quality. 99% of changes were authorised and implemented
during the year. The authorisation process for the remainder of changes is still under way and is
expected to be successfully completed in early 2020.

Programme Schedules and Audience Share

The following tables show details of the programme schedules for 2019 and 2018, for the different
types of offerings (generalist, multi-channel, and pay TV networks), broken down by the main television
genres attributable to in-house productions and purchased rights.
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In particular, in 2019 each of the generalist networks broadcast 8,760 hours of scheduled programmes
for a total of 26,290 hours of airtime. A total 48.7% of those programmes were original in-house

productions.

Mediaset Networks Shedule - Broadcasted Hours 2019

Types Generalist Networks Multi-Channel Pay-tv Networks Total Mediaset Networks
Film 3,876 14.7% 10,383 9.1% 33,118 44.5% 47,377 22.1%
Fiction 8,472 32.2% 29,723 26.2% 33,658 45.2% 71,853 33.5%
Cartoons 1,143 4.3% 21,484 18.9% g - 22,627 10.6%
Total tv rights 13,491 51.3% 61,590 54.3% 66,776 89.7% 141,857 66.2%
News 5,764 21.9% 9,517 8.4% 2,610 3.5% 17,891 8.4%
Sport 666 2.5% 978 0.9% 207 0.3% 1,851 0.9%
Entertainment 4,939 18.8% 31,090 27.4% 4,666 6.3% 40,695 19.0%
Education 536 2.0% 8,250 7.3% 165 0.2% 8,951 4.2%
Teleshopping 894 3.4% 2,063 1.8% - - 2,957 1.4%
Total in-house
productions 12,799 48.7% 51,898 45.7% 7,648 10.3% 72,345 33.8%

Total 26,290 100.0% 113,488 100.0% 74,424 100.0% 214,202 100.0%

Mediaset Networks Shedule - Broadcasted Hours 2018

Types Generalist Networks Multi-Channel Pay-tv Networks Total Mediaset Networks
Film 3,891 14.8% 10,034 10.7% 32,621 38.8% 46,546 22.8%
Fiction 8,271 31.5% 27,712 29.6% 29,241 34.8% 65,224 32.0%
Cartoons 1,180 4.5% 16,579 17.7% 3,608 4.3% 21,367 10.5%
Total tv rights 13,342 50.8% 54,325 58.1% 65,470 77.8% 133,137 65.3%
News 5,848 22.3% 8,910 9.5% 2,849 3.4% 17,607 8.6%
Sport 1,029 3.9% 2,113 2.3% 10,505 12.5% 13,647 6.7%
Entertainment 4,860 18.5% 20,259 21.7% 5,079 6.0% 30,198 14.8%
Education 382 1.5% 5,193 5.6% 191 0.2% 5,766 2.8%
Teleshopping 819 3.1% 2,760 2.9% 31 - 3,610 1.8%
Total in-house
productions 12,938 49.2% 39,235 41.9% 18,655 22.2% 70,828 34.7%

Total 26,280 100.0% 93,560 100.0% 84,126 100.0% 203,966 100.0%
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Total audience over the 24-hour period in 2019 averaged 9,859,000 viewers.

Total audience trend - 24 hours
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Mediaset channels closed 2019 with a 32.5% audience share in the prime time slot, a 31.6% share over

the 24-hour period and a 31.7% share of daytime viewers.

Mediaset confirmed itself as ratings leader for the commercial target in all time slots; for this target

segment, Canale 5 attracted the highest number of viewers in all the time slots and Italia 1 continued to

be the third network.

Of particular note was the strong performance of the thematic channels, which together raised

Mediaset's total audience share by 7 points and its commercial target audience share by over 8 points.
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&= MEDIASET

Peak Season Schedule

Mediaset’s spring and autumn schedules won a total audience share of 32.8% in the prime time slot,
32.5% over the 24-hour period and 32.4% in the daytime slot for all viewers, and ratings leader for the

commercial target audience in all time slots.

SPRING-AUTUMN 2019 % COMMERCIAL TARGET SHARE
15-64 years
34.8 34.8 35.6
32.1
29.8 29.7
24 hours Day Time Prime Time
O Mediaset @ERAI
SPRING-AUTUMN 2019
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32.5 32.4 32.8
24 hours Day Time Prime Time
O Mediaset RAI
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Non-linear free-to-air offering

R.T.Il. S.p.A. oversees the digital activities of the Mediaset Group through the Digital Business
Department, which aims to create services and content for non-linear use deployable across all the main
connected digital platforms (desktop devices, mobile and wearable devices, tablets, smart TVs, etc.) and
the promotion of digital extension initiatives for free to air programmes (Radio and TV).

In 2019, the collection of Mediaset websites and applications averaged a Total Digital Audience per
month of 19.6 million unique users, with an average of over 225 million page views per month (Source:
Audiweb 2.0 average January-November 2019).

As regards video consumption, in summer 2019 Auditel's first digital research extension was brought to
market with the aim of estimating the online consumption of content from television broadcasters: in
the period from 8 September to 8 December 2019 (autumn peak period), Mediaset position its self as
the number on broadcaster with a 40.3% share, measured based on TTS (total time spent), with an
advantage of approximately 9 percentage points over the second-placed market broadcaster.

In terms of digital, Mediaset's product range is divided into two main areas:

Video Hub: Total consumption of Mediaset Internet Properties video content reached 1.4 billion (video
views) during the year, a figure up 68% on the previous year, generating a 213 million video hours
in total (Source: Webtrekk). The chosen platform for the viewing of hub content is Mediaset Play,
which has driven overall consumption, with approximately two-thirds of the total hours viewed on
Mediaset websites and applications in 2019 having been viewed through Mediaset Play (an increase
of +74% on last year). This result was achieved by taking action on all essential levers: user
experience, interface, technology, content management, editorial management, product
positioning. Particularly as far as interface and functionality are concerned, a continuous
improvement process was adopted to guarantee the mass uptake of the platform by end users (the
mobile app, in particular, saw 1.8 million downloads during the second half-year alone). As far as
content is concerned, integrating the Digital Content Factory with programme editorial teams has
allowed a number of television formats to be rolled out across digital media while staying true to
each programme's editorial line. To highlight one example, in 2019 Le lene was the most watched
brand among Mediaset programmes in terms of on demand viewing. As far as positioning is
concerned, a product advertising drive began in 2019 with the aim of making Mediaset Play a
leading light in online entertainment, with viewers encouraged to check in at all times of the day,
such as when pausing for a breath amidst their busy schedule, when they put their feet up to relax
or to liven up their social lives. Also in 2019, a digital marketing campaign was launched with more
than 300 million ads sent out by push notification and email, reaching 10 million users and thus
helping to increase audiences and video consumption. It is worth reminding that on the Main Screen
- a platform not yet monitored by Auditel's digital research - Mediaset Play is only available on
HBBTV and MHP compatible smart TVs, through an application that allows access to linear
channels: once tuned into a Mediaset channel, viewers can use their remote to watch Mediaset
programmes (entertainment, drama, news, movies, documentaries) and extra content on demand.
Furthermore, the Restart option allows viewers to return to the start of a programme while it is
being broadcast, or to watch a programme’s highlights near-live. In Q4 2019, this application was
used by more than 150,000 television sets per day (an increase of +76% on the previous year) and
those who watched videos using this service tended to have habits of lengthy consumption, similar
to viewers of linear television (mainly long formats).
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Information Hub: the Information hub, under the TGCOM24 brand, is internally divided into News
(under the TGCOM24 heading), Sports Information (under the Sportmediaset heading) and Weather
Information (under the Meteo.it brand).

During the year, the Information hub recorded a Total Audience of 2,175,000 unique users per day
(Source: Audiweb 2.0 average January-November 2019, overall activities with TAL), with TGCOM24
consolidating its position in third place in the Italian digital market.

In terms of on-the-move consumption, the suite of Mediaset Apps has established itself in the top two
positions in the Italian broadcasting sector (Source: Audiweb 2.0 - January-November 2019): in this
context, the free Tgcom24 App exceeded 6.0 million downloads, the weather forecasting service
(Meteo.it) reached 11.2 million downloads with its App and finally the Sportmediaset App reached 4.1
million downloads. (Source: App Annie at 31 December 2019).

As for the Radio segment, the digital platforms of R101 and Radio Monte Carlo were refreshed in 2019.
New music aggregator United Music was also released. This service is available on the app, the website
and is integrated into the Mediaset Play app.

Content distribution agreements with all our partners continued into 2019: IOL, which runs the two
leading web portals Libero and Virgilio; Microsoft (msn.it); Citynews (Today.it and all subsidiary
websites); Fanpage (Ciaopeople group); and SuperguidaTyv, Italy's number one digital TV guide.

These agreements enhance and promote the content chosen by R.T.l., enabling it to reach an additional
user catchment, which may be leveraged based on the differing needs of the broadcaster and the
licensee. When also taking external distribution into account, the total video views surpassed 1.5 billion
for the year.

In relation to Social Media Network presence, Mediaset confirmed itself as one of the leading media
companies in creating engagement with its communities: 41 million total likes on Mediaset network
Facebook pages, over 8 million followers on Twitter accounts and more than 12 million followers on

Instagram accounts.

Social Media Network activity allows the attention of the active audience to be captured on various

channels, differing by age and composition.

The distribution on social media of exclusive content, previews and live streaming also aim to promote
the TV schedule by attempting to increase programme awareness to a digital audience, creating
interaction opportunities. Short programme extracts accompanied by a direct link to our websites

attracts traffic to Mediaset Play, increasing video viewing numbers.

The year 2019 saw the birth of our first synergies between the AVOD of Mediaset Play and the SVOD of
Infinity, which will see the creation of new revenue streams linked to the digital business on free-to-air
channels. More importantly, however, the organisational synergies will lead to a shared customer
journey aimed at bringing free-to-air/pay-TV users into line as a single Mediaset customer.

Non-linear pay offering - Infinity

In 2013, the Mediaset Group launched Infinity, the first on-demand streaming service in Italy, offering a
rich catalogue of films, cartoons, TV series, programmes and drama, available to watch without
advertising breaks, where and when the viewer wants and from any internet connected enabled device.
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Through Infinity, the Mediaset Group aims to create a service that makes great cinema available to all,
easily and without the limitations of traditional pay TV. Infinity offers thousands of ever-available
content items; a simple, clear and constraint-free commercial offering; availability on a wide range of
connected devices; and the ability to satisfy even the most technologically sophisticated customers
through value-added features.

Infinity: Cinema first and foremost. In 2019, Infinity consolidated its position in the Italian OTT
landscape as the service of preference for film lovers: Infinity Premiere, 4K and great movies for all
tastes. Infinity Premiere continued to be a highly successful initiative: movies such as “The Mule", “IT"
and “Wonder Woman" made up a suite of great previews. Great cinema viewed at the highest quality
with 4K and HDR technology, further enhances viewers' cinematic experience: full box sets of the
Batman and Harry Potter film series, as well as “A Star is Born", are just some of the films brought
together to form a unigue cinematic catalogue on the OTT service. The catalogue of TV series is also
continuing to expand, with new season previews of Riverdale and Young Sheldon, as well as full box sets
of The Big Bang Theory and Vampire Diaries.

A simple, clear and constraint-free commercial offer: Infinity is offered at a monthly price of EUR 7.99.
Customers wishing to subscribe can do so entirely autonomously either online or, if connected to the
internet, directly from their television set. All new customers have a cooling-off period of one month.
During 2019, various partnership initiatives were launched whereby Infinity is offered bundled with
other products and services provided by partner companies. In this respect, new partnerships have been
struck with Wind, American Express and Enel, while also continuing our partnerships with others such as
Playstation, Paypal and Vodafone.

Available on a wide range of connected devices: Infinity is available on over 2.000 different device
models, including: PC, Mac, Android tablet, iPad, smart TV, Smart phone, iPhone, Playstation, XBOX and
digital terrestrial set-top boxes. In 2019, the number of compatible devices reached a record high, thus

ensuring that the service reaches almost every corner of the market.

Able to satisfy even the most technologically sophisticated customers through value-added features: a
range of features is available on Infinity that aim to enhance customer's user experience. The content is
available in high definition, 4K UHD and HDR, with subtitles and audio both in Italian and original
language. Infinity features a recommendation engine for content which, analysing consumer habits,
offers each customer content that is always new and in line with their preferences. In 2019, the number
of devices making it possible to directly register from First Screen devices was expanded further
(Samsung, LG, Hisense, Hbbtv, Android TV, PlayStation). In 2019, Infinity became the first service in
Italy to fully integrate Google voice Assistant and can now interact with all devices compatible with this
technology (Android smartphones and tablets and all Google-certified speakers). Also last year, Infinity's
partnership with Nexi enabled it to further enhance its range of payment methods with the onboarding
of Amazon Pay, thus making the service more accessible than ever. A "Single Sign-On" facility was also
enabled between Infinity and the other Mediaset services (Mediaset Play, Sport Mediaset, TG com, etc.),

which allows users to use the same username and password to access all Mediaset services.

RADIO OFFER

In the three-year period 2016-2018, the Mediaset Group has established its commercial radio sector
through a series of acquisitions made up of R101, Radio 105 and Virgin Radio Italy, Radio Subasio and
RMC.
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R101 joins Radio 105, Virgin Radio Italy, Radio Monte Carlo and Radio Subasio as one of Mediaset's
broadcasters operating in the commercial radio sector in Italy.

In 2019, its editorial activity aimed to consolidate the positioning of the station as a “music station”
featuring the right mix of music and entertainment, targeted at a strictly adult audience.

The R101 range represents a genuinely integrated system that focuses on music and entertainment
across any channel a consumer wishes to use, embracing all types of media and various different touch
points (TV, radio, digital and events).

The main values that make its market approach stand out are:
- Its authoritativeness in music and content
- Its measured tone: a radio station that is sane and free of vulgarity

- lts positivity and sunny disposition: it entertains with its light approach and moments of
amusement.

The broadcaster has a team of professional presenters who add to the music with their high-quality
presentation skills. The time slots allocated to the different hosts were streamlined and reworked during
the year, with the addition of new and highly skilled hosts. The biggest scheduling shakeup was the
addition of Fernando Proce, a leading Italian radio presenter, who in September 2019 began presenting
the radio show "Procediamo”, which is broadcast live on radio and on DTT TV channel 167. Another new
entry in 2019 was Finley, a well-known Italian pop-rock band, who entertain commuters travelling home
from work between 5pm and 8pm with "I trafficanti di R101". Fabio de Vivo also joined the R101 team
in 2019, co-presenting with Lucilla Agosti in the 2pm-5pm slot. The “odd couple” of R101, Kati and
Alvin, continue to feature between 12pm and 2pm every day, introducing guests and celebrities with
their unique brand of comedy and chat. Also going from strength to strength is "La Banda di R101", the
station's morning show with Cristiano Militello, Paolo Dini and Lester, Riccardo Russo, Chiara Tortorella
and Leonardo Fiaschi.

In 2019, an important communication plan was implemented with the dual objective of increasing brand
visibility and strengthening the station's musical positioning.

In terms of major live music shows, R101 was the official radio station for Italian concerts by some of
the greatest stars of international music, including Elton John, Backstreet Boys, Imagine Dragons,

Shawn Mendes and Bryan Adams.

As far as TV collaborations are concerned, the station was a partner Canale 5 game show All together
now and, from October, was the official radio station of Amici 19. This talent show, hosted by Maria de
Filippi, was also rolled out on radio, with schoolchildren taking over as Djs on the programme Amici di
R101 between 8pm and 9pm every Sunday.

As for technology, a project as launched to consolidate and optimise the station’s frequencies and to
progressively maintain transmission equipment and devices. The new Radio Ter survey recorded the
following audience figures for R101 at the end of 2019: 2,125,000 average daily listeners and
11,257,000 listeners in 7 days.

Radio 105 joins R101, Virgin Radio Italy, Radio Monte Carlo and Radio Subasio as one of Mediaset's
broadcasters operating in the commercial radio sector in Italy.

Radio 105 is the leading entertainment radio station for the "young adults" target.

Entertainment and music: this is the mission of Radio 105, the go-to station for young Italians thanks to
its daily suite of programmes and unique personalities.
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Radio 105 has some of the most popular programs in Italy: “Tutto Esaurito”, the morning show with
“Captain” Marco Galli and his crew and “Lo Zoo di 105", the most irreverent programme in Italy, with
Marco Mazzoli and friends.

Besides these stand-out shows, the station constantly experiments with new formats and hosts.

Radio 105's goal is to join in with the passions of its listeners, making every event an opportunity to
involve the community and feel an active part of it. During the year various Backstage Experience
format competitions were held, giving listeners and users the chance to win exclusive Artist meet &
greets during live concerts.

A major advertising scheme was drawn up in support of the event held on Milan on 8 July to celebrate
the 20th anniversary of Lo Zoo di 105.

Advertising on TV, digital and social media for the campaign “Radio 105: Proud to be different”, which
promotes diversity. Radio 105 is a diverse station, characterised by a wide variety of styles,
programmes and personalities aimed at an audience that is also diverse.

The station's “Proud to be different” payoff, launched in 2018, points to its positioning: unique because

it's different, because it's goes against the norm, varied and original.
Local presence and contact with people is one of the station's most strategic features.

Radio 105 also actively participated in important events including the Rome Marathon - promoting the
non-competitive fun run, Gru Village 105 Music Festival - a environmentally sustainable festival of
artists in Grugliasco, Giffoni Film Festival - the famous children's and youth film festival held in the town
of Giffoni Valle Piana in the province of Salerno, Milan Games Week - the Italian video games fair popular
with millennials - and many other events across the country.

Radio 105 is also the Official Radio Station of AC Milan and Monza Calcio in the football world and
Olimpia Milano and the NBA in the world of basketball.

From a musical point of view, Radio 105 has a pop, dance and urban profile with some features related
to the world of electronic music and the new phenomenon Trap to which Radio 105 has dedicated a
radio programme, an app and a social media format to channel its communication towards its target

audience.

All Radio 105's activities are designed for native cross-media exploitation; the station sees its
community as a network that can be accessed through various touch points (radio, website, app, social).
In 2019, an editorial social media strategy was implemented on all of the station’s official online profiles
(Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, Youtube and Tik Tok) using actions and means of communication that
were consistent with the social media platform in question.

From a technology point of view, signal coverage was improved during the year in Veneto, Emilia
Romagna, Sicily, Marche, Calabria and Lombardy, through the acquisition of new frequencies.
Significant developmental maintenance activities were also carried out on transmission equipment and

systems.

The new Radio Ter survey recorded the following audience figures at the end of 2019: 4,603,000
average daily listeners and 14,797,000 listeners in 7 days.

Virgin Radio Italy joins Radio 105, R101, Radio Monte Carlo and Radio Subasio as one of Mediaset's
broadcasters operating in the commercial radio sector in Italy.
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Virgin Radio is a true international Lovemark: its strong STYLE ROCK music positioning puts musical
programming at its heart, featuring carefully selected songs and the right balance of current and classic
songs.

Virgin Radio's mission is to be the go-to station for the community of rock music fans in Italy.

The station's schedule features some of the leading talents in the world of rock music in Italy: DJ Ringo,
Paola Maugeri, Dr. Feelgood, Massimo Cotto, Andrea Rock and Giulia Salvi are just some of the names
that light up Virgin Radio's daily schedule. From September, the station's radio schedule was bolstered
by the entry of Alteria, who joined Andrea Rock in presenting Virgin Generation.

2019 was a fundamental year in the image strengthening process for the Virgin Radio brand: several
world-famous rock stars lent their image in support of the Rock Ambassador campaign, a project that
saw artists such as Iggy Pop, Liam Gallagher and Marky Ramone come out in support of the station and
the rock values it embodies.

Live music continues to represent one of the cornerstones of the station's positioning: in 2019, Virgin
Radio was involved in some of Italy's most important rock events, including Firenze Rocks (featuring The
Smashing Pumpkins, The Cure, Eddie Vedder and many others) and the Italian dates of tours by Muse

and Kiss. The station also conducted an Italian-exclusive live broadcast of Slash's concert from Milan.

Community engagement did not only take place through concerts but also through a series of on-field
activities appropriate to the target audience and linked to the world of sport, especially in the
motorsport sector: Virgin Radio participated actively in important events including the Superbike World

Championship and the Verona Motorbike Expo. It was also Italy's official radio station for the NBA.

Virgin Radio is also very active on the digital front, with a very large community on its website, social

media channels and mobile app.

From the technology point of view, signal coverage was improved during the year in Campania,
Lombardy and Piedmont, through the acquisition of new frequencies. Significant developmental

maintenance activities were also carried out on transmission equipment and systems.

The new Radio Ter survey recorded the following audience figures for Virgin Radio at the end of 2019:
2,841,000 average daily listeners and 7,867,000 listeners in 7 days.

Radio Monte Carlo is the Principality of Monaco's Italian Radio station, an internationally recognised
and highly prestigious brand.

The refined musical selection, up-to-date information on current events and new trends, as well as a
keen interest in its listeners' passions make Radio Monte Carlo a must in terms of lifestyle, design,

cinema, art, fashion, travel and sports.

The Radio Monte Carlo schedule features genuine icons of radio such as Rosaria Renna and Max
Venegoni, Kay Rush, Maurizio Di Maggio and Nick The Nightfly, with the new entry of Tamara Dona and
Guido Bagatta, as well as a special “Dardust Night” broadcast on Friday evenings between 10pm and
lam.

In September 2019, its brand identity was strengthened with a communication strategy based around
using only the dark blue of its logo, while an institutional communication campaign was created to
reaffirm and consolidate the radio station's exclusive and distinctive market position. At the heart of this
communication strateqgy is a delicate bottle of perfume with the slogan “The essence of music”, backed
by a significant campaign in newspapers, printed press, outdoor media and TV. In line with the brand's
restyling, the graphics on the website were given an elegant makeover and an user-friendly app was
created to provide everyday updates of the radio station's news.
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The station aims to become an operator accessible from different touch points (radio, internet, app,
social media) and, in 2019, it launched a drive to analyse its official social media profiles (Facebook,
Instagram, Twitter) so as to find consistent ways of communicating with its target audience.

Radio Monte Carlo also marked the 30th anniversary of “Monte Carlo Nights" by releasing a triple-CD
and vinyl box-set compilation.

Great live events are an integral part of the editorial approach that has made Radio Monte Carlo a
landmark station for many artists for years, such as Phil Collins, Dido, Ennio Morricone and Jack
Savoretti.

Radio Monte Carlo also takes part in the country's biggest music events (Piano City, Tener-a-mente,
Time in Jazz, Jazz Mi, etc.) and large-scale events such as Fuori Vinitaly, Healthytude, Taormina Film
Festival, Vogue for Milano, Merano Wine Festival and Man's World.

Major sporting events are another strong point, Radio Monte Carlo is in pole position at the Monte Carlo
F1 Grand Prix and the Rolex Tennis Masters, and it was the official radio station for the Turin Motor
Show.

Radio Monte Carlo is also the Radio Station of Art and Great Exhibitions, which it promotes on its
airwaves after handpicking the most important such events in Italy. These include exhibitions at the
Doge's Palace in Genoa, the Leonardo da Vinci exhibition at the Sforza Castle in Milan, the Ferdinando
Scianna exhibition at the Modern Art Gallery in Palermo and the Case dei Tre Oci in Venice, and the
Frida Kahlo exhibition in Rome.

Partnerships resumed with the National Trust of Italy (FAI), Italian motorway operator SIAS/ASTM, Ford
Bard in Aosta, the Manzoni Theatre in Milan, Teatro Regio in Parma, the City of Genoa, Turismo Torino e
Provincia and, musically, with Blue Note in Milan.

Technologically, signal coverage was improved during the year in the provinces of Parma, Piacenza and
Reggio Emilia, in inland Liguria and Portofino, and in the city of Como, through the acquisition of new
frequencies. Significant developmental maintenance activities were also carried out on transmission
equipment and systems.

The Radio Ter survey recorded the following audience figures for 2019: 1,464,000 average daily
listeners and 6,201,000 listeners in 7 days.

Radio Subasio is the local radio station with network ratings. Established in the regions of Central Italy
for more than 40 years, it is the leader in broadcasting in Umbria, Marche, Lazio, Tuscany and
Campania. After joining the Radio Mediaset Group, the station's coverage was enahnced thanks to the
activation of a new channel in Milan.

The proposed broadcasting of Radio Subasio is oriented towards a predominantly family based target
and is structured on the distinctive elements of tradition, brightness and interactivity, with pop music
that offers great space for Italian music without neglecting the huge international hits. The interviews
and live appointments with the presence of the public, together with the main stars of Italian music all
play a very important role in the programming of the station.

Radio Subasio is very active in Central Italy and supports all kinds of initiatives and territorial events, not
just musical ones: the station is an official media partner of Eurochocolate in Perugia and, this year too,
is the official radio station of the Zoomarine water park near in Rome to name but a few. The
partnership with Sorrisi and Canzoni TV on the occasion of the Sanremo Festival has also continued.

At the end of 2019, the new Radio Ter survey recorded the following listening data for Radio Subasio:
1,853,000 average daily listeners and 5,418,000 listeners in 7 days.
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ADVERTISING

The Mediaset Group operates through two fully-owned advertising sales agencies in Italy: Publitalia '80,
the exclusive sales agency for the free-to-air Mediaset networks; and Digitalia '08, which handles
advertising sales for the pay TV platform (until 31 May 2019) and Premium channels viewable on the
Sky platform.

The Group also owns a 50% interest together with Mondadori in Mediamond, which sells advertising
space on Mediaset Group websites and radio and on the websites of the publications of the Mondadori
Group and other publishers.

In 2019, Publitalia acquired 306 new clients, generating new revenues amounting to 3.4% of the total.
Publitalia’s top 10 groups generated approximately 19.9% of its total commissions.

Italian advertising market

The advertising market closed the year 2019 with total sales of EUR 5.9 billion, down 5.1% (+0.1% net
of direct mail), which in value terms equals a loss of EUR 317 million. In terms of half-year performance,
the performance for the first half-year was more negative on the previous year due to the absence of
the FIFA World Cup (-5.7%); the second half-year closed at -4.3%. If we exclude direct mail, the
advertising market was at -5.2%.

The television segment had the largest market decline, closing at -5.3%. Mediaset closed the year at -
8.3%; however, this came amid the advertised redefinition of its core business perimeters in 2019. If we
compare like for like by excluding the advertising revenues for the key sporting events on the Italian
schedule in 2018, such as free-to-air UEFA Champions League matches, the Pay Calcio service and, in
particular, the FIFA World Cup, then the Mediaset's advertising revenues declined by -3.6%, which
compares favourably to the -4.2% like-for-like market figure. Rai and Sky closed the year with losses of -
2.2% and -1.5%, respectively. La7 was even for the year, albeit with a downward trend during the fourth
guarter. The only broadcaster that experienced slight growth was Discovery, which grew by +0.3%
thanks to the positive performance of its Kids channels (+10.2%), which saw a sharp rise in audience
figures (+9.3%).

By contrast, revenues from Thematic channels (Discovery media) were down by 1.0%.

Print Media closed the year down by 11.6%, as the Magazines segment (-13.9%) suffered heavier losses
than Newspapers (-10.0%).

It was a strong year for Radio (+1.7%), which recorded growth in all quarters except the fourth quarter.
Digital was up 3.5%, recording increases in all months except April and June.
Mediaset's total share of media (TV, Radio, Digital) was 38.3%.

In other media segment, 2019 brought a positive performance in Cinema (+13.8%) and Go TV (+4.5%),
whereas there were decreases for Outdoors (-8.4%) and Transit (-9.4%).
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Media 2019 2018 %

EUR m % share EUR m % share change
Press 875 15.5% 990 15.5% -11.6%
Television 3,595 63.6% 3,797 63.6% -5.3%
Radio 439 7.8% 431 7.8% 1.7%
Outdoors 65 1.2% 71 1.2% -8.4%
Cinema 25 0.4% 22 0.4% 13.8%
Internet 490 8.7% 473 8.7% 3.5%
Transit 139 2.5% 153 2.5% -9.4%
Out of home TV 21 0.4% 20 0.4% 4.5%

Total Market (classic
area*) 5,649 100.0% 5,958 100.0% -5.2%

(*) Not including direct mail. Fonte Nielsen 13.02.2020

OTHER OPERATIONS
Film distribution

Medusa Film S.p.A. is a major film distribution company in Italy. The company mainly produces and
distributes Italian and foreign films in Italy, leveraging the entire the life-cycle of the product: from
cinema releases to the sale of television rights in all their various forms.

In terms of box-office takings from the sale of cinema tickets, Medusa, with a market share of 5.1% in
2019 (source: Cinetel), was 7th in the ranking of distributors, behind the four American majors and the
Italian companies 01 Distribution and Eagle Pictures.

In line with its editorial approach, the company, as always, stood out for its focus on Italian cinema: the
Italian films with the largest and third-largest box-office takings in 2019 were from Medusa.

Number one at the box office was "Il primo Natale” (EUR 13.4 million in 2019; EUR 15.3 million in total)
with the return of comedy duo Ficarra and Picone; they were followed at the box office by “Dieci giorni
senza mamma"” (EUR 7.5 million), directed by Alessandro Genovesi and starring Fabio De Luigi (third
highest-grossing Italian production), and “L'uomo del labirinto” (EUR 2 million), with the directoral

return of Donato Carrisi and starring Tony Servillo and Dustin Hoffman.

In 2019, total box-office takings came to EUR 635 million, equivalent to 98 million cinema tickets,
compared with EUR 556 million and 86 million cinema tickets in the previous year. The number of films
distributed in the year was down on 2018: 495 compared with 529 in the previous year (-6.4%).

After a 2018 marked by a decline (-5% takings and -6.9% audience numbers), the cinema market saw
significant growth (+14.4% takings and +13.6% audience numbers).

The increase in revenue can almost entirely be attributed to the performance of American cinema
(+EUR 105 million; +34%), whose market share rose from 55 to 65%, as it remained the undisputed
leader (nine of the top 10 box-office performers were from the United States). This growth was partly
set back by a decline in British films (-EUR 41 million; -51%). Italian cinema showed further growth

(+EUR 7 million; +5%), which, although lower than the overall market increase, continues the
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particularly significant growth registered in 2018 (+24%), reaching a market share of 21% against 23%
in the previous year.

The successes achieved in 2019 are a further confirmation that Medusa plays a fundamental role, again
underscoring the correct strategic positioning of the company, which has always been a landmark in this
nation's cinema.

Media4Commerce

The MediadCommerce Business Unit manages commercial activities related to the Group's core
business.

At the year end, the business was split among three different brands:

Mediashopping, a multi-channel sales platform for home, kitchen and personal products, engaged in
distance selling following the Direct Response TV model.

Aroma Vero, a vertical multi-channel sales platform for coffee segment products which takes advantage
of the operational systems of Mediashopping to create a diverse commercial catalogue.

Fivestore, the brand that pursues exploitation of television content brands through licensing, production
and sale of editorial products.

Each brand's products are distributed by leveraging the multi-channel approach, using call centres,
online, and telesales for Business to Consumer sales and distribution and the press for Business to
Business.

The business processes undertaken are product selection and purchase; sales channel and customer
service development; and business support operations.

The success of these activities is the result of a primary communication plan in which video content is
broadcast on the Group's channels and is then backed up digitally, including on mediashopping.it and
aromavero.it, on the main social networks, through retargeting, by display advertising display and on
the recently launched 24-hour M4C streaming channel, which is available on the Mediaset Play platform,

including on smartTV and directly by visiting the mediashopping website.

International advertising

Publieurope Ltd. is the Mediaset Group company responsible for managing the Group's strategy on the
European advertising market. Its mission is to raise Group revenue through advertising sales to
international investors.

Its main objectives were as follows:
- ongoing liaison with headquarters of multinational companies.
- sourcing new licences and new products in other countries.

These activities are conducted from offices in London, Munich and Paris, and in cooperation with
partners located in Milan (Publitalia '80) and Madrid (Publiespafia).

Publieurope’s product portfolio has expanded and grown more varied over the years, ensuring a cross-
media commercial offering consisting of:

- all ltalian TV stations - generalist, thematic, free-to-air and pay-TV channels - of the Mediaset Group
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- Mediaset Espafia’'s TV networks, websites and outdoor TV
- Mediamond's magazines, websites and radio stations
- traditional and thematic TV channels, as well as websites of the German group ProSiebenSat.1

- the main multichannel network in Europe, Studio 71, controlled by the German group
ProSiebenSat.1 Media, which operates on the main free video distribution platforms

- the TV channels, websites and radio stations of the French group TF1

- the SBS group of commercial television channels that broadcast in Flanders (Belgium)
- the TV channels, websites and radio stations of Talpa TV in the Netherlands

- allthe TV networks and websites of the British Channel 4 group

- advertising spaces situated on luxury buildings in London and in the most important Italian cities.

Since Publieurope acts as an advertising sales house, its contribution to Group earnings needs to be
considered in terms of commission income generated, which totalled EUR 250 million, of which EUR 210

million related to the Group's Italian and Spanish media.

SPAIN

Mediaset has a controlling interest in Mediaset Espafia Comunicacién S.A., the holding company of the
Spanish television group that owns the Telecinco television network, which began broadcasting in 1990.

Mediaset Espafia is the leading broadcaster in Spain in terms of viewers and advertising share, and one
of the most profitable groups in the sector in Europe.

The company is listed on the stock exchange of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia. It was first
included in the Ibex 35 index on 3 January 2005, where it still remains one of the thirty five biggest

companies in Spain.

Mediaset Espafia Group's mission is to consolidate its leadership of the commercial television market in
Spain. Its strategic approach reflects that of Mediaset Group in Italy, operating as an integrated

broadcasting group in the following key business areas:

= Advertising (Publiespafia)

= Advertising on non-television media, both Group-owned and third-party
= Generalinterest television broadcasting (Telecinco, Cuatro)

=  Multichannel broadcasting: Free thematic channels (Divinity, Factoria de Ficcion, Boing, Energy, and
Be Mad - which is HD)

= Internet (through the company Conecta 5).

The Advertising Market

Spain’s television advertising market is the fifth-biggest in Europe and is second only to Italy's in terms
of television's share of all advertising on mainstream media. According to Infoadex data, the percentage
of that market in 2019 stood at 30.3%.
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Macroeconomic data on the Spanish economy shows that, in 2019, GDP grew by +1.9% on the previous
year. Advertising investment, on the other hand, essentially remained stable due to the growth in the
digital component, linked to search and social advertising. Investment in conventional advertising (which
does not include digital search and social advertising) fell by 5.8%, with investment in television
advertising down by 6.0% year on year. Mediaset Espafia Group's share of the conventional market as
43.4%.

Media 2019 2018 Change

€ million % share € million % share %
Press 512 8.6% 563 9.5% -9.0%
Television 1,803 30.3% 1,915 32.1% -5.9%
Local Television 92 1.5% 105 1.8% -12.4%
Magazine 195 3.3% 228 3.8% -14.5%
Radio 486 8.2% 481 8.1% 1.1%
Outdoor 423 7.1% 419 7.0% 1.1%
Cinema 37 0.6% 35 0.6% 5.2%
Tematic channels 108 1.8% 107 1.8% 1.0%
Internet 2,296 38.6% 2,110 35.4% 8.8%
Total Market 5,952 100.0% 5,963 100.0% -0.2%

Other domestic market players, besides Mediaset Espafia, include:

= the Atresmedia Group (established in 2012 with the merger of Antena3 and Sexta).
= afederation of independent local broadcasters, operating under the name La Forta.

= the digital satellite Pay TV platform Moviestar Fusion and Vodafone cable television.

Broadcasting and Audience Share

With respect to viewing figures, the Mediaset Espafia Group continued to be the leader in terms of total
viewers over the 24-hour period, with a share of 28.9%, with a gap of 2.7 percentage points from its

main competitor, the Atresmedia Group.

With respect to the commercial target audience, the Mediaset Espafia Group achieved a share of 30.6%,
with 3 percentage points more than its main competitor.

As for the main channel, in 2019 Telecinco achieved a 14.8% audience share of all viewers over the 24-
hour period, ranking as the most viewed Spanish channel for the seventh consecutive year. It also

captured an average of 14.1% of the commercial target.
With regard to Prime Time, Telecinco was the leader in the all viewers total with an average of 15.0%.

Cuatro was the third most viewed channel by millennials (16-34 years) and reached an audience share
of 6.0% of the average share for all viewers in the 24-hour period and 7.4% for the commercial target
audience.

The FDF, Divinity and Energy channels continued to post excellent results in terms of viewing figures in
20109.

Results for the commercial target audience are detailed below:
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Boing, the thematic channel dedicated to children from 4 to 12 years, achieved an audience share
of 10.6%.
FDF reached a share of 7.7% on the commercial target audience (13-24 age range).

Divinity, a channel dedicated to the female audience, achieved a share of 3.2% of its commercial
target audience (16-44 age range).

Energy, a channel dedicated to a male audience, achieved a share of 2.4% of the commercial target
audience (men between 25 and -44 years).

Be Mad achieved a share of 0.8% of its commercial target audience (men between 16 and 44 years).

Individuals Commercial Target

. Prime Day Time
Audience share 2019 24 hours Time 7:00-2:00 24 ore Prime Time Day Time
6 14.8% 14.8% 14.8% 14.1% 13.7% 14.3%
5.3% 5.8% 5.1% 6.4% 7.0% 6.2%
TOTAL GENERALIST NETWORKS 20.2% 20.6% 19.9% 20.5% 20.7% 20.5%
TOTAL MULTI CHANNEL 8.8% 7.8% 9.2% 10.1% 8.4% 10.9%
espana. 28.9% 28.4% 29.2% 30.6% 29.1% 31.3%
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As the following table shows, in 2019, Mediaset Espafia devoted significant airtime on the general
interest networks Telecinco and Cuatro to its in-house productions, which accounted for 80% of
scheduling (79.8% in 2018), with just 20% of airtime left for external acquisitions and productions
(20.2% in 2018).

Mediaset Espafa schedules - Broadcasted Hours 2019

Types Generalist Networks Multi-Channel Total Mediaset Networks
Film 1,215 6.9% 2,044 4.7% 3,259 5.3%
Fiction 1,596 9.1% 20,687 47.2% 22,283 36.3%
Cartoons = - 7,460 17.0% 7,460 12.2%
Total tv rights 2,811 16.0% 30,191 68.9% 33,002 53.8%
News 1,950 11.1% 1,545 3.5% 3,495 5.7%
Sport 242 1.4% 87 0.2% 329 0.5%
Entertainment 3,337 19.0% 3,173 7.2% 6,510 10.6%
Education 9,180 52.4% 8,804 20.1% 17,984 29.3%
Total in-house
productions 14,709 83.9% 13,609 31.0% 28,318 46.1%

Total 17,520 99.9% 43,800 100.0% 61,320 99.9%

Mediaset Espafa schedules - Broadcasted Hours 2018

Types Generalist Networks Multi-Channel Total Mediaset Networks
Film 1,447 8.3% 2,684 6.1% 4,131 6.7%
Fiction 2,047 11.7% 21,030 48.0% 23,077 37.6%
Cartoons = - 7,943 18.1% 7,943 13.0%
Total tv rights 3,494 20.0% 31,657 72.2% 35,151 57.3%
News 2,320 13.2% 694 1.6% 3,014 4.9%
Sport 269 1.5% 352 0.8% 621 1.0%
Entertainment 3,134 17.9% 4,090 9.3% 7,224 11.8%
Education 8,302 47.4% 7,007 16.0% 15,309 25.0%
Total in-house
productions 14,025 80.0% 12,143 27.7% 26,168 42.7%

Total 17,520 100.0% 43,800 100.0% 61,320 100.0%

Multichannel Broadcasting

Mediaset Espafia’s Broadcasting Centre is a digital platform fully equipped to broadcast and receive

audiovisual transmissions via satellite, optical fibre, the mobile network and ADSL.
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In 2019, the Mediaset Espafia Group continued to consolidate its multi-channel diversification strategy.
In fact, in addition to Telecinco and Cuatro, the Mediaset Espafia Group's generalist networks, the
offering is completed by firmly established thematic channels:

=  Energy, thematic channel with sport content targeted at a young male audience.
=  FDF (Factoria de Ficcién), featuring Spanish and international drama series.

= Boing, dedicated to children’s entertainment.

= Divinity, targeted at a young female audience.

= Be Mad, targeted at a male audience (men between 16 and 44 years).

TV rights investments

In 2019, Mediaset Espafia continued to invest in television broadcasting rights. Investment policy was
focused not only on consolidating Spanish drama series, as well as on providing a stream of high-quality
content both for the main channel and for new thematic channels, with a view to building up its
television rights library and defending audience share in the future, and with it the Spanish group's

advertising revenues.

Spanish television broadcasters are required by law to invest at least 3% of their operating revenues in
Spanish and European film productions. At Mediaset Espafia, this legal obligation has been taken up as a
business opportunity, and through the subsidiary Telecinco Cinema SAU the group has been producing

guality feature films for some years.

Following the excellent results of recent years, the year in review was also an extremely positive year in
terms of film production and distribution. In fact, two of the movies distributed by the Group were in top
five most watched films of 2019, both of which grossed more than EUR 10 million.

The first of these movies distributed was "La dejo cuando quiero", a remake of Italian comedy "Smetto
qguando voglio" directed by Carlos Therén and starring a cast of young actors, which was out in cinemas
in April and made more than EUR 11 million at the box office, with more than 1,800,000 admissions.

The other top performer was "Si yo fuera rico", a movie directed by Alvaro Ferndndez Armesto and
starring Alex Garcia and Alexandra Jiménez. A remake of French comedy "Si J'etais riche", this film was
out in cinemas in November has was watched by more than 2 million cinema-goers, grossing more than
EUR 12 million.

Cinema production also thrived in 2019, with four films due to be released in 2020 across different

genres.

The first release of the year was Adud", which came out in movie theatres in January and made more
than EUR 1 million at the box office in the first week of its release. Directed by Salvador Calvo and
starring Anna Castillo, Luis Tosar and youngster Mustapha Oumarau, the film was shot in various

locations in Africa and Spain.

"Operacién Camardn" is a comedy remake of Italian film “Song’e Napule". Produced by The Walt Disney
Company, this movie, directed by Carlos Therdn and starring Julidn Lépez and Natalia de Molina, is set
to hit cinema screens in March.

“Malnazidos", a film directed by Javier Ruiz Caldera and starring Miki Esparbé and Aura Garrido, will be

out in cinemas in September.
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Finally, "Waydown" is Mediaset Espafia’s most ambitious project for 2020. Directed by Jaime Balaguerd,
this film was shot in English and has an international cast starring Freddy Highmore (“The Good
Doctor"), Liam Cunningham (“Game of Thrones") and Spanish actors José Coronado and Luis Tosar. The
film is set to hit cinema screens in November.

Internet

The Mediaset Espafia Group considers its Internet business a strategic factor for the group's success,
enabling the diversification of business both now and in the future. The Group's websites include the
web channels Mitele.es (live online streaming platform), Mtmad.es (exclusive online video platform),
Eltiempohoy.es (weather page), Yasss.es (website with content aimed at millennials) and Mediaset.es
(website presenting the Group's corporate content), in addition to apps broadcasting the Group’s main
content (Mitele, Mediaset Sport, Gran Hermano) and the social media accounts of each channel,
program or series (Facebook, Twitter and Instagram).

In 2019, Mediaset Espafia consolidated its digital position, achieving record figures by videos streamed
and unique users. In terms of digital video consumption, Comscore reports that Mediaset Espafia
strengthened its leading position, almost doubling the number of videos streamed during 2018 to 4.778
million in 2019. The Group placed third in video consumption in Spain, behind only Google and Vevo.
Meanwhile, Mediaset Espafia had a record 17.7 million unique users in 2019, a 51.3% increase on
December 2018.

On television content platforms, Mitele.es strengthened its leading position in video consumption, with
downloads up by 70% to 2.6 million, while native digital content platform Mtmad achieved 233 million
video views, four times of the record figure achieved in 2018.

Pay platform Mitele PLUS, launched in July, deserves special mention. Mitele Plus is a new ad-free OTT
content platform from Mediaset Espafia, which airs sporting events, live and on-demand programmes,
as well as Spanish football's La Liga Santander and the UEFA Champions League. The platform includes
exclusive content, TV series, dramas, 24/7 programming, previews and several of Mediaset Espafia’s
most popular market formats. The Mitele Plus platform had 123,845 subscribers in 2019.
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MAIN INVESTMENTS

KEY SIGNIFICANT AND JOINT-VENTURE INVESTMENTS

ElTowers is a subsidiary of the F2iSGR private equity fund, which is 40%-owned by Mediaset. The El
Towers Group is one of the largest operators in integrated service network infrastructure for electronic
communications, serving radio and television broadcasters and mobile and wireless telecommunications
providers under long-term agreements. In particular, El Towers provides its clients with hosting facilities
on its infrastructure (transmission “towers" or “stations") for transmission plant and signal broadcasting
antennae, as well as a range of high-tech services in design, planning, technical assistance, ordinary and
extraordinary maintenance, and logistics. In addition, the group manages broadcast contribution links
the television productions of other domestic broadcasters covering sporting events and news
programmes. It does so using its own operating centres and satellite and fibre-optic network
infrastructure. Under a multi-year full-service agreement running from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2025
and renewable for a further seven years subject to renegotiation of a new price during the agreement's
last 12 months, ElI Towers offers hosting, assisting and maintenance services, the design of
transmission equipment and broadcast contribution management to Elettronica Industriale, a Mediaset
Group network operator, and provides hosting and maintenance services for the radio broadcasting
equipment of the Group's broadcasters. At the end of 2019, EITowers completed the acquisition of a
Newco, to which the Persidera Group business unit was transferred, receiving the capital infrastructure
needed to transmit the terrestrial frequencies of primary-standing television broadcasters, thus
consolidating its own role as a leading independent tower operator and as an aggregating industrial
actor in the sector nationally.

Mediamond S.p.A. is an equal joint venture between Publitalia'80 and Mondadori Pubblicita. Mediamond
is the Mediaset Group's sales house specialised in selling radio advertising space with the Group's
broadcasters, on the Group's television and video websites and on websites of Mondadori Group
agencies, as well as selling advertising space with third-party broadcasters.

Boing S.p.A. is a joint venture between R.T.l. S.p.A. (51%) and Turner Broadcasting System Europe
(49%), producing and managing two free-to-air children's channels, Boing and Cartoonito, which have
been broadcast on the digital terrestrial platform since 2004 and 2011, respectively.

Fascino Produzione Gestione Teatro Srl is an equal joint venture between R.T.l. S.p.A. and Maria De
Filippi. The venture partner's exclusive artistic and creative contribution enables the company to
develop, plan and deliver television programmes that tend to go out on Canale 5's prime-time and day-
time slots, including C'é Posta per te, Amici and Uomini e Donne.

Tiva Srl is a company formed in 2008 whose shareholders are R.T.l. S.p.A., Rai Radiotelevisione
Italiana S.p.A. (each holding 48.16%), La7 Srl (3.49%), and other shareholders, performing advertising
and planned communication activities for users of the free-to-air digital terrestrial and satellite platform.
In particular, it manages services linked to the satellite platform for the free-to-air digital TV offering
called “TivuSat"”, which supplements the digital terrestrial platform for users of some of the regions and
autonomous provinces that this signal does not reach.

Nessma S.A. is a company 34.12%-owned by the subsidiary Mediaset Investment S.A. It manages the
freesat TV channel broadcast in Tunisia and the countries of North Africa.
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OTHER EQUITY INVESTMENTS

As a result of the acquisitions made by Mediaset and Mediaset Espafia during 2019, the Group holds a
total 15.1% equity interest in ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE. ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE is one of the largest
television media groups in Europe and enjoys a position of leadership in Germany, Austria and
Switzerland. The company has a broad shareholder base and is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.
In 2019 it posted consolidated net revenues of EUR 4,135 million (EUR 4,009 million in 2018), an EBIT
of EUR 578 million (EUR 348 million in 2018) and a consolidated net profit of EUR 413 million (EUR 248
million in 2018). A dividend distribution of EUR 0.85 per share was proposed upon the approval of the
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA
AND BUSINESS SEGMENT

In this section we give a breakdown of the consolidated income statement, balance sheet and cash flow
statement to show the contribution to Group performance of the two geographical areas of business,
Italy and Spain, as well as a breakdown of revenues by revenue type.

The income, balance sheet and cash flow figures shown below have been restated, with respect to the
Group financial statements, in order to highlight the intermediate aggregates considered most
significant for understanding the performance of the Group and of the individual business units.
Although not required by law, the criteria adopted in preparing the aggregates and notes referring the
reader to the relevant statutory financial statement items have been disclosed in accordance with
guidance provided by Consob Communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006 and the CESR
Recommendation on alternative performance measures (or non-GAAP measures) dated 3 November
2005 (CESR/05-178b).

Group Performance

The consolidated income statement reported below shows the intermediate aggregates making up
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) and earnings before interest
and taxes (EBIT).

Operating Result (EBIT) is calculated by taking Earnings before tax and subtracting financial income and

Profit/Loss from equity investments and adding financial expenses.

EBITDA is calculated by adding together EBIT and Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs on
current and non-current assets.

It should be noted that the Consolidated Net Profit for 2018 has been restated (to the EUR 471.2 million
reported) to show the retrospective impact (since 1 October 2018) on the Income/(expenses) from
equity investments of the depreciation of the assets identified in accordance with IFRS 3, due to the -
EUR 3.0 million allocation of goodwill generated following the closing of 2i Towers Holding's takeover
bid of EI Towers, launched in 2018. This valuation process had a -EUR 12.3 million impact on Mediaset's
consolidated net profit for 2019.

Moreover, please note that due to the entry into force of accounting standard IFRS 16 (Leases) on 1
January 2019, which the Group has adopted retrospectively with adjustments, to the lease contracts
existing as at the transition date (mainly concerning leaseholds on real estate and televisions studios
and rentals of staff company cars), rights of use have been recognised (under fixed assets) for a sum of
EUR 140.6 million and, accordingly, financial liabilities were recognised in the same amount (under Net
Financial Position), calculated based on the present net value of outstanding lease payments.
Consequently, since the date on which it was first adopted, the rights-of-use depreciation values
recorded in the resulting income statement have been determined based on the established lease terms
and the relevant interests in liability-related financial expenses, while the financial data for the
comparative period, which are used for comparison purposes and for which contracts the relevant lease
payments for the period were required to be posted under operating costs, have not been restated.
Nevertheless, the different accounting method does not impact majorly on the comparability between

the two periods as far as the main interim performance indicators, EBITDA and EBIT, are concerned.
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MEDIASET GROUP
Income Statement

Total consolidated net revenues
Personnel expenses

Purchases, services, other costs

Operating costs

EBITDA

Rights amortization

Other amortization and depreciation

Amortization and depreciation

EBIT

Financial income/(losses)

Income/(expenses) from equity investments

EBT
Income taxes

Minority interests in net result

Net result from continuing operations

Net profit from discontinued operations

Group net result

e

(figures in EUR million)

2019

2,925.7
(498.2)
(1,490.2)

(1,988.4)

937.3
(479.0)

(103.7)

(582.7)

354.6
10.0

17.1

381.7
(93.9)
(97.5)

190.3

0

190.3

2018

3,401.5
(497.0)
(1,838.4)

(2,335.4)

1,066.1
(884.2)

(108.2)

(992.4)

73.7
16.2)

6.4

64.0
(19.3)
(96.5)

(51.8)

520.0

468.2
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The following table shows key Group income statement figures stated as a percentage of consolidated

net revenues.

MEDIASET GROUP 2019 2018

Total consolidated net revenues 100.0% 100.0%
Operating costs -68.0% -68.7%
EBITDA 32.0% 31.3%
Amortization and depreciation -19.9% -37.3%
EBIT 12.1% 2.2%
EBT 13.0% 1.9%
Group net result 6.5% 13.8%

Below we look at the breakdown of the income statement by geographical area to report the
contribution to performance of the Group's ltalian and Spanish operations. For the purpose of
summarising the Group's profit-generation in its two geographical areas, the income statements of the
two business units are stated net of any dividends distributed by Mediaset Espafia to Mediaset S.p.A.
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Breakdown by geographical area: Italy

The following is a condensed income statement of Mediaset Group's domestic business:

ITALY
Income Statement

Total consolidated net revenues
Personnel expenses

Purchases, services, other costs

Operating costs

EBITDA
Rights amortization

Other amortization and depreciation

Amortization and depreciation

EBIT

Financial income/(losses)

Income/(expenses) from equity investments

EBT
Income taxes

Minority interests in net result

Net result from continuing operations

Net profit from discontinued operations

Group net result

(figures in EUR million)

2019

1,982.1
(376.6)
(1,085.8)

(1,462.4)

519.7
(343.8)
(84.6)

(428.4)

91.3
10.2

11.0

112.4
(37.5)
1.3

76.3

76.3

2018

2,421.4
(389.2)
(1,392.5)

(1,781.7)
0

639.7
(731.5)
91.1)

(822.6)

(182.9)
(14.6)

(4.0)

(201.5)
45.9
0.4

(155.1)
520.0

364.8

The following table shows key income statement figures stated as a percentage of consolidated net

revenues.

72



ITALY

Total consolidated net revenues

Operating costs

EBITDA

Amortization and depreciation

EBIT

EBT

Group net result

2019

100.0%

-73.8%

26.2%

-21.6%

4.6%

5.7%

3.8%

2018

100.0%

-73.6%

26.4%

-47.2%

-7.6%

-8.3%

-22.8%
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Below is a summary of the main types of revenue. The performance of these revenue types has already
been described in this Report.

0,
ITALY 2019 2018 chanas X
Breakdown Consolidated Revenues € million  change
Gross advertising revenues 1,939.0 2,112.2 (173.2) -8.2%
Agency discounts (273.9) (301.2) 27.2 9.0%
Total net advertising
revenues 1,665.1 1,811.0 (146.0) -8.1%
Other revenues/Eliminations 317.0 610.4 (293.3) -48.1%
Total Consolidated Revenues 1,982.1 2,421.4 (439.3) -18.1%

Advertising revenues include free and pay-TV channels managed by the Group's concessionaires and
the Group's share of website revenues, and revenues from proprietary radio broadcasters managed
under a sublicense from the investee Mediamond.

The decrease in Other revenues is due to the revenues from the Mediaset Premium offering, which was
discontinued in June 2019. When calculated on a like-for-like basis, other revenues as a whole increased
by EUR 34.4 million, mainly driven by the proceeds ensuing from the commercial agreements entered
into with Sky in the first quarter of 2018 for the sub-licensing of free and pay-TV channels and for the
use of the Premium technological platform, and from other agreements entered into with other

operators for the sub-licensing of content.

The decrease in the items Purchases, services and other costs and TV rights amortisation is
primarily due to the termination of the multi-year contracts for Premium football content, contracts
which were still in force at the beginning of 2018, as well as being due to the lower cost of the free-to-
air TV programme schedule, which last year included the costs of the broadcasting rights to and
performance of the final stages of the Russia 2018 World Cup, which was broadcast exclusively by
Mediaset. Finally, please note that the write-downs and provisions posted for the recoverability
assessments on assets and purchase commitments relating to Pay-TV rights, which were conducted
when presenting the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2018, caused a lower
amortisation of these rights, at EUR 51.4 million, in 2019.
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Breakdown by geographical area: Spain

The following is an abridged income statement of the Group’s Spanish business; figures are those of
Mediaset Espafia Group (consolidated figures).

(figures in EUR million)

SPAIN

Income Statement 2019 2018
Total consolidated net revenues 946.2 981.6
Personnel expenses (121.5) (107.8)
Purchases, services, other costs (404.9) (446.6)
Operating costs (526.4) (554.5)
EBITDA 419.8 427.1
Rights amortization (135.9) (153.1)
Other amortization and depreciation (19.1) (17.1)
Amortization and depreciation (154.9) (170.2)
EBIT 264.9 256.9
Financial income/(losses) 0.2) (1.6)
Income/(expenses) from equity investments 5.9 10.3
EBT 270.6 265.6
Income taxes (56.8) (65.3)
Net profit from continuing operations 213.8 200.3
Net profit from discontinued operations 0 0
Minority interests in net profit 2.0 0
Net profit 211.7 200.3
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The following table shows key income statement figures stated as a percentage of consolidated net

revenues from Spanish operations.

SPAIN

Total consolidated net revenues

Operating costs

EBITDA

Amortization and depreciation

EBIT

EBT

Group net result

The breakdown of Mediaset Espafia Group's revenues is shown below:

SPAIN
Breakdown Consolidated Revenues

Gross advertising revenues

Agency discounts

Net advertising revenues

Other revenues

Total net consolidated revenues

2019

916.5
(40.0)

876.5
69.8

946.3

2018

963.6
42.1)

921.4
60.2

981.6

2019

100.0%

-55.6%

44.4%

=16.4%

28.0%

28.6%

22.6%

2018

100.0%

-56.5%

43.5%

=13.0%

26.2%

27.1%

20.4%

(values in EUR million)

change €
million

(47.1)
2.1

(44.9)
9.6

(35.3)

% change

=4.9%
-5.1%

=4.9%
16.0%

-3.6%

Other revenues mainly includes income from the distribution of movie co-productions, agreements

entered into with other parties for the sub-licensing of content, and income from online operations.

The total costs of the Mediaset Espafia Group decreased by EUR 43.3 million (-6%) compared to the

same period the previous year.

On 31 December 2019, Operatig Result (EBIT) for the Group's Spanish business totalled EUR 211.7

million, compared with EUR 200.3 million in 2018.

Other income statement components for Mediaset Group as a whole are shown below.
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2019 2018 CUEIOS
million
Financial (income)/losses 10.0 (16.2) 26.2

Financial expenses/income included income of EUR 26.0 million in dividends to Mediaset from subsidiary
ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE and expenses of EUR 18.6 million for the costs associated with the collar
agreement entered into to hedge the equity investments made in ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE. Removing
these component reveals a significant reduction in the average cost of net financial debt, in view of
Mediaset's January 2019 repayment of the EUR 375 million corporate bond.

2019 2018 change €
million
Result from equity investments 17.1 6.4 10.6

Income/(expenses) from equity investments includes income from measurement at equity of
investments where the Group has significant influence over the investee and gains/losses generated

from the disposal of those assets.

In 2019, this item included income of EUR 14.6 million as Mediaset's portion (40%) of the income for the
year from the significant investment held in EI Towers (-EUR 6.6 million compared to the pro-quota
income for the fourth quarter of 2018). These figures include the retrospective impact (since 1 October
2018) of the depreciation of the assets identified in accordance with IFRS 3, due to the -EUR 3.0 million
allocation of goodwill generated following the closing of 2i Towers Holding's takeover bid of EI Towers,
launched in 2018. This valuation process had a -EUR 12.3 million impact on Mediaset's consolidated net
profit for 2019.

The income/(expenses) from equity investments in 2019 also include income of EUR 2.9 million (EUR
4.5 million in 2018) from the price adjustment paid to Mediaset Espafia by Telefonica under the
agreements for the sale of a 22% stake in Digital Plus-DTS of 4 July 2014, due to the achievement of
pre-established DTS subscriber thresholds in the years after the transaction. Income/(expenses) from
equity investments for 2018 also included the EUR 3.6 million capital gain made by Mediaset Espafia for
the sale of its 43.71% stake held in Pegaso Television INC.
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2019 2018

EBT 381.7 64.0
Income taxes (93.9) (19.3)
Tax Rate (%) 24.6% 30.1%

Minority interests in net result 97.5 96.5
Net result from continuing operations 190.3 (51.8)
Net profit from discontinued operations 520.0
Group Net Result 190.3 468.2

The Group's tax rate reflects the combined effect of the different tax bases in the Group's two main

geographical areas of operation.

Minority interests refer to interests held in the consolidated earnings of Mediaset Espafia (44.31%) and
Monradio (20%).

In accordance with IFRS 5, Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations in 2018 included the
consolidated net result of EI Towers for the Group's interest, totalling EUR 21.8 million in the first nine
months of 2018, with the capital gains made from the sale of the controlling interest in El Towers, net of
costs and direct taxes, totalling EUR 498.2 million.
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Balance Sheet and Financial Position

The Group's balance sheet and its breakdown by geographical area are reported below in abridged form,
restated to show the two main aggregates: Net invested capital and Net financial position, the latter
consisting of Total Financial Debt less Cash and Other Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Assets.
Details of the items making up the net financial position are provided in Note 11.7.

The following tables therefore differ in their layout from the statutory balance sheet, which primarily
distinguishes current from non-current assets and liabilities.

Equity Investments and Other Financial Assets include assets recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position as Investments in associates and joint ventures, and Other Financial Assets
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as equity investments and non-current
financial receivables (thus excluding hedging derivatives, which are included as Net Working Capital and
Other Assets/Liabilities).

Net Working Capital and Other Assets/Liabilities include current assets (apart from cash and cash
equivalents and current financial assets included in the Net Financial Position), deferred tax assets and
liabilities, non-current assets held for sale, provisions for risks and charges, trade payables and tax
liabilities.

The breakdown of the balance sheet by geographical area (Italy and Spain) is shown below.

MEDIASET GROUP

Balance Sheet Summary 31-dic-19 31-dic-18
TV and movie rights 974.7 972.2
Goodwill 796.7 794.1
Other tangible and intangible non current assets 968.8 822.5
Equity investments and other financial assets 1,026.6 568.9
Net working capital and other assets/(liabilities) 541.0 500.9
Post-employment benefit plans (69.2) (68.9)
Net invested capital 4,238.7 3,589.6
Group shareholders' equity 2,477.9 2,409.4
Minority interests 412.5 443.7
Total Shareholders' equity 2,890.4 2,853.1

Net financial position
Debt/(Liquidity) 1,348.3 736.4
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Please note that net financial debt, calculated based in the covenants of certain lending agreements

that were revised after the waivers negotiated by Mediaset at the year end, did not include financial

liabilities recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 and the payables contracted into as part of the equity

investment in ProsiebenSat1, equalling EUR 768.8 million at 31 December 2019.

The breakdown of the balance sheet by geographical area (ltaly and Spain) is shown below.

MEDIASET GROUP
Summery Cash Flow Statement

Net Financial Position
at the beginning of the year
Debt/(Liquidity)

Free Cash Flow
Cash Flow from operating activities (*)
Investments in fixed assets

Disposals of fixed assets

Changes in net working capital and other current assets/liabilities

Change in the consolidation area

Own share's (sale)/buyback of the parent company and subsidiaries

Equity investments/Investment in
other financial assets

Cashed-in dividends
Dividends paid

Financial Surplus/(Deficit) from continuing operations

Financial Surplus/(Deficit) from discontinued operations

Net Financial Position of discontinued operations

Net Financial Position at the end of the year
Debt/(Liquidity)

(*): Net profit +/- minority interests + amortisations +/- net provisions +/- valuation of investments recorded using the net equity method

- gains/losses on equity investments +/- deferred tax

(figures in EUR million)

2019

(874.6)

263.5
899.4
(600.1)
9.5
(45.3)

(19.8)

(94.6)

(617.0)
40.8
(46.6)

(473.6)

(1,348.3)

2018

(1,392.2)

211.7
1,026.0
(618.0)
19.0
(215.3)

671.2

(0.0)

(479.0)
29.7
(95.6)

338.0

(40.1)

357.8

(736.4)

In

the table below, the Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2019 is broken to show the effects of the

line-by-line consolidation of Mediaset Espafia.

Balance Sheet Summary
(geographical breakdown)

TV and movie rights

Goodwill

Other tangible and intangible non current assets
Equity investments and other financial assets
Net working capital and other assets/liabilities

Post-employment benefit plans

Net invested capital

Group shareholders' equity

Minority interests

Total Shareholders' equity

Net financial position
Debt/(Liquidity)

Italy

828.6
142.8
709.1
1,705.6
491.8
(69.2)

3,808.6

2,485.8
4.8

2,490.6

1,318.0

Spain

148.9
290.8
259.7
198.2

48.4

946.0

912.3
3.5

915.8

30.2

Eliminations/
Adjustments

2.8)
363.2

877.2)
0.9

(516.0)

(920.2)
404.2

(516.0)

Mediaset
Group

974.7
796.7
968.8
1,026.6
541.0
(69.2)

4,238.7

2,477.9
412.5

2,890.4

1,348.3
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The table below is a summary cash flow statement broken down on a consolidated basis by
geographical area, showing cash flows over the two periods. Unlike the standard IAS 7 layout used to
prepare the statutory cash flow statement, these tables show changes in Net Financial Position,
considered the most significant indicator of the Group's ability to meet its financial obligations. The
statement shows the cash flow generated from continuing operations (free cash flow) separately from
the cash flow generated or used by M&A transactions (scope of consolidation changes, acquisition
and/or sale of equity investments or minority interests in subsidiaries, and other strategic/financial
assets), the distribution and/or receipt of dividends, and share buybacks by the parent company or its
subsidiaries, and from the net cash flows generated from operations classed as available for sale or
discontinued under IFRS 5.

As already stated, the Consolidated net financial position at the beginning of 2019 differs from that
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 31 December 2018 in that it includes
the recognition of EUR 140.6 million in Financial liabilities following the application of accounting
standard IFRS 16 (Lease), which came into force on 1 January 2019.

Surplus/(Deficit) of discontinued operations includes the net cash flows generated in nine months of
2018 by EI Towers, which have been restated and recognised separately in accordance with IFRS 5
following the deconsolidation of the investment in the fourth quarter of 2018. The deconsolidation of
the net financial position of ElI Towers as at 30 September 2018 is stated in the item Net financial

position of sold assets.

Balance Sheet Summary Eliminations/ Mediaset
(geographical breakdown) Italy Spain Adjustments Group
TV and movie rights 828.6 148.9 (2.8) 974.7
Goodwill 142.8 290.8 363.2 796.7
Other tangible and intangible non current assets 709.1 259.7 - 968.8
Equity investments and other financial assets 1,705.6 198.2 (877.2) 1,026.6
Net working capital and other assets/liabilities 491.8 48.4 0.9 541.0
Post-employment benefit plans (69.2) - - (69.2)
Net invested capital 3,808.6 946.0 (516.0) 4,238.7
Group shareholders' equity 2,485.8 912.3 (920.2) 2,477.9
Minority interests 4.8 3.5 404.2 412.5
Total Shareholders' equity 2,490.6 915.8 (516.0) 2,890.4

Net financial position
Debt/(Liquidity) 1,318.0 30.2 o 1,348.3

The Group's free cash flow amounted to EUR 263.5 million, compared with EUR 211.7 million the

previous year.
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(figures in EUR million)

Italy Spain

Cash Flow Statement
(geographical breakdown)

2019 2018 2019 2018
Net Financial Position
at the beginning of the year
Debt/(Liquidity) (1,042.5) (1,527.5) 167.8 135.3
Free Cash Flow 78.3 (11.9) 185.2 223.6
Cash Flow from operating activities (*) 507.0 627.0 394.0 399.6
Investments in fixed assets (421.0) (469.4) (181.3) (149.2)
Disposals of fixed assets 4.5 14.7 5.0 4.2
Changes in net working capital and other current assets/liabilities (12.1) (184.1) (32.5) (31.0)
Change in the consolidation area (13.4) 671.2 (6.3) -
Own share's sale/(buyback) of the parent company and subsidiaries o - (94.6) 0.0)
Equity investments/Investments in other financial assets and change
of stake in subsidiaries (432.9) (483.1) (184.1) 4.1
Cashed-in dividends 92.4 129.3 1.7 2.4
Dividends paid s (0.0) (100.0) (197.5)
Financial Surplus/(Deficit) from continuing operations (275.6) 305.5 (198.0) 32.5
Financial Surplus/(Deficit) from discontinued operations - (40.1) = -
Net Financial Position of discontinued operations o 357.8 - -
Net Financial Position at the end of the period
Deb/(Liquidity) (1,318.0) (904.3) (30.2) 167.8

(*): Net profit +/- minority interests + amortisations +/- net provisions +/- valuation of investments recorded using the net equity method - gains/losses on
equity investments +/- deferred tax
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The table below shows the increase of fixed assets reported in the cash flow statement.

(figures in EUR million)

Italy Spain

Increased in fixed assets
2019 2018 2019 2018
Investments in TV and movie rights (341.9) (448.7) (162.2) (142.0)
Changes in advances on TV rights (21.2) 22.3 (10.9) 2.8
TV and movie rights: investments and advances (363.1) (426.4) (173.1) (139.2)
Investments in other fixed assets (58.0) (43.0) 8.2) (10.0)
Total investments in fixed assets (421.0) (469.4) (181.3) (149.2)

The negative cash flow under Changes in the scope of consolidation was driven by outflows for
expenses incurred in 2019 for the acquisition of R2 Srl and expenses incurred in the M&A operations of
Mediaset (60% stake in EI Desmarque Portal Deportivo SL in addition to the treasury shares already
held in associates), once the net position of the companies acquired has been deducted. The cash flow
related to this item in 2018 incorporates the EUR 644.4 million income from the sale of the equity
investment in El Towers, the positive impact of EUR 30 million relating to the sale of the company R2 Srl
and outgoings of EUR 3.3 million relating to the acquisition of Radio Monte Carlo.

Own share sales/buybacks relates to the disbursements incurred by the subsidiary Mediaset Espafia in
relation to the buy-back plans executed in the first half of the year.

Investments/other financial assets and changes in investments held in subsidiaries for 2019
mainly included a EUR 531.1 million expense associated with the acquisitions of the equity investment
in ProsiebenSat.1 Media SE and financial hedging instruments, and the EUR 31.6 million outlay for the
acquisition of a 1.63% equity interest in Mediaset Espafia under the plan authorised by Mediaset's Board
of Directors on 4 September 2019. In 2018, the cash flows associated with these items mainly referred
to the EUR 465.3 million reinvestment in the stake in 2iTowers, income received from Mediaset Espafia
for the sale of the stake in Pegaso Television Inc. and the adjustment of the price for the sale in 2014 of
the stake in DTS.

In 2019, dividends from investees stood at of EUR 16.7 million for El Towers and EUR 20.0 million for
ProsiebenSat.1 Media SE.

For both periods, dividends distributed refers to the distribution of dividends to minority shareholders
of Mediaset Espafa.
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PARENT COMPANY PERFORMANCE

We now turn to the earnings performance and financial results of the Company during the year.

Profit/Loss

An abridged income statement is reported below, with commentary and comparative data for the
previous year provided.

(figures in EUR million)

2019 2018
Total revenues 5,2 5,5
Personnel expenses 15,0 24,6
Purchases, services, other costs 21,8 23,8
Sundry operating costs 6,2 3,7
Amortisation, depreciation and write downs 3,7 0,1
Impairment losses and reversal of impairment on fixed assets = -
Total costs 46,7 52,0
Gain/losses from disposal of non-current assets S -
EBIT (41,5) (46,5)
Dividends and other income/(losses) from equity investments 172,6 140,8
Financial income/(losses) 6,7 10,8
Total income/(losses) from financial activities
and equity investments 165,9 151,6
EBT 124,4 105,1
Income taxes for the year (1,6) 6,7
Net Gains/(Losses) from discontinued operations - -
Net profit/(loss) 126,0 111,8

Total Revenues

Revenues show a decrease of EUR 0.3 million, down from EUR 5.5 million in 2018 to EUR 5.2 million in
2019.

The change was mainly attributable to:

+EUR 0.1 million from increased revenues for intercompany staff services.

+EUR 0.2 million from the capital gain on the sale of the real property at Largo del Nazareno, Rome, to
subsidiary R.T.l. S.p.A.

-EUR 0.3 million from reduced revenues from bank guarantees granted to the subsidiaries.

-EUR 0.3 million from increased other net revenues and income.

84



Total Costs

Costs show a decrease of EUR 5.3 million, up from EUR 52.0 million in 2018 to EUR 46.7 million in
2019.

The change was mainly attributable to:

-EUR 7.6 million for lower directors' compensation.

-EUR 9.6 million from reduced staffing costs due to fewer benefits granted.

+EUR 6.1 million from increased consultancy and collaboration service costs.

+EUR 2.6 million for higher tax expenses.

+EUR 3.5 million from increased costs for write-downs of financial receivables.

-EUR 0.3 million for lower other net costs.

EBIT

EBIT was -EUR 41.5 million, improving by EUR 5.0 million compared to the figure of -EUR 46.5 million in
2018.

Financial Activity and Equity Investments

A profit of EUR 165.9 million was made for the management of financial assets and equity investments
in 2019, an increase of EUR 14.3 million compared to the EUR 151.6 profit made in 2018. This profit
was generated by:

earnings from investments of EUR 172.6 million, down by EUR 31.8 million on the previous year, as a
result of:

- increased dividends received from subsidiaries of EUR 30.1 million.
- lower charges for write-downs of equity investments, of EUR 1.7 million.
net financial income of EUR 6.7 million, down by EUR 17.5 million on the previous year, as a result of:

- -EUR 16.9 million from reduced income net of financial charges, towards subsidiaries,
affiliates and jointly controlled entities. This item includes the interest income and expenses
on the intercompany current account: income increased by EUR 17.3 million, from EUR
39.5 million in 2018 to EUR 22.3 million in 2018, while expenses decreased by EUR 0.4
million compared to the previous year, standing at EUR 0.1 million.

- +EUR 17.5 million from reduced other net charges, which went from -EUR 28.2 million in
2018 to -EUR 10.7 million in 2019. This item was composed of:

e EUR 1.3 million in interest expense on the corporate bond:
e EUR 6.6 million in IRR interest expense.

e EUR 2.2 million in transaction costs on loans.

e EUR 0.6 million in other net financial charges.
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- -EUR 18.6 million in financial expenses on collar shares.
- +EUR 0.5 million for higher other net costs.

- the net profit/loss for sales and purchases of securities was unchanged compared to the
previous year.

EBT and Income Taxes

The pre-tax profit was EUR 124.4 million, an improvement of EUR 19.3 million compared to the
previous year.

The income statement was positively impacted by a tax income of EUR 1.6 million mainly due to IRES

income from tax consolidation.

Profit for the Year

The year ended with a profit of EUR 126.0 million compared to the profit of EUR 111.8 million for
2018, an improvement of EUR 14.2 million.
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Balance Sheet and Financial Position

An abridged balance sheet is reported below. Iltems have been restated with respect to the statutory
balance sheet, which states assets and liabilities as current and non-current, in order to show the two
main aggregates Net Invested Capital and Net Financial Position; the latter consisting of Cash and Cash
Equivalents and Other Financial Assets, minus Total Financial Debt and Other Current Liabilities.

Equity Investments and Other Non-Current Financial Assets include assets recognised in the statement
of financial position as Investments in Subsidiaries and in Other Companies, and as Receivables and
Financial Assets. Net Working Capital and Other Assets/(Liabilities) include current assets (excluding
cash and cash equivalents and current financial assets and liabilities included in the Net Financial
Position), provisions for current risks and charges, trade payables and taxes payable.

A detailed breakdown of the main components of the Net Financial Position is provided in the Notes.

(figures in EUR million)
31/12/19 31/12/18

Equity Investments 3.592,9 2.652,0
Other financial non-current financial assets 6,8 2,1
Tangible and intangible assets 2,1 4,5
Advanced/(deferred) tax assets 221,5 231,0
Non-current financial liabilities 0,1) -
Provision for non-current risks and charges 1,1) (1,0)
Total non-current assets/(liabilities) 3.822,1 2.888,6

Net working capital and other current financial

assets/(liabilities) (170,6) (198,1)
Net invested capital 3.651,5 2.690,5
Shareholders' equity 2.009,0 1.897,9
Net financial position (1.642,5) (792,6)

The main changes in the balance sheet at 31 December 2019 compared to positions at 31 December

2018 are summarised below.

The value of Equity investments, at EUR 3,592.9 million, increased by EUR 940.9 million compared to

2018, mainly as a result of the following:

- EUR 595 million increase in the value of the investment in Mediaset Investment NV due to

two capital injections during the year.

- EUR 31.6 million increase in the value of the investment in Mediaset Espafia Comunicacién
S.A. as a result of the stock market purchase plan authorised by the Board of Directors of
Mediaset S.p.A. on 4 September 2019, which took the equity interest to 55.69%.

- EUR 311.3 million increase due to the acquisition of a 9.61% stake in ProSiebenSat.1 Media
SE.
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The Net Working Capital of -EUR 170.6 million was an improvement of EUR 27.5 million on the previous
year.

The Net Financial Position decreased by EUR 849.9 million, falling from -EUR 792.6 million in 2018 to -
EUR 1,642.5 million in 2019. The change was mainly attributable to:

= EUR 375.0 million corporate bond repayment.

= EUR 280 million in new credit facilities opened.

=  EUR 349.2 million equity investment in ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE.
= EUR 173.1 million in dividend income.

Net equity, standing at EUR 2,009 million, increased by EUR 111.1 million compared to the previous
year, mainly as a result of the profit for the year.

The following table is an abridged cash flow statement showing cash flows over the two periods. Items
have been restated with respect to the standard IAS 7 layout used to prepare the statutory cash flow
statement in order to show changes in Net Financial Position, considered the most significant indicator
of the company’s ability to meet its financial obligations.

(figures in EUR million)

2019 2018
Net financial position at the beginning of the year (792.6) (527.6)
Free cash flow (1,023.0) (408.0)
- Cash flow from operating activities (16.3) (6.0)
- Equity investments and other current financial assets (638.2) (460.1)
- Change in working capital and other assets/liabilities (358.2) 65.9
Dividends received 173.1 143.0
Financial surplus/deficit 849.9 (265.0)
Net financial position at the end of the year (1,642.5) (792.6)
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT
COMPANY NET PROFIT AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(CONSOB Communication No. 6064293 of 27 July 2006)

Shareholders' Shareholders'
equity at Net result equity at Net result
31/12/2019 2019 31/12/2018 2018
As per balance sheet and income
statement of Mediaset S.p.A. 1,980.0 126.0 1,897.9 111.8
Excess of shareholders' equity,
including gross income for the
period over book value of
investments in subsidiary ad
affiliated companies 964.9 749.8 1,012.9 581.8
Consolidation adjustmens arising
from:
Eliminations of unrealised intra-
group gains/losses rr. 7 11.8 (89.5) 1.9
Dividend eliminations 0 (605.6) 0 (223.0)
Other consolidatio adjustment 23.2 5.8 31.9 122.2
Total 2,890.4 287.8 2,853.1 594.7
Minority interest (412.5) (97.5) (443.7) (126.5)
As per consolidated financial
statements 2,477.9 190.3 2,409.4 468.2
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CONSOLIDATED NON-FINANCIAL REPORT (LEGISLATIVE
DECREE NO. 254/2016)

The consolidated non-financial report (“Consolidated NFR") of Mediaset S.p.A., prepared in accordance
with Legislative Decree No. 254/2016 consists of a Sustainability Report, separate from this report, as
required by Article 5, paragraph 3, letter b) of Legislative Decree No. 254/16, and is available at
www.mediaset.it, in the section “Corporate/Sustainability".

For more information on the subsequent sections of this Report on Operations regarding “Disclosure of
the main risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed”, “Human resources”, “Environment”,
“Social initiatives” and “Protection of children”, please see the sustainability report (Consolidated NFR).

DISCLOSURE OF THE MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
TO WHICH THE GROUP IS EXPOSED

The Enterprise Risk Management system in the Mediaset Group

As an integral part of its Internal Controls and Risks Management System, the Mediaset Group has
adopted a Risk Management model, both in Italy and in Spain, in order to be able to respond better to

the risks to which it is structurally exposed.

The Internal Controls and Risks Management System, as defined by the Corporate Governance Code, is
“the set of rules, procedures and the organisational structures designed to enable a business to be
performed in a healthy and proper manner in accordance with pre-set objectives, through an adequate
process of identification, measurement, management and monitoring of the main risks. An effective
system of internal controls contributes to ensuring the protection of company assets, the efficiency and
effectiveness of the business operations, the reliability of the financial information, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations”.

The Group has adopted the ERM (Enterprise Risk Management) methodology, already identified as the
reference methodology in the Guidelines on the Internal Control and Risk Management System issued by
the Board and updated periodically from 2008 onwards.

The Guidelines have been implemented by establishing a series of operational measures aimed at
identifying and regulating the activities, the responsibilities and the information flows necessary for the
management of risks (“Policy of the Internal Controls System™).

The periodic risk identification and assessment process found that the control of company risks is being
managed adequately overall. In recent years, the Group has demonstrated a willingness and ability to
progressively adapt the methods of control of strategic and process risks, both in relation to
developments in the competitive environment and to the growth opportunities offered by the market, in
the knowledge that the current economic situation and the major changes in market and industry sector
trends generate high levels of uncertainty and therefore require continuous monitoring and a high
degree of attention.

The main risks and uncertainties

The pursuit of the objectives outlined in the Strategic Guidelines, as well as the operating, equity and
financial performance of the Mediaset Group, are influenced by various contingent risk factors and
uncertainties that are mainly of the following types:
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Strategic risks linked to both external and internal factors, which are capable of structurally

threatening the business model and the sustainability of the competitive advantages acquired by

significantly compromising the achievement of medium-long term objectives, financial solidity and the

creation of economic value for shareholders:

external and sector risks, mainly attributable to the evolution of the economic cycle, the evolution
of the intermediate and final reference markets (consisting of the demand for the consumption of
audiovisual and entertainment content and the demand for advertising space), the evolution of the
competitive context and the related dynamics of availability and contestability of the key production
factors, consisting of strategic content and artistic resources and the evolution of the regulatory
context of reference on an international and national basis;

internal risks associated with the implementation of strategy lines and guidelines aimed at tackling
the structural maturity of conventional reference markets by leveraging the ability - by operating an
editorial offer model grounded in original self-produced content with a strong local connotation - to
generate stable and high coverage of commercially relevant targets, based on constant efforts to
make efficient and optimise related processes with a view to generating operational flexibility and
cost control, as well as by proceeding on an evolving pathway - including through partnerships and
alliances - to develop new editorial and commercial models and generate adequate managerial,
professional and technological skills in the interests, too, of moulding a corporate and

organisational model that allows for the pursuit of supranational outward growth strategies.

ESG risks, associated with adequately managing major sustainability factors, including with regard to

associated reputational risk profiles, the identification, active management and control of which are

instrumental to achieving medium and long-term strategic objectives, thus contributing to meet the

expectations of key internal and external stakeholders, mainly concerning the following:

environmental policies related to energy management and control; waste, discharge and emission
management; and compliance with regulations on the installation of radio and television
broadcasting equipment in terms of complying with the limits set for electromagnetic emissions;

social responsibility associated with managing, developing and enhancing Human Resources policies
(safequarding employment, health and safety, non-discrimination and the protection of human
rights, diversity and equal opportunities, training, and trade union and industrial relations), editorial
responsibility and responsible management in relations with customers, suppliers and local land and
communities;

corporate governance, value models and systems, compliance with laws and regulations.

Operational risks and process risks, mainly attributable to:

risks concerning business interruption

financial risks concerning the management of financing needs and interest and exchange rate

fluctuations
risks concerning unprotected intellectual property rights

risks concerning the handling of legal disputes

With reference to the main uncertainty factors detectable at the date of this consolidated report, we

bring attention to the events that have been progressively ongoing over the past few weeks in relation
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to the growing and progressive national and international spread of the health emergency caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

In relation to this emergency and the growing restrictions being ordered by Italian Government
Authorities to prevent and contain the spread of the epidemic nationwide (efforts which have been
further strengthened and extended until at least April 3 following the emergency measures imposed by
the Government on 7 March 2020), the Group has acted promptly and in accordance with its own
protocols and policies for managing emergencies and business crises by setting up a Crisis Committee,
which has implemented a contingency plan to protect the health and safety of employees and external
staff, by arranging and extending, where possible, the use of smart-working and "agile working"
methods, by preparing to ensure business and operational continuity both in the current scenario and in
anticipation of further restrictions to accessing offices.

From a management point of view, the situation is constantly being monitored and actions have already
been identified to deal with any business repercussions by preparing all necessary measures and
programming reviews in order to contain any negative impacts on the advertising market with a view to
protecting the profits, cash flow generation, financial strength and cash and cash equivalents in a
manner consistent with the Group's needs.

The sizeable fears and uncertainties about the social and economic repercussions of this situation are
heavily impacting on financial market forecasts and leading to a downward correction of global
economic growth estimates by specialist observers both in the euro area and in Italy, with prevailing
forecasts pointing to a climate of temporary economic slowdown that could materialise throughout the
first half of 2020. Nevertheless, it is still difficult, at present, to estimate the intensity and duration of
this slowdown, which will also depend on the timeliness with which substantial measures are taken to

mitigate the monetary and fiscal effects on the most exposed sectors and companies.

In light of the current initial evidence, the fragmented information on the potential impacts on business
and, above all, the uncertainty as to how long the restrictive measures will remain in place, it has not

been possible at this time to outline credible alternative scenarios supported by statistical evidence.

Therefore, in preparing the consolidated accounts as at 31 December 2019, the main evaluation and
estimation processes - primarily concerning the recoverability testing of key corporate assets - were
carried out based on the most recent budgets and multi-year plans, which are in turn based on
operational and market assumptions that were made before this emergency arose, due to the
impossibility of reliably setting alternative forecast scenarios. As described in detail in the explanatory
notes which follow, sensitivity analyses were also conducted as part of these assessment processes,
with the aim of identifying the key parameter values at which the recoverable amount would be equal to
the carrying amounts. These analyses do not indicate any clear risks of future impairment of the values
entered in the financial statements at 31 December 2019.

Below we describe each of the major strategic and operational risk categories and factors structurally
present for the Group's activities summarised above, as well as a description of their nature and the
main operational and mitigation measures put in place by management with a view to the main evidence
available as at the date of these consolidated financial statements.

As indicated above, for information on the main risks relating to the ESG areas, please refer to the
Sustainability Report (consolidated NFR).

92



External and sector risks
Risks linked to the performance of the economy

The core business of the Mediaset Group depends to a large extent on the performance of advertising
investments, which are structurally cyclical and very closely related - albeit with differences between the
various product sectors - to the general performance of the economy and the growth of end markets,
where customer companies operate. After the extended economic crisis that affected the global
economy and 2008 onwards and was subsequently aggravated following the sovereign debt crisis in
Europe, with regard to which Italy and Spain were among the worst-exposed countries, over the past
two years in both these areas, which are a reference for the Group's activities, there has been a
recovery. The situation is still extremely uncertain in Italy. Positive factors have been the
accommodating monetary policy of the ECB and the trend in oil prices, conditions that should not
necessarily be considered as structural.

In both of these markets, the impact of the recession on the advertising market has been highly negative
in recent years, although the traditional trend for advertising investment to be concentrated in times of
crisis on general interest television, guaranteeing greater visibility on the mass market, has allowed the
Group to consolidate its respective market shares, both in Italy and in Spain. Even before the outset of
the COVID-19 health emergency, the forecasts of leading specialist observers estimated global growth
of 2.9%, reflecting weak global trade and manufacturing production and a persistent period of weakness
and substantial stagnation for the Italian economy, while in 2020 the Spanish economy would continue
to grow albeit at a rate lower than the 1.9% figure recorded in 2019.

In this context, Mediaset's market leadership, in terms of advertising share and editorial results in its
reference markets, together with a strong focus (especially in Italy) on cost-cutting, has consolidated
the Group's medium-term financial equilibrium and has laid the foundations for recovering margins with
greater efficiency, as well as dynamism, were general market conditions are stable. Although the
correlation between macroeconomic trends and advertising investment is inherently predictable over
the long term, in recent years there has been a lower correlation between the trend of the economic
cycle (trend in gross domestic product and private consumption) and the trend in all major European
markets.

More details on the analysis of the general economic trend and the main economic and financial
indicators during 2019 can be found in “The General Economic Trend" section earlier in this document.

Risks connected to the development of the media & communications market

Technological changes, audience fragmentation and the increase in competition

The traditional broadcaster models are now constantly exposed to the process of enlargement of the
traditional competitive scenario, mainly driven by the technological progress. The advent of innovative
new distribution platforms is gradually modifying the way consumers approach media, quiding them
towards more customised, less standardised models with services, content and advertising that
responds to the demands of technologically involved viewers and increasingly demanding, sophisticated
investors.

The main market trends that represent new competitive forces may be summarised as follows:

= Technological progress has steadily changed methods of usage of content, towards more
interactive/on demand media, which specifically favour the migration of younger members of the

public towards more “customised” forms; This process is expected to take root in the coming years
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with the process set forth in legislation to transition to the new DVB-T2 transmission technology,
which will involve the progressive replacement of the current fleet of televisions with internet-
connectable smart TVs.

=  Demand for entertainment content continues to record rates of growth, both in traditional media
and on new platforms.

=  For the general commercial television sector, the convergence of broadcasting platforms is, on the
one hand, creating growth opportunities (multi-channel offers and Pay TV) but, on the other hand,
is posing potential threats such as audience fragmentation and an increase in the total overall
number of available platforms for accessing television content (satellite, internet, mobile, etc.),
resulting in greater complexity in the competitive environment.

=  The multiplication of broadcasting platforms is increasing the value of broadcasting content and
strengthening the competitive advantage of “traditional” operators who have the know-how for the
conception, development and packaging of content and the building of programme schedules.

= The absence of technological barriers is increasing the risk of traditional broadcasters being
bypassed by groups that own original content and formats, or by Internet operators, some of whom
are beginning to move towards purchasing content on the market, in an attempt to duplicate
offering models that compete with those of broadcasters.

= |n Spain, on the other hand, the competitive scenario appears to be less fragmented, with a
television market consolidated around the two main private hubs, consisting of Mediaset Espafa
and Atresmedia.

The situation described above could result in the risk of less interest in the free-to-air generalist
television by the TV viewing public, part of which has been made more sophisticated and demanding by
new communication media and, consequently, there may be the risk for the Group of not adequately
covering opportunities resulting from new emerging businesses. Mediaset's strategic approach to the
principal risk of these competitive dynamics is to consolidate its current model of aggregator and
multiplatform distributor, which is the best way for the Group to face the challenges of the market and
the evolving consumer models by defining an integrated editorial system in which the various
components (free generalist, free multichannel, pay non-linear and web) have a position that is coherent
with the market, and structuring business mechanisms that can guarantee effective coordination in
operational terms, and also in terms of the production/purchasing strategies for content and sales. This
approach will maintain for both the general-interest and special interest channels which are most
important for free-to-air, control over the more concentrated audience and also, using the model mainly
based on OTT television, control over the more diversified audience.

In implementing this strategy, Mediaset has a competitive advantage, in terms of its long established
culture in the general life interest TV business and its unique know-how as a general broadcaster which
was the first to develop innovative models (prepaid pay-per-view model). Along with the activation of
TGCom 24, 2013 saw the addition of the innovative offering of Infinity on-demand content, while in
2018 the new Mediaset Play online platform was launched.

The Group is drawing on highly-trained personnel with consolidated experience in various areas of the
free TV business. In recent years it has also acquired new professional roles to strengthen its internal

know-how in the areas of innovation and development.
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Coverage of the content market

A further element that characterises the evolution of the media & communications sector is the growing
value of the content.

Mediaset, through its subsidiary R.T.l. S.p.A. owns the biggest Italian library of television broadcasting
rights and one of the biggest in Europe, thanks to long-term agreements with the leading American
major studios and distributors and independent American and European producers (TV movies, soap
operas, miniseries and TV serials), which ensure coverage of the needs of the Group's Free TV and Pay
TV businesses.

The Mediaset Group in Italy, through its subsidiaries Medusa Film and Taodue, leading companies in the
distribution and in-house production of television and movie content and products, has control and
access to the best domestic movie and television products. In Spain, content (drama, cinema, sporting
events and digital formats) is produced and marketed to third parties by Mediterraneo and its
subsidiaries and by Telecinco Cinema, the company responsible for managing the investment and
distribution of domestic and European film productions in a manner consistent with to applicable rules
and regulations and which, in recent years, has forged a position of market leadership by selecting,
financing and distributing highly successful titles. Also of note, Mediaset Espafia holds the free-to-air
broadcasting rights to the UEFA European Football Championships in 2020.

Risks connected to the development of the advertising market

TV advertising receipts are still the Group’'s main source of revenue although in recent years it has
diverted by into additional income streams consisting of pay-TV operations, establishing a presence in
complementary businesses such as the sale of multiplatform content, teleshopping and film distribution.

In the current general and industry sector environment, advertising sales are subject to shorter
economic cycles and to the evolution of the markets where its customers operate and are structurally
impacted by the expansion of the competitive environment due to continuous technological progress.
This, in turn, generates structural processes of fragmentation and diversification in the consumption of

products and multi-platform audio-visual media.

In this scenario, the data on total television viewing in Italy show an essentially stable trend in television
consumption. However, this growth is spread across a greater variety and number of channels, which
has accompanied the increase in recent years in the penetration of the digital terrestrial platform,
resulting in the steady and natural erosion of the television viewing share held by the historical and

generalist TV channels.

The general-interest free to air TV model will still be the main channel through which a high number of
contacts can be made over the next few years but it is clear that particularly in the current scenario, the
attraction of and hence competition among, semi-generalist channels with a greater ability to profile

specific targets, has also increased.

For this reason, the Group's current commercial strategy is focusing on maintaining and consolidating
the overall audience shares provided through its editorial offer as a whole, by leveraging the stability
and broad coverage of all commercially relevant targets also in terms of its complete free-to-air
generalist offering, which has since been enhanced with the rights to air UEFA Champions League
matches in the second half of this year and for the following season, as well as leveraging the integrated

multiplatform cross-media offer which is unique in Italy.

Mediaset pursues this strategy both in Italy and in Spain, where the Group operates with its own
exclusive internal advertising sales houses Publitalia ‘80 and Publiespafia. Over the years, these firms

have consolidated their market leadership, by developing operational and management models able to
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rapidly respond to the changing needs of advertising investors and market developments, by attracting
new investors, and by developing commercial policies designed to maximise the television broadcaster’s
ability to segment the most commercially attractive targets and to optimise the positioning of
advertising slots within programme schedules.

Using this know-how, the Group, through the creation of highly specialised agents - Digitalia ‘08 in Italy,
specialised in advertising sales for digital Pay TV channels, and Publimedia Gestién in Spain, and the
fifty-fifty equity investment with Mondadori in the Mediamond joint venture - also controls advertising
sales in other media developed by the Group. In particular, from 2014 Mediamond has been
strengthened by the transfer from the Mondadori Group of the activities and the licence contracts over
the media previously managed by Mondadori Pubblicita. The Group, internal advertising sales houses
aims to focus on cross-media sales, leveraging advertising sales on television, the web, printed media
and radio with unrivalled coverage across the national scene.

Furthermore, thanks to the skills acquired and gained in recent years, the Group's concessionaires are
now at the cutting edge in marketing new and innovative targeted advertising methods (Ad-Tech,
addressable, programmatic). This segment is expected to grow rapidly over the next few years,
characterised by a growing prevalence of connected TVs.

The figures for market shares achieved by the Group's agents, within their respective advertising
markets, are shown in the specific sections of this Report that analyse the Group’s business activities.
Those relating to customer concentration are presented in the section on the management financial
risks in the Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements.

Risks related to requlatory changes

The Mediaset Group operates in various business areas that are governed by strict regulations. Any
failure to comply with requlations therefore constitutes a risk factor for its core business and a possible

source of financial (application of administrative sanctions), image and reputational damage.

Compliance risks are associated with the expansion of the sectors and persons governed by regulations,
or the introduction of reqgulations that are stricter than existing regulations on antitrust limits, the
protection of minors from listening to and viewing certain types of content, overcrowding, slots,

advertising breaks, safeguarding pluralism and equal treatment and quotas for European works.

In a competitive environment that has steadily broadened out to encompass global web operators, a
central regulatory theme for television broadcasters is the need to limit the current regulatory
asymmetry between the television sector and new services, in particular services available online, in
particular to limit the current dominant positions of those operators in their use of users' browsing data
on non-owned sites.

In terms of signal transmission and infrastructure, particular risks derive from the stabilisation of the
reference infrastructure scenario, in terms of the identification, at least for a suitable period of time, of
digital terrestrial as the platform of choice for broadcasting TV channels and in particular free channels,

and from the management of the refarming of 700 MHz frequencies.

Finally, there is always a risk of a possible reform of the public broadcaster in terms of governance and

funding, the effects of which could also have repercussions on private broadcasters.

The diversity of the production and managerial processes, the multiplicity of actors involved in each of
these, the complexity and high number of regulations applicable to the various processes and the wide
margins for interpreting the various regulations mean that, in order to limit risks, it is fundamentally
important to monitor the development of regulations and ensure that they are adhered to.
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The research, disclosure and operational monitoring is, as whole, well-established and effective in
managing the risks of non-compliance with the applicable regulations, also thanks to the creation of
specific company functions.

No matter how effective the monitoring is, there may still be certain non-governable elements and
situations or for which it is difficult to predict the effects on operations or the impact on the public.

A more detailed explanation of the regulatory scenario is given in the section "Development of
legislative situation in the television sector”.

Risks related to the implementation of strategies and the main operating processes

Risks related to business interruption

For an integrated television Group, the risk of business interruption mainly refers to the following:

- risk that the network infrastructure is not adequate to ensure service levels in terms of availability;
- risk of a partial local area coverage failure due to poor international coordination;

- risk of a partial local area coverage failure due to the assignment of part of the frequencies, currently
by broadcast, to other services.

The subsidiary Elettronica Industriale S.p.A. owns the transmitters for transmission and broadcasting
and the rights to use the frequencies. The transmitters are attached to 1,700 technological towers
available to the subsidiary El Towers S.p.A. under a framework agreement between the two companies
that was renewed for seven years from 1 July 2018. The towers of EI Towers S.p.A. cover 96% of the
Italian population.

Elettronica Industriale obtained a network operator’'s license for five digital multiplexes on terrestrial
frequencies from the relevant authorities.

To reduce the first risk type, signal transmission and broadcasting systems have been put in place which
meet the high availability criteria by using equipment that ensures a high level of reliability (high
availability or fault tolerance systems). In addition, the main signal distribution systems are equipped
with backup systems.

Signal transportation networks have been created based on an architecture that uses various
alternative resources (radio bridge networks, satellites, fibre optics), thereby guaranteeing greater
security in signal transport and optimal infrastructure in terms of reliability.

Results in quality and availability terms are constantly monitored by dedicated monitoring centres.

The second of the risk types mentioned above concerns the need to coordinate the transmission
facilities operating in Italy with those operating in neighbouring countries. This coordination could
enforce coverage area restrictions, particularly for facilities located in border zones. To reduce this risk,
antennae will have to be made capable of concentrating the signal as far as possible within the areas
served, thus limiting its diffusion in protected areas. Mediaset is backed by more than 30 years'
experience conducting ever-more-advanced research into antennae which help reduce the risk of
coverage loss. Through its subsidiary Elettronica Industriale, Mediaset also played a key role in the
digital switchover that was completed in 2012, having made investments in digital transportation
infrastructure (multiplexes) from 2003 onwards. This long-held experience in managing digital networks
has enabled Mediaset to take full advantage of SFN technology while simultaneously mitigating its
problem issues.
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Furthermore, as reported in the section of this report entitled Developments in Television-Sector
Legislation, in which the refarming process is described in detail, a transition process is currently
underway for network operators from the current DVB-T transmission standard to the new DVB-T2
transmission technology, under the procedure legislated for in the 2018 Budget Act (Act 205/2017) in
implementation of the European Commission’s Action Plan which stipulates that, by 30 June 2022,
television network operators will cease broadcasting on the 700 MHz band (channels 49 to 60), that
these frequencies will no longer be available on television broadcasters and that they will be reallocated
for 5G broadband communication services.

The Authority has launched the procedure for issuing definitive securities, by means of Resolution
39/19/CONS of 7 February of last year, which provides an update of the National Frequency Allocation
Plan in which 12 nationwide networks have been planned.

On 5 August 2019, the Ministry granted rights of use for the first 10 national channels, allocating
Elettronica Industriale two rights of use for national network frequencies No. 1 and 9, and one right of
use for half of a multiplex, with no frequencies specified. Two multiplexes will then be allocated at
auction in four lots of ¥2 multiplex each. Mediaset is entitled to bid for ¥2 multiplex at the auction. The
capacity of one DVB-T multiplex is equal to the capacity of 0.6 DVB-T2 multiplexes. If Mediaset is
awarded %2 multiplex at auction, | will have three multiplexes available and its current capacity will
remain unchanged after the refarming of the 700 MHz band. If it is unsuccessful, its capacity will reduce
slightly.

In anticipation of this transition, the Group has implemented a technical investment plan to adapt its
transmission equipment to support the new digital terrestrial transmission mode and is preparing
appropriate actions to mitigate the risk that, in the period currently envisaged for the switch-off (30
June 2022), a significant number of television sets will be unable to receive the signal with the new
technological standard.

Therefore, the Budget Act has set aside financing totalling EUR 762 for the refarming of the 700 MHz
band, of which EUR 272 million is designated for the costs of upgrading transmission facilities, EUR 151
million is designated as a contribution towards the purchase of new TV sets (of which EUR 25 million for
2019, EUR 76 million for 2020 and EUR 25 million for each of 2021 and 2022) and EUR 66 million is
designated for miscellaneous purposes including public information.

Together with RAI and other national and local operators, Mediaset belongs to Confindustria Radio TV,
whose objectives include safeguarding the frequencies currently reserved for broadcasting.

For more information on digital terrestrial broadcasting and nationwide coverage, please see the section
of this Report outlining the Group's linear free-to-air and pay-TV offering.

Financial risks

In 2019 the global economy recorded an average growth of around 3%. Eurozone GDP rose by 1.9%,
signalling a slowdown compared to the previous year. However there are significant differences
between the Euro area economies, with Italy recording the lowest rate of growth of the euro area

countries (+0.8%).

In this economic context the Mediaset Group has continued to implement a policy of containing and
carefully monitoring its costs and investments.

Drawdowns on credit facilities increased during 2019 following one-time transactions such as the equity
investment in Prosieben in June and the Mediaset Espafia share acquisition in October.
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In January 2019, the Corporate Bond was repaid in full and new committed credit facilities were opened
for a sum of EUR 350 million. Therefore, in accordance with the Group's policy on liquidity (Policy on
Financial Risks, the latest version of which follows the adoption of new accounting principle IFRS 9 and
is set to be approved in early 2020), the average financial exposure does not exceed 80% of the total
amount currently provided by lenders.

The presence of variable rate debt and the acquisition of television and movie broadcasting rights in
currencies other than the euro (mainly the US dollar) clearly exposes the Group to risks related to
fluctuations in interest and exchange rates. In accordance with its financial risk management policies,
the Group, through derivative contracts entered into with third parties, has adopted a management
approach for such risks aimed at eliminating the effect of the exchange rate fluctuations by establishing
in advance the value at which such rights will be recognised once acquired, and setting or limiting the
free cash flow differences due to market changes in interest rates on medium/long-term debt.

More detailed information regarding financial risk management policies, including those relative to
sensitivity analyses on exchange rates can be found in the specific section of the Explanatory Notes in
the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements under “Additional disclosures about financial instruments

and risk management policies".

Risks concerning unprotected intellectual property rights to content

The oversight of risks connected with control of the content market also means a greater focus on
content produced on markets that are constantly monitored to seek innovative content and through the
continuous effort made by the Group in conjunction with other international players and competent
bodies to safequard the industrial model of broadcasters, ensuring protection of copyright on the web.
In recent years, Mediaset has brought a series of legal actions, in particular against OTT operators,
following repeated violations whereby thousands of copyrighted videos have been uploaded onto the
websites of these operators without authorisation. As reported above in the section entitled “Significant
Events and Key Corporate Transaction for the Year”, in 2019 the Group achieved significant court
rulings in which some portals were sentenced to compensate Mediaset for these violations, with
significant penalties now in place for any future uploads of Mediaset material without authorisation.

Risks connected with the management of legal disputes

Due to the nature of its business, the Group is subject to the risk of legal litigation in the performance of
its activities. In view of current obligations relating to past events of a legal or contractual nature or
deriving from statements or actions taken by the company that could give rise to well-founded
expectations by third parties that the company is responsible for or has to accept responsibility
regarding the fulfilment of an obligation, the Group has made appropriate allocations to risk provisions,
recognised under liabilities in the Group's Financial Statements.

More detailed information regarding the main legal disputes that are currently pending can be found in
the comments contained in the relevant section of the “Explanatory Notes".
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The complex macroeconomic scenario of recent years has not prevented the Mediaset Group from
continuing its policy of investing in its employees, which it considers to be a precious and essential asset
for the future development of the enterprise.

In fact, ensuring the welfare of its human resources and appreciating their talents are core components
of the Mediaset Group's strategy, fully aware that this is the factor on which the pursuit of corporate
objectives depends.

Employee commitment and motivation are important ingredients for the Group's success, and the Group
continues to provide its staff career development opportunities that take account of the benefits offered
by their diverse backgrounds, skills and experience.

With that in mind, tools and processes are designed and supervised with a view to ensuring that staff are
properly assessed and their careers in the Group constantly monitored right from the initial selection
stage, by designing pathways of professional and managerial training that will develop its hallmark
characteristics of behaviour.

In carrying out these activities and initiatives the Mediaset Group respects its employees' rights,
safequards their health and safety at work, guarantees equal opportunities, and fosters the career
development of all staff whatever their gender, category or grade within the organization.

Staff composition

On 31 December 2019, the Mediaset Group had 4,984 employees (of whom 4,843 in permanent posts),
a decrease compared to 2018 (4,760, of whom 4,625 in permanent posts).

ITALY SPAIN
Number of employees (including temporary staff) 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2018
Managers 235 234 112 115
Journalists 335 347 319 144
Middle managers 723 723 96 84
Office workers 2,128 2,186 1,008 894
Industry workers 12 12 16 21
Total 3,433 3,502 1,551 1,258

ITALY SPAIN
Average workforce (including temporary staff) 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2018
Managers 239 247 115 116
Journalists 346 346 315 143
Middle managers 737 778 96 85
Office workers 2,195 2,316 1,014 901
Industry workers 38 50 19 22
Total 3,555 3,738 1,559 1,267

In 2019, the Italian Group companies had 3,433 employees operating in Italy (of whom 3,343 in
permanent posts), compared to a 2018 figure of 3,502 (of whom 3,378 in permanent posts).

The Italian segment also includes a further 25 employees of Publieurope International Ltd., mainly
operating in its London office, and one employee of the company Medset SAS.

Staff are located throughout Italy, concentrated primarily in the Milan area, where 74% of all employees
work in the Cologno Monzese, Segrate and Lissone offices.
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It is worth highlighting that employees in the Spanish segment also include staff based in non-EU
overseas subsidiaries (Mexico, Peru, Colombia and the United States).

Selection and recruitment

The Mediaset Group pays constant attention to initial selection in order to ensure that it hires skilled and
qualified staff, with the attitudes and motivation needed to work effectively within the organization’s
production and cultural environment, also with a view to aiding the process of internal career
development.

Training initiatives

In 2019, managerial, professional and compulsory training initiatives continued on a regular basis.

Public initiatives

Education programmes for non-employees, designed to develop skills linked with the world of
commercial TV, continued in 2019 as in earlier years.

Services for employees

Mediacentre has long been a well-established company facility, offering a number of services to improve
employee quality of life and enable a better work/life balance.

Occupational health and safety; accident prevention

The main actions taken during 2019 aimed at pursuing health and safety objectives were the
implementation throughout the Mediaset Group companies of an Occupational Health and Safety
System compliant with British Standard OHSAS 18001:2007 and certified by the DNV GL (Det Norske
Veritas) Certification Body for the parent company Mediaset S.p.A. and the subsidiaries R.T.I. S.p.A.,
Elettronica Industriale S.p.A., Publitalia’'80 S.p.A., Digitalia'08 Srl and TAO DUE Srl, and the
performance of system audits for all Group companies.
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HUMAN RESOURCES OF THE PARENT COMPANY

STAFF COMPOSITION
Staff numbers and geographical distribution

The complex macroeconomic scenario of recent years has not prevented Mediaset from continuing its
policy of investing in its employees, which it considers to be a valuable and essential asset for the future
development of the enterprise.

In fact, ensuring staff welfare and appreciating their talents are core components of Mediaset's
strategy, in the full knowledge that this is the factor on which the pursuit of corporate objectives
depends.

Employee commitment and motivation are important ingredients for the Company's success, and
Mediaset continues to provide its staff career development opportunities that take account of the
benefits offered by their diverse backgrounds, skills and experience.

With that in mind, tools and processes are designed and supervised with a view to ensuring that staff are
properly assessed and their careers in the Group constantly monitored right from the initial selection
stage, by designing pathways of professional and managerial training that will develop its hallmark
characteristics of behaviour.

In carrying out these activities and initiatives, Mediaset respects its employees’ rights, safequards their
health and safety at work, provides equal opportunities, and fosters the career development of all staff
whatever their gender, category or grade within the organization.

Geographical distribution of permanent employees in Italy (FTE)

Headquarters 2019 % 2018 %
Milan 51 89,5% 49 89,1%
Rome 6 10,5% 6 10,9%
Total 57 100,0% 55 100,0%

Age and length of service

The employee average age and length of service demonstrate the firm's commitment to staff retention
and the care it takes not to lose the professional expertise built up over time, especially in those jobs
where skill depends largely on experience.
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Average age of permanent employees by grade

Age 2019 2018
Excutives 55 54
Journalists 59 58
Middle managers 46 46
Office-workers 48 47

Total 50 49

Permanent employees by age group

Average length of service of permanent employees by grade

Seniority 2019 2018
Excutives 23 22
Journalists 19 18
Middle managers 18 17
Office-workers 22 20

Total 21 18

Equal opportunities

Mediaset S.p.A. also places great importance on its Equal Opportunities Policy, as shown by the
significant proportion of women at all levels of responsibility; women account for 63% of total staff
numbers.

Permanent employees by grade and gender

% %

Category 2019 female 2018 female

Excutives 17 56,0% 16 42,0%
Journalists 2 - 2

Middle managers 20 52,0% 21 47,0%

Office-workers 18 88,0% 16 75,0%

Total 57 62,0% 55 55,0%
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Selection

Mediaset pays constant attention to initial selection in order to ensure that it hires skilled and qualified
staff, with the attitudes and motivation needed to work effectively within the organization’s production
and cultural environment, also with a view to aiding the process of internal career development.

Mediaset has always enjoyed great visibility and attractiveness, as witnessed by the number of
unprompted applications received through the Working with us section of the Corporate website and
linked to the websites of Group companies.

Training
During 2019, the training activities continued on a largely reqular basis.
The main training initiatives carried out during 2019 are listed below:

Employee-hours for each type of training

Training 2019 2018
Managerial Skills Development 23 80
Professional Skills Update 91 233
Foreign Language training 404 132
Compliance 203 214

Total 721 659

Occupational health and safety and prevention
The main occupational health and safety (OHS) initiatives carried out in 2019 are as follows:

Creation of the HSE (Health, Safety and Environment) role, which integrates the existing Health
Protection and Prevention and Workplace Safety areas with the new Environmental Protection area,
with a service deliverable to all Mediaset Group companies.

Implementation throughout all Mediaset Group companies of an OHS Management System compliant
with British Standard OHSAS 18001/2007, certified by the Norwegian certification body DNV GL (Det

Norske Veritas), and the performance of relevant system audits.

Implementation of IT arrangements to support the "Management of Occupational Health and Safety
Obligations" for the "Accident Management" and "Health Surveillance" systems and to manage other
activities such as those for "Non-compliance", "Audits", "Legal obligations", etc., and the updating of

the corporate Health & Safety Intranet site.

Activation of a digital platform to manage OHS compliance for “tender contracts” and the preparation of
interference risk assessment reports.

Continued European certification by the European Network for Workplace Health Promotion (ENWHP) as
a "workplace that promotes health”, with new initiatives aimed at implementing key projects such as the
cardioprotection programme, which entailed the purchase and installation of semi-automated
defibrillators (AEDs) at the company'’s offices.
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Continuation of the “"BENessere AL LAVORO" programme, involving specific training courses held by
corporate training specialists on topics connected with “well-being at work”, ranging from ergonomics in
the workplace, and correct posture, to the importance of movement and stress management; the
programme also involves specific distance training courses to combat alcohol, drugs and gambling
addictions.

Continuation of initiatives to help employees quit smoking, such as talks offered by specialists from San
Raffaele Hospital under the title: “Smoking-related respiratory and non-respiratory illnesses: From the
risks of smoking and passive smoking, to how to kick the habit".

Regular safety meetings (Article 35), consulting and engaging workers' representatives regarding the
assessment of risks and the update of the related document, identifying, planning, implementing and
verifying prevention within the company.

On-site and employee equipment inspections carried out by the Group’s OHS Officers and occupational
medicine specialists.

A continuing focus on worker health and safety, applicable legislation, emergency management and
similar aspects across all workplaces.

Fire drills/evacuation exercises at the Group's offices.

Tests for checks on the quality of the working environment, measuring levels of chemical and biological
pollutants and physical agents, such as:

Implementation of the Healthcare Plan by means of approximately 27 medical check-ups, specialist
investigations and eye/limb examinations for video terminal operators, and other tasks with particular
risks.

Flu vaccinations for all Group employees, free of charge.
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ENVIRONMENT

Mediaset Group may not be a manufacturing company but, in the interests of disclosing information that
is most tailored to our stakeholders’ needs, we nevertheless reporting certain environmental
performance indicators, particularly concerning energy consumption and CO2 emissions. This
information can be found in the relevant section of the Consolidated NFR. The Group will also evaluate
supplementing this disclosure over time with regard to the climate change impacts generated and
incurred by the Group. This activity will also take into account developments in climate change
regulations, with particular reference to the recommendations set forth by the European Commission
(Communication 2019/C 209/01 “Guidelines on non-financial reporting: Supplement on reporting

climate-related information”.

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY ARTICLE 2428 OF THE ITALIAN
CIVIL CODE

Technological innovation and development

R.T.l.'s Technological Innovation and Research Department consists of two areas:
The "Research and Development" area, which engages in:

Defining technical specifications and commercial requirements with international standardisation
bodies.

Collaborating with association head offices in drafting and publishing technical specifications for TV

receivers.

Prototyping and disseminating innovative technologies and applications useful for the Company's core

business development strategies.

Participating in institutional and international round tables for the development of digital television in

Italy and Europe.

Providing technological support for training, information-gathering and dissemination concerning the

company's primary trends in technological innovation.

The “Technological Innovation" area, which engages in:

Researching the technological context of the media world.
Proposing innovation projects.
Implementing Mediaset's in-house innovation projects.
Implementing projects funded by the European Commission.

In 2019, the “Research and Development” area continued its research activities, which primarily

consisted of defining and gathering technical publications on some specific areas:

UltraHDBook 2.0 Project Update: in 2019, the previous versions of technical specifications for TV
receivers for the Italian market across the various In 2019, DTT, SAT and OTT platforms were merged
into a new and updated collection to create version 2.0, which is due to be published in June 2020 and
will also comprise all standards that have been issued by the standardisation bodies in the meantime.
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Among other things, this version 2.0 will include the DVB-I specification, which is the latest standard - as
at the publication date - for linear broadcasting over the internet, which, in coming years, will support
linear channels broadcast over the internet on connected Smart TVs equipped with a DVB-I frontend.

This Italian specification will also include the "lite content protection” function for developing Freemium
broadcasting services, as well as supporting interactivity services innovated based on European
standard 2.0.2, while also including key aspects for implementing “Target Advertisement” and “Spot
Substitution” based on new television advertising supply. These specifications have also been published
by the HbbTV Association in a separate collection of specifications entitled HbbTV T.A., which is
available under commercial agreements with TV manufacturers.

The UltraHD Book collection is published by HD Forum lItalia, of which Mediaset has been a founding
partner since 2006 and in which it holds a Vice Presidency position with responsibility for developing
Italian technical specification for TV receivers.

The UltraHD Book collection sets out the most advanced technological standards available in Europe for
the creation of multiplatform, ultra-high definition (UHD or 4K) ready television receivers, including new
specifications for high dynamic range (HDR) imaging, next-generation audio (NGA) and hybrid broadcast
broadband TV (HbbTV 2). Ultra HD Book 2.0 content was also developed with a view to the refarming of
the UHF 700 MHz band spectrum in Italy, as well as for the rollout of HEVC encoders, which are
necessary to integrate the new features offered by TV 4.0 - set to be rolled out in Italy in July 2022 -
into television broadcasts.

HbbTV Project: in the field of HbbTv, in 2019 Mediaset - an active member of the association's
government - played a role in continuing with the collection of Commercial Requirements for new
Technical Specifications, in anticipation of the publication of the updated version of the HbbTV 2.0.3
standard, which is expected to be published in 2021. Furthermore, following the publication of the DVB-I
standard last December, HbbTV recently began collecting additional commercial requirements for the
integrated operation of HbbTV with the DVB-I client. This required a further addendum to the HbbTV
2.0.3 specification, currently in publication (v. 2.0.4), as well as new and specific assertion tests to
certify that they the technology is compatible with new TV receivers using HbbTV 2.0.4 middleware,
which will be launched in the Italian market in 2022 as the 700 MHz band is being re-farmed.

Furthermore, in 2019 the Research department of the Technology Innovation & Research Division
helped to develop the HbbTV OpApp standard with the evolution of a reference application, used at
Tivusat, which enables broadcasters to use specific control functions and tools residing in TV receivers
equipped with HbbTV OpApp so as to create an EPG-fitted portal capable of offering advanced
interactive catchup TV services with a distinctive, branded and broadcaster-tailored user experience in
the services offered on advanced HbbTV 2 receivers. The department also helped identify new
commercial requirements, including: Ad Replacement, support for the dynamic management of HDR

metadata, management and control of NGA multi-channel audio functionality and much more.

As a result of this work, the R&D department aimed to showcase and advertise the possibilities that the
new technical standards offer in terms of the new HbbTV 2 interactivity system by helping toed develop
an in-house prototype for disseminating and qualifying future enhanced interactive services.

Many of the demonstrations at the international HD Forum Italia 2018 in Milan were subsequently
integrated into the services offered by Mediaset channels in 2019, in particular by Mediaset Play in the
field of Addressable Advertisement and AdTech.
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Copyright Management Project: Article 17 of the Copyright Directive recently adopted by the European
Union calls for deep-seated cooperation between content rights holders and online content sharing
providers so as to protect the copyright and ensure the proper commercialisation of protected works.

Mediaset is always sensitive to the issue of protecting and safeqguarding the proper use of content and
their related rights, as enshrined in the Directive, and has had its R&D department draw up a proposal,
which was presented before DG Connect in Brussels in October of last year and later at the headquarters
of the EBU. This proposal foresees the development of an open technological solution that enables free-
to-air broadcasters to brand their own free-to-air television broadcasts with a watermark, incorporating
a code that is capable of unambiguously classifying broadcast audiovisual content so that it can be
quickly and correctly identified and metadated by those same broadcasters if it is uploaded by third
parties on online content sharing services platforms.

Once inserted in the broadcast images, this watermark is resistant to content tampering, thus enabling
online content sharing platforms to read the “necessary & relevant information” on downloaded content
(content metadata), as required by Article 17 of the EU Copyright Directive, by using a standardised tool
(open software) provided by broadcasters and identifying the owners of the broadcast production and

the connected copyright holder

In order to sculpt a solution suitable to all television and radio broadcasters, common rules and
semantics must be established for these watermarks, as must an unambiguous, password-readable
format containing these data, enabling online platform owners to retrieve information regarding the
production, its ownership and its copyrights to ensure that it is commercialised properly wherever it is
permitted. This aims to prevent piracy and counterfeiting.

The rationale behind Mediaset's proposal submitted to the EBU headquarters in 2019 foresees the
creation or adoption, where possible, of an open standard capable of branding broadcast television
content and making it readable using an open software tool made available to all online content sharing
platforms. This has the aim of protecting intellectual property rights to the production's
commercialisation and prosecuting copyright violations.

This proposal will be further developed in 2020.

During 2019, the "Technological Innovation” department played a role in changing the way in which
television is made by introducing advanced Artificial Intelligence technologies. Furthermore, the
department continued to undertake activities focusing on Virtual Reality technologies.

The main innovation projects in which R.T.I. was involved in 2019 are described below.

ART Project - The ART (Audience in Real Time) project is aimed at estimating the real-time audience
shares determined by Auditel for Mediaset's general-content television channels, based on the historical
data from Auditel contained in the Mediaset database and various other real-time audience data

sources.

Currently, the project consists of a Machine Learning engine for analysing and predicting data, certain
APIs for receiving and sending data, a web interface for mobile application view and an HbbTV
application. The activities carried out in 2019 caused the algorithm to become very reliable in its
forecasts.

Deligo Project - The Deligo project comprises a system to support programme scheduling, which uses an
Al algorithm to process a series of input data using an Al algorithm. by preparing a series of input data
(such as content identification details, rights, past broadcasts, audience, etc.).
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During the year, an advanced version of this tool was developed and a field trial was carried out in which
the tool was used to support prime-time and daytime broadcasting of the Iris and LA5 channels.

#AUTOTAG Project - The #AUTOTAG project aims to develop a platform able to automatically extract
metadata from Mediaset’s video content using machine-learning technology.

The solution developed has enabled us to test the potential of automatic tagging technologies and to
evaluate the maturity and accuracy of the computer vision and natural language processing services
provided by the following cloud providers: Google Cloud Platform, Amazon Web Service, Microsoft
Azure.

Ad-hoc algorithms have also been developed to meet needs specific to Mediaset's situation.

AUDIENCE FORECASTING Project - This project aims to forecast future audiences of Mediaset
programmes. The goal is to provide a tool that supports decision-making over scheduling with a view to
maximising television audiences. The system is based on advanced Machine Learning algorithms that
learn from the history of Italian TV broadcasting.

SOCIALBEAT PROJECT - Thanks to the fruitful collaboration with the startup Sensitive, Mediaset's
editorial teams now have access to an advanced content discovery system that monitors thousands of

news reports and online posts to quickly identify trending topics.

European "HYPER 360" project - This was the last of the European projects launched (in October
2017), which is running for 36 months. The objective is to offer a complete toolkit for the production of
virtual reality (VR) videos using 360° technology, which can be enhanced with 3D storytelling elements
- such as a mentor to guide users in their experience of the video - or targeted and interactive
advertising content.

Mediaset, together with the German broadcaster RBB, is participating in the project and is responsible
for implementing and producing pilots. Mediaset will specifically deal with advertising contexts, whereas
RBB will deal with journalism contexts.

During the first two years of the project, requirements were identified and the first scenarios were
defined, with the acquisition of 360° video content to complete the initial pilot and audience assessment

phase.

Dealings with companies: subsidiaries, associates, holding companies, affiliates
and related parties

On 9 November 2010, the Board of Directors adopted the “Procedure for related-party transactions”
conducted directly by Mediaset S.p.A. or through subsidiaries, drawn up according to the principles set
forth in the “Requlations enacting provisions on related-party transactions” adopted by Consob with
resolution no. 17221 of 12 March 2010. On 17 December 2013, the Board of Directors amended
Article 7, letter a) of the “Procedure for related-party transactions”.

The procedure, which is published on the Company's website
(www.mediaset.it/investor/governance/particorrelate_it.shtml), sets the rules for identifying,
approving, executing and disclosing related-party transactions carried out by Mediaset S.p.A. directly or
through subsidiaries, in order to ensure their transparency and substantive and procedural correctness,
as well as establishing the cases for exclusion from these rules.
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Right to opt-out of the obligation to publish reports in the event of significant
transactions

Pursuant to Article 3 of Consob Resolution No. 18079 of 20 January 2012, on 13 November 2012 the
Board of Directors decided to apply the opt-out mechanism established in Article 70, paragraph 8 and
Article 71, paragraph 1-bis of Consob Regulation No. 11971/99, as amended, thereby taking advantage
of the right to opt-out of obligations to publish the reports required in the event of significant
transactions such as mergers, spin-offs, and share capital issues through the transfer of assets in kind,

acquisitions and disposals.

Treasury shares held by subsidiaries

No subsidiary holds any treasury shares of the issuer.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Privacy: protection and supervision measures

The Mediaset Group - in compliance with current legislation - in particular EU Regulations, Italian
Legislative Decree No. 196/196 (the Personal Data Protection Code) and domestic privacy regulations -
has adopted an organisational and operational privacy model (the “Organisational Privacy Model")
aimed at optimising business processes concerning personal data protection issues.

The Mediaset Group has also issued Organisational Data Breach Guidelines for any violations that
accidentally or unlawfully entail the destruction, loss, modification, unauthorised disclosure or access to
personal data. A data breach management plan has been prepared so that, when necessary, an action
plan can be prepared and the Supervisory Authority can be notified within 72 hours of a data breach
becoming known, and for the data subject to be informed if the data breach jeopardises his/her
individual rights and freedoms.

Supervision and control

The Company has followed up on the enacting of Legislative Decree 231/2001 concerning the criminal
liability of companies. In 2003 it set up an internal “Supervisory and Control Body", which, with full
autonomy and the support of company department and external consultants, where necessary, is tasked
with supervising the full application of the “compliance programme" adopted, by updating its contents

and reporting any violations or breaches to the Company’s Board of Directors.

Management and coordination activities

Mediaset S.p.A. is subject to the de facto control of Fininvest S.p.A. as at 31 December 2019, as the
latter owns 44.175% of the share capital. On 4 May 2004, Fininvest notified Mediaset that pursuant to
Article 2497 et seq of the Italian Civil Code, it would not conduct the management and coordination of
Mediaset. The Company acknowledged Fininvest's notification at the Board of Directors’ meeting of 11
May 2004. The above notification from Fininvest is still applicable as Mediaset defines its own strategies
independently and has total organisational, operational and negotiating autonomy, because Fininvest
does not oversee or coordinate its business operations. Specifically, Fininvest does not issue any
directives to Mediaset nor does it provide assistance or technical, administrative or financial
coordination on behalf of Mediaset and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to Article 2497 et seq of the Italian

Civil Code, Mediaset S.p.A. currently manages and coordinates the following Mediaset Group companies:

Digitalia '08 S.r.l.
Elettronica Industriale S.p.A.
Mediaset Italia S.p.A.
Medusa Film S.p.A.
Monradio S.r.l.

Publitalia '80 S.p.A.

R2 S.r.l.

Radio Aut S.r.l.
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RadioMediaset S.p.A.
Radio Studio 105 S.p.A.
Radio Subasio S.r.l.
RMC Italia S.p.A.

R.T.I. S.p.A.

Taodue S.r.l.

Virgin Radio Italy S.p.A.

Consob Communication DAC/RM97001574 of 20 February 1997

In relation to the Consob recommendation (Communication dated 20/02/1997, ref. DAC/RM97001574)
below is a list of directors and their mandates:

The Chairman

Fedele Confalonieri with all powers of ordinary and extraordinary management up to the limit of EUR
15,000,000.00 per individual transaction, with the exception of those powers that fall under the
exclusive authority of the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee. Pursuant to the Company

Bylaws, the Chairman represents the Company.
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pier Silvio Berlusconi with all powers of ordinary and extraordinary management up to the limit of EUR
15,000,000.00 per individual transaction, with the exception of those powers that fall under the
exclusive authority of the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee. Pursuant to the Company
Bylaws, the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer represents the Company. The Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer replaces the Chairman, representing the Company, in his absence
or impediment. The actual exercising of the power of representation by the Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer indicates per se the absence or impediment of the Chairman and exonerates third

parties from any verification or responsibility thereof.
Directors

Marina Berlusconi

Marina Brogi

Andrea Canepa

Raffaele Cappiello

Costanza Esclapon de Villeneuve

Giulio Gallazzi

Marco Giordani

Francesca Mariotti

Gina Nieri

Danilo Pellegrino

Niccolo' Querci

Stefano Sala
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Carlo Secchi
Executive Committee
Fedele Confalonieri
Pier Silvio Berlusconi
Marco Giordani
Gina Nieri
Niccolo" Querci
Stefano Sala
Risk, Control and Sustainability Committee
Carlo Secchi (Chairman)
Marina Brogi
Costanza Esclapon de Villeneuve
Compensation Committee
Andrea Canepa (Chairman)
Marina Brogi
Francesca Mariotti
Governance and Appointments Committee
Raffaele Cappiello (Chairman)
Francesca Mariotti
Carlo Secchi
Related Parties Committee
Marina Brogi (Chairman)
Giulio Gallazzi

Carlo Secchi
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER 31 DECEMBER 2019

The most significant events of the opening months of 2019 concern the MFE - MediaforEurope Cross-
border Merger Project, in particular the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of Mediaset and
Mediaset Espafia held on 10 January and 5 February 2020, respectively, and the legal proceedings
brought by Vivendi and Simon Fiduciaria. These events are described in depth in the previous section of
this Report relating entitled “Significant Events and Key Corporate Transaction for the Year”.

Also of note are the events that have transpired in recent weeks in connection with the growing
nationwide and international emergency linked to the COVID-19 pandemic, which are described in the
section entitled “Main Risks and Uncertainties to which the Group is Exposed” and further discussed in
the paragraph entitled “Business Outlook”.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK FOR 2020

The positive performance recorded in 2019 has made possible a structural strengthening of the Group
compared with the previous year. In addition, the first months of 2020 Mediaset in Italy recorded a
marked rise in TV, radio and online ratings which, in turn, generated positive results in terms of
advertising revenues (+2.1%).

However, visibility has diminished significantly in recent weeks due to the Covid-19 emergency. Great
uncertainty and concerns about the social and economic impact of the health crisis will depend to a
great extent on how rapidly and effectively monetary and fiscal policies will be implemented to support
the most exposed sectors and operators. As things stand, it is not currently possible to make reliable
forecasts about the duration or the effects of the emergency on the management and results of the
Group.

Consequently, the Group is operating on two complementary fronts: on the one hand, pursuing
international development with determination, alongside other mid-term structural projects, and, on the
other, putting in place all the necessary measures to contain the eventual negative impact on the
advertising market with a view to safeqguarding the Group's results and cash generation.

Finally, it should be noted that, following the completion of the MFE, the timing of which is dependent on
ongoing legal proceedings brought by Vivendi, the Group expects to benefit from both synergies and the
new opportunities offered by the pan-European scale.
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NET RESULT OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The profit of Mediaset S.p.A for 2019 was EUR 126,028,023.96=

For the Board of Directors
the Chairman
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MEDIASET GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
(values in EUR million)

ASSETS Notes 31/12/2019 31/12/2018

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment 7.1 356.5 216.9
Television and movie rights 7.2 974.7 972.2
Goodwill 7.3 796.7 794.1
Other intangible assets 7.5 612.4 605.5
Investments in associates and joint ventures 7.6 494.5 497.9
Other financial assets 7.7 610.6 75.1
Deferred tax assets 7.8 476.2 520.1
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 4,321.6 3,681.9

Current assets

Inventories 8.1 44.7 41.2
Trade receivables 8.2 863.2 891.2
Tax receivables 8.3.1 54.3 48.8
Other receivables and current assets 8.3.2 182.7 170.2
Current financial assets 8.4 35.8 26.1
Cash and cash equivalents 8.5 245.1 389.8
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,425.7 1,567.2

Non current assets held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS 5,747.3 5,249.1

Pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 dated 27th July 2006, the effects of related-party transactions on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet items are shown in the Balance Sheet table presented on the following pages and are further described in Explanatory
Note 17.
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(values in EUR million)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes 31/12/2019  31/12/2018
Share capital and reserves

Share capital 9.1 614.2 614.2
Share premium reserve 9.2 275.2 275.2
Treasury shares 9.3 (401.3) (408.6)
Other reserves 9.4 525.5 594.6
Valuation reserve 9.5 (66.1) (32.6)
Retained earnings 9.6 1,340.1 898.3
Net profit for the year 190.3 468.2
Group Shareholders' Equity 2,477.9 2,409.4
Minority interests in net profit 97.5 96.5
Minority interests in share capital, reserves and retained earnings 314.9 347.3
Minority interests 412.5 443.7
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,890.4 2,853.1

Non current liabilities

Post-employment benefit plans 10.1 69.2 68.9
Deferred tax liabilities 7.8 89.8 86.5
Financial liabilities and payables 10.2 1,031.0 745.6
Provisions for non current risks and charges 10.3 48.1 61.7
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,238.1 962.7

Current liabilities

Financial payables 11.1 612.2 6.7
Trade and other payables 11.2 722.7 720.6
Provisions for current risks and charges 10.3 80.2 101.1
Current tax liabilities 11.3 3.5 3.2
Other financial liabilities 11.4 28.3 406.9
Other current liabilities 11.6 171.9 194.9
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,618.8 1,433.3

Liabilities related to non current assets held for sale
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,857.0 2,396.0

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,747.3 5,249.1

Pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 dated 27th July 2006, the effects of related-party transactions on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet items are shown in the Balance Sheet table presented on the following pages and are further described in Explanatory
Note 17.
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
(values in EUR million)

STATEMENT OF INCOME Notes 2019 2018
Revenues from sales of goods and services 12.1 2,893.6 3,352.0
Other revenues and income 12.2 32.2 49.6
TOTAL NET CONSOLIDATED REVENUES 2,925.7 3,401.5
Personnel expenses 12.3 498.2 497.0
Purchases, services, other costs 12.4 1,490.2 1,838.4
Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs 12.5 582.7 992.4
TOTAL COSTS 2,571.1 3,327.8
OPERATING RESULT 354.6 73.7
Financial expenses 12.6 (55.6) (88.0)
Financial income 12.7 65.6 71.8
Result of Investments accounted for using equity method 12.8 17.1 6.4
EBT 381.7 64.0
Income taxes 129 (93.9) (19.3)
NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 287.8 44.7
Net profit from discontinued operations 12.10 S 550.0
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12.11 287.8 594.7

Attributable to:

-Equity shareholders of the parent company 190.3 468.2
- Minority interests 97.5 126.4
Earning per share 12.12 =

- Basic 0.17 0.41
- Diluted 0.17 0.41

Pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 dated 27th July 2006, the effects of related-party transactions on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet items are shown in the Balance Sheet table presented on the following pages and are further described in Explanatory
Note 17.
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(values in EUR million)

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RECYCLED TO PROFIT AND LOSS

Effective portion of gains and losses
on hedging instruments (cash flow hedge)

Other Gains or Losses of associates
valued by equity method

Tax effects

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
NOT RECYCLED TO PROFIT AND LOSS

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

Gains and losses on time value reserves

Other Gain or Losses of Investments at FVOCI

Tax effects

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR NET OF TAX EFFECTS (B)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (A)+(B)

attributable to:
- owners of parent company

- non controlling interests

Notes

9.5

9.4

9.5

9.5

9.5

FY 2019
287.8
5.9
8.8
0.7)
(2.1)
(44.0)
(3.6)
4.7
47.3)
2.2
(38.0)
249.8
153.8

96.0

FY 2018
594.7
25.1
33.8
0.4
(8.3)
3.8)
0.2
(0.5)
21.3
616.0
492.0
127.0
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(values in EUR million)

Notes 2019 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating result 354.6 73.7
+ Depreciation and amortisation 582.7 992.4
+ Other provisions and non-cash movements 12.1) 42.4
+ Change in trade receivables 27.9 80.2
+ Change in trade payables 115.0 57.1
+ Change in other assets and liabilities (63.8) (26.4)
- Interests (paid)/received 0.7) 1.4
- Income tax paid (47.5) (51.5)
Net cash flow from discontinued operations - 72.4
Net cash flow from operating activities [A] 956.1 1,241.7
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 6.0 16.8
Purchases in television rights (501.9) (590.1)
Changes in advances for television rights (32.1) 25.0
Purchases of other fixed assets (64.6) (53.0)
Equity investments 13.1 (1.1) (465.6)
Changes in payables for investing activities (121.7) (303.5)
Proceeds/(Payments) for hedging derivatives (35.0) 0.8
Changes in other financial assets 13.2 (504.5) 4.6
Loans to other companies (granted)/repaid 1.9 8.2
Dividends received 40.8 29.7
Business Combinations net of cash acquired 13.3 (18.4) (3.3)
Changes in consolidation area 13.4 32.7) 648.4
Net cash flow from discontinued operations = (56.5)
Net cash flow from investing activities [B] (1,263.3) (738.6)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Parent company and subsidiaries changes in treasury shares (94.6)

Changes in financial liabilities 13.5 726.1 (156.9)
Corporate bond 13.5 (375.0) 0.0
Dividends paid (46.6) (95.5)
Changes in other financial assets/liabilities 13.5 (17.4) (0.0)
Interests (paid)/received (30.0) (28.3)
Net cash flow from discontinued operations = (5.2)
Net cash flow from financing activities [C] 162.6 (286.0)
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [D=A+B+C] (144.6) 217.1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD [E] 389.8 172.7
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE PERIOD [F=D+E] 245.1 389.8
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Balance at 1/1/2018

Allocation of the parent company's 2017 net
profit

Dividends paid by the parent company
Share based payment reserve evaluation
(Purchase)/sale of treasury shares

Profits/(losses) from negotiation of treasury shares
Changes in controlling stake on subsidiaries
Business Combinations

Other changes

Comprehensive income/(loss) from discontinued
operations

Comprehensive income/(loss) from continuing
operations

Balance at 31/12/2018

New accounting standard first time adoption

Balance as 1/1/2019

Allocation of the parent company's 2018 net
profit

Dividends paid by the parent company
Share based payment reserve evaluation
(Purchase)/sale of treasury shares

Profits/(losses) from negotiation of treasury shares
Changes in controlling stake on subsidiaries
Business Combinations

Other changes

Comprehensive income/(loss) from discontinued
operations

Comprehensive income/(loss) from continuing
operations

Balance at 31/12/2019

Share capital

614.2

614.2

614.2

614.2

Share premium reserve

275.2

275.2

275.2

275.2

Legal reserve and other

MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(values in EUR million)

Company's treasury

reserves shares
808.0 (416.7)
8.1
1.3) -
(211.6) -
(0.4) -
594.6 (408.6)
594.6 (408.6)
- 7.3
(7.3) -
17.9) -
(43.2) -
0.7) -
525.5 (401.3)

Valuation reserve

(54.0)

0.1)

0.3)

21.5
(32.6)

(32.6)

(35.8)

(66.1)

'

losses) perlo

599.3 90.5
90.5 (90.5)
3.2) -
2133 -
520.0
(48.7)

898.3 471.3
(3.0)

898.3 468.3
468.3 (468.3)
3.0 -
(29.0) -
0.5 -
190.3

1,340.1 190.3

Total Group
shareholders'equity

1,916.6

0.3

3.2)
(1.3)
0.1)

1.7

519.7

7.7)

2,412.4
3.0

2,409.4

4.9
73
(7.3)
(46.9)

(43.4)

153.8

2,477.9

Total shareholder Equity
attribtable to minority
interests

465.9

(127.5)

0.8
(19.9)
0.8

29.6

97.3
443.7
443.7

(46.6)

(79.3)

@7

96.0

412.5

TOTAL SHARE HOLDERS'
EQUITY

2,382.5

(127.5)

2,856.2
3.0

2,853.1

(46.6)
4.9

IS
(7.3)
(126.2)

(46.1)

249.8

2,890.4
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION PURSUANT TO
CONSOB RESOLUTION NO. 15519 OF 27 JULY 2006
(values in EUR million)

of which of which
VS. VS.
related related
ti ti

ASSETS Notes 31/12/2019 (ote 17 %weight 31/12/2018 (ote 17) % weight
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7.1 356.5 216.9
Television and movie rights 7.2 974.7 1.2 0% 972.2 1.2 0%
Goodwill 7.3 796.7 794.1
Other intangible assets 7.5 612.4 0.1 0% 605.5 0.1 0%
Investments in associates and joint ventures 7.6 494.5 497.9
Other financial assets 7.7 610.6 5.2 1% 75.1 4.7 6%
Deferred tax assets 7.8 476.2 520.1
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 4,321.6 3,681.9
Current assets
Inventories 8.1 44.7 41.2
Trade receivables 8.2 863.2 66.9 8% 891.2 82.0 9%
Tax receivables 8.3.1 54.3 - 0% 48.8 - 0%
Other receivables and current assets 8.3.2 182.7 0.4 0% 170.2 1.2 1%
Current financial assets 8.4 35.8 11.8 33% 26.1 54 21%
Cash and cash equivalents 8.5 245.1 389.8
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,425.7 1,567.2
Non current assets held for sale -
TOTAL ASSETS 5,747.3 5,249.1
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION PURSUANT TO
CONSOB RESOLUTION NO. 15519 OF 27 JULY 2006

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

AND LIABILITIES Notes 31/12/2019 (note 17) % weight 31/12/2018 (note 17) % weight
Share capital and reserves

Share capital 9.1 614.2 614.2

Share premium reserve 9.2 275.2 275.2

Treasury shares 9.3 (401.3) (408.6)

Other reserves 9.4 525.5 594.6

Valuation reserve 9.5 (66.1) (32.6)

Retained earnings 9.6 1,340.1 898.3

Net profit for the period 190.3 468.2

Group Shareholders' Equity 2,477.9 2,409.4

Minority interests in net profit 97.5 96.5

Minority interests in share capital,

reserves and retained earnings 314.9 347.3

Minority interests 412.5 443.7

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,890.4 2,853.1

Non current liabilities

Post-employment benefit plans 10.1 69.2 68.9

Deferred tax liabilities 7.8 89.8 86.5

Financial liabilities and payables 10.2 1,031.0 99.9 10% 745.6 99.9 13%
Provisions for non current

risks and charges 10.3 48.1 61.7

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,238.1 962.7

Current liabilities

Financial payables 11.1 612.2 6.7

Trade and other payables 11.2 722.7 79.5 11% 720.6 78.8 11%
Provisions for current risks and charges 10.3 80.2 0% 101.1

Current tax liabilities 11.3 3.5 1.2 34% 3.2 0.4 13%
Other financial liabilities 11.4 28.3 3.9 14% 406.9 5.5 1%
Other current liabilities 11.6 171.9 9.8 6% 194.9 9.9 5%
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,618.8 1,433.3

Liabilities related to non current assets

held for sale

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,857.0 2,396.0

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES 5,747.3 5,249.1

(values in EUR million)

of which
vs.

related

parties

of which
vs.

related

parties
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MEDIASET GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME PURSUANT TO CONSOB
RESOLUTION NO. 15519 OF 27 JULY 2006
(values in EUR million)

of which vs. of which vs.
related related
ti ti

STATEMENT OF INCOME Notes FY 2019 (:oatreli%) % weight FY 2018 (lf:trelifl) % weight
Revenues from sales of goods and services 12.1 2,893.6 126.3 4% 3,352.0 120.2 4%
Other revenues and income 12.2 32.2 3.5 11% 49.6 3.1 6%
TOTAL NET CONSOLIDATED REVENUES 2,925.7 3,401.5
Personnel expenses 12.3 498.2 497.0
Purchases, services, other costs 12.4 1,490.2 395.6 27% 1,838.4 248.4 14%
Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs 12.5 582.7 - 0% 992.4 0.1 0%
TOTAL COSTS 2,571.1 3,327.8
OPERATING RESULT 354.6 73.7
Financial expenses 12.6 (55.6) (1.5) 3% (88.0) (1.6) 2%
Financial income 12.7 65.6 0.3 0% 71.8 0.2 0%
Result of Investments accounted for using
equity method 12.8 17.1 6.4
EBT 381.7 64.0

Income taxes 129 (93.9) (19.3)
NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS 287.8 44.7
Net profit from discontinued operations 12.10 o 550.0
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 12.11 287.8 594.7
Attributable to:
- Equity shareholders of the parent company 190.3 468.2
- Minority Interests 97.5 126.4
Earnings per share 12.12
- Basic 0.17 0.41
- Diluted 0.17 0.41
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EXPLANATORY NOTES

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
Mediaset S.p.A. is a joint stock company incorporated in Italy and entered in the Milan Companies

Register. Its registered office is located at Via Paleocapa, 3, Milan. Its majority shareholder is Fininvest
S.p.A.. The main business activities of the company and its subsidiaries are described in the opening
section of the Report on Operations.

These Financial Statements contained herein are presented in Euro, as this is the currency used for the
majority of the Group's operations.

2. PRESENTATION BASES AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, with the Directors having

verified that there are no financial, operational or other indications pointing to any critical issues that
could affect the Group's ability to meet its obligations in the foreseeable future. The risks and
uncertainties regarding the business are described in the Report on Operations. The manner in which
the Group manages its financial risks, including liquidity and capital risk, is described in the section
entitled “Additional information on financial instruments and risk management policies” in these

Explanatory Notes.

The Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with
the IAS/IFRS and pursuant to the related principles for interpretation issued by the SIC/IFRIC, as
endorsed by the European Commission and in force as at the reporting date.

The general basis for the presentation of assets and liabilities is historical cost, with the exception of
certain financial instruments which have been reported at fair value in accordance with IFRS 9 and IFRS
13.

The tables in the Financial Statements and the Explanatory Notes have been prepared together with the
additional information required for financial statements formats and disclosures established by Consob
Resolution No. 15519 of 27 July 2006 and by Consob Communication No. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

Given their scale, the item values in the Consolidated Financial Statements are stated in millions of euro.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Explanatory Notes, the use of estimates and
assumptions has been necessary to appraise certain assets and liabilities and measure contingent assets
and liabilities.

2.1 Use of estimates

Estimates have mainly been used to appraise the recoverable amount of the cash generating units
(CGUs) to which goodwill or other assets with definite or indefinite useful lives are allocated for the
purposes of periodic testing as required by IAS 36. In accordance with IAS 36, these assets should be
measured at the higher of (i) their value in use or (ii) their fair value, net of disposal costs. Estimating
the value in use involves, first, identifying the expected future cash flows that each asset or cash
generating unit (CGU) will produce in its current condition, based on the five-year plans (2020-2024)
drawn up on the basis of the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2020, and,
second, setting an appropriate discount rate. The main uncertainties that could influence this estimate
relate to determining the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) and the growth rate (g-rate) of the
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cash flows beyond the forecast period, the development of the industry markets and, therefore, the
assumptions made in appraising the expected cash flows for the years explicitly forecast and the cash
flows used to determine the Terminal Value. Estimating fair value, on the other hand, involves applying
the measurement criteria and techniques envisaged by IFRS 13 to determine - using one or more
measurement technigues designed to maxi the observable inputs - the price that would be received, as
at the measurement date, from the sale of an asset or a group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the main market for those assets.

Impairment and recoverability testing of the deferred tax assets posted in the Financial Statements as at
31 December 2019, with particular reference to the tax losses generated in the Italian consolidated tax
return, took into consideration the taxable income based on the five-year plans (2020-2024) so as to
run impairment testing for the period in question, with the expected taxable income for the subsequent
periods then extrapolated from these plans. Impairment testing also took into consideration the effects
of the temporary differences on which deferred tax liabilities are recorded.

In addition to the above, the main forecasting data take into account provisions for risks and charges
and bad debt provisions, the useful life of assets (tangible, intangible and television broadcasting rights),
recoverability assessments regarding the carrying amount of equity investments in associates, and the
fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured using the fair value method.

The estimates and assumptions above are periodically revised and the impacts of each change are
recognised in the income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND MEASUREMENT BASES

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations applied since 1 January 2019

Since 1 January 2019, a number of new accounting standards and/or amendments and interpretations
of standards previously in force have become applicable.

IFRS 16 Leases

On 13 January 2016, the IASB published standard IFRS 16 - "Leases", which replaced IAS 17 "Leasing",
and also published interpretations IFRIC 4 - "Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease",
SIC-15 - "Operating Leases - Incentives", and SIC-27 - "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease".

The new standard provides a new definition of a lease and introduces a right-of-use approach to
distinguish between lease agreements and service agreements, identifying the following as
distinguishing factors:

- theidentification of the asset.

- the supplier's right to substitute the asset.

- theright to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset; and
- theright to direct the use of the underlying asset.

The standard establishes a single model for the recognition and measurement of lease agreements for
the lessee, whereby the leased asset, which may also refer to an operating lease, is recognised as an
asset with a financial debt recognised as an offsetting entry. In contrast, the standard does not include

significant changes for lessors.
The standard has been applicable since 1 January 2019.

The Group opted to adopt the modified retrospective method, whereunder the cumulative effect of
applying the standard was recognised in shareholders’ equity as at 1 January 2019, as provided for in
paragraphs IFRS 16:C7-C13. In particular, as regards lease agreements previously classified as

operating leases, the Company has recognised:

- a total financial liability of EUR 140.6 million, equal to the present value of future payments
outstanding at the transition date, discounted for each agreement using the incremental borrowing
rate applicable at the transition date.

- aright of use (for leases on real estate and television studios and rentals of staff company cars)
equal to the value of the financial liability at the transition date, net of any accruals and deferrals
related to the lease and recognised in the statement of financial position at the transition date.

Please note that the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the financial liabilities recorded in the
Financial Statements as at 1 January 2019 has been calculated using the risk-free rate (Euro Swap

Curve) plus a spread corresponding to the credit worthiness of Mediaset S.p.A.

Renewal periods have been factored into the lease term where an enforceable renewal option exists, as

long as it was reasonably certain that this option would be exercised.

Following the adoption of the new accounting principal in the income statement beginning 1 January
2019, the right-of-use depreciation values have been determined based on the established lease terms,

the assessed probability of renewal and the relevant interests in liability-related financial expenses.
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The financial data for the comparison period - for which lease payments must be posted in Purchases,
services, miscellaneous costs - have not been restated. Nevertheless, the divergent accounting method
does not impact majorly on the comparability between the two periods as far as the main interim
performance indicators are concerned.

The Group also took advantage of the exemptions laid down in the principle applicable to leases with a
duration of 12 months or less as at the transition date (short-term leases - IFRS 16:5 (a)) and leases on
low-value assets (low-value assets - IFRS 16:5 (b)). The adoption of IFRS 16 did not affect the
recognition of financial liabilities and related rights of use for these leases, with lease payments
continuing to be recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the duration of the
lease.

The tables below show the effects of adopting IFRS 16 and the reconciliation of operating lease
commitments and lease liabilities as at the transition date.

Right-of-use assets and financial liabilities for leases at 1 January 2019

Asset FTA
Right of use (Property) 131,5
Right of use (Company vehicles) 9.1

Total right of use 140,6

Liabilities and shareholders' equity FTA
Lease financial liabilities (non current) 122,6
Lease financial liabilities (current) 18,0

Total lease finacial liabilities 140,6
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Reconciliation of operating lease commitments at 31

2019.

Commitments for leases as of 31.12.2018

Out of scope contracts

Other changes (renewal hypothesis)

Financial liability nominal value

Discounting effect

Financial liability as of 01.01.2019

December 2018 and lease liabilities at 1 January

94,3

(11,3)
68,5

151,5

(10,9

140,6

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Hedge Accounting

On 22 November 2016, the European Union endorsed the final version of IFRS 9, replacing IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement”. The new standard introduces a new accounting
framework for the classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment of financial

assets and hedge accounting.

The Group adopted this principle commencing the 2018 financial year, applying it to the classification
and measurements of financial assets and liabilities and the impairment of financial assets. On 1
January 2019, the Group adopted IFRS 9 for its hedge accounting activities.

Hedge Accounting

IFRS 9 introduces greater flexibility by expanding the types of instruments eligible for hedge accounting.
Moreover, the effectiveness test has been replaced by an "economic relationship" rule, and there is no
longer a requirement for hedge effectiveness to be determined retrospectively. Greater disclosure has
been introduced concerning the risk management activities carried out by the Group. Under IAS 39, fair
value changes in the time value of options (the non-designated part) were immediately recognised in
profit (loss) for the year; with the introduction of IFRS 9, changes in the time value of options over the
hedged item are recognised elsewhere in comprehensive income and are accumulated in the hedge
reserve in equity. Applying this new principle has had no significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Pursuant to IFRS 9, a debt instrument may be measured at amortised cost or at fair value in the
statement of comprehensive income, on condition that contractual cash flows are "solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding" (the SPPI test) and the instrument is
classified in the appropriate business model. The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset
meets the SPPI test regardless of the event or circumstance causing early termination of the contract
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and regardless of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for early termination of the
contract. The amendments must be applied retrospectively and have been effective from 1 January
2019. These amendments have no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (published on 7 June 2017)

This document addresses the matter of uncertainties regarding the tax treatment to be adopted for
income tax. In particular, this interpretation requires companies to analyse uncertain tax treatments
(individually or altogether, depending on their characteristics), always on the assumption that the tax
authority will examine the tax position in question, in full knowledge of all relevant information. If the
company considers it unlikely that the tax authority would accept the tax treatment applied, the effect
of this uncertainty on how its current and deferred income tax will be measured must be reflected by the
company. In addition, the document does not contain any new disclosure requirement, but emphasises
that the entity must establish whether it is necessary to provide information regarding the
considerations made by management concerning the uncertainty in tax accounting, in accordance with
IAS 1. The new interpretation had been applicable since 1 January 2019 and has had no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to IAS 19 (not yet endorsed by EFRAG) establish the accounting treatment in the case
of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement during the reporting period. The amendments specify
that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the reporting period, an entity
must:

- Determine the current service cost, for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that

event.

- Determine the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, using: (i) the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after that event; and (ii) the discount rate used to remeasure that net
defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in the
statement of income. Subsequently, after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, the entity
quantifies the effect of the asset ceiling. Any change, with the exception of changes already accounted
for in net interest, must be recognised in other components of the statement of comprehensive income.
The amendments applies to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that occur in annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments (not yet endorsed by EFRAG) state that an entity should adopt IFRS 9 for long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture, for which the equity method is not adopted, but which are
substantially part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This
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clarification is significant because it implies that the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 should be used
for such long-term interests. The amendments also clarify that an entity, in adopting IFRS 9, does not
have to consider any losses of the associate or joint venture or impairment losses of the investment,
identified as adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture arising from the
adoption of IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments must be applied
retrospectively and are effective beginning on 1 January 2019. The introduction of this new
amendment has had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

On 12 December 2017, the IASB published the document "Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle" which incorporates the amendments to some standards as part of the annual improvement
process. The main amendments concern:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: the amendment clarifies that when an
entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it must remeasure the interest previously
held in that business. This process is not, however, provided for in the event of obtaining joint control.

IAS 12 Income Taxes: the amendment clarifies that all tax effects related to dividends (including
payments on financial instruments classified within equity) should be accounted for in a manner
consistent with the transaction that generated those profits (income statement, OCl or equity).

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: the amendment clarifies that in the case of loans that remain in place even
after the qualifying asset is ready for use or sale, these become part of the total loans used to calculate
the borrowing costs. The amendments took force in 1 January 2019 and had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Statement Tables and Formats

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position has been prepared according to the convention of
presenting current and non-current assets and liabilities under separate classifications. An asset is
defined as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- itis expected to be realised, or intended to be sold or consumed, in its normal operating cycle; or
- itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
- itis due to be realised within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or

- it is cash or a cash equivalent, unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All assets other than those meeting one of the criteria set out above are classed as non-current.
A liability is defined as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- itis expected to be settled in its normal operating cycle; or

- itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- itis due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or

- the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are classified as non-current assets (liabilities).

The Income Statement has been prepared by allocating costs based on their type, using the same
methodology as the Group's internal reporting and in line with the prevailing international practices in
the industry. Income is presented as Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) and Earnings Before Tax
(EBT). EBIT is the difference between net revenues and operating costs (the latter of which include non-
monetary costs relating to amortisation, depreciation and write-downs of current and non-current
assets, net of any write-backs).

To enable the actual performance of ordinary operations to be more accurately measured, the EBIT
section may contain cost and revenue items resulting from events or operations that are considered
non-recurring due to their nature or size. These transactions may fall under the definition of significant
non-recurring transactions and events, as defined in Consob Communication No. 6064293 of 28 July
2006, as opposed to the definition of "atypical and/or unusual transactions" contained in the same
Consob Communication of 28 July 2006, according to which atypical and/or unusual transactions are
transactions that, due to their significance or importance, the nature of the counterparties, the subject-
matter of the transaction, the method of calculating the transfer price, and the timing of the event (e.g.
proximity to the financial year end), can give rise to doubts concerning the correctness or completeness
of the information in the financial statements, conflicts of interest, the safeguarding of the Company's
assets, or the protection of minority shareholder interests.

The Comprehensive Income Statement shows the cost and revenue items, after tax, which are posted
directly to shareholders’ equity reserves as required or permitted by the various International
Accounting Standards. These items are further divided into those that may be reclassified to the income
statement in the future and those that cannot be reclassified. Each type of significant shareholders'
equity reserve shown in the statement is accompanied by a reference to the explanatory notes below,
which contain related information and breakdowns, and changes on the previous financial year.
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The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method, whereby EBIT is adjusted to
take into account non-cash revenue, deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments, and income or expense items associated with investing or financing cash flows. Investments
in television broadcasting rights, as well as changes in advances paid for future purchases of rights, are
included within investment activities. Changes in payables to suppliers for investments are included
within cash flows from investment activities. Similarly, receipts and payments from the hedging of cash
flows for foreign currency payments of television broadcasting rights are given the same classification
as the item hedged, falling under cash flow from investments activities. Income and expenses relating
to medium/long-term financing transactions and related hedges, as well as dividends paid, are included
within financial activities.

The Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity presents the changes that have taken place in the
Shareholders’ Equity items as a result of the following:

= allocation of the profit of the Group Parent and subsidiaries for the period to minority shareholders.
=  preakdown of comprehensive income/loss.

= amounts relating to transactions with shareholders.

= purchases and sales of treasury shares.

= impact from any changes to accounting standards.

To meet the requirements of Consob Resolution No. 15519 of 27 July 2006 entitled “Provisions
regarding the structure of financial statements”, these Financial Statements include specific
consolidated statements of income and financial position, alongside the obligatory statements, showing
significant amounts of related-party positions or transactions separately from the related items.

Principles and Scope of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of Mediaset S.p.A. and of the
Italian and foreign companies over which Mediaset S.p.A. is entitled to exercise direct or indirect
control, meaning that the investor is able to influence its returns (exposure or rights to variable returns)
by exercising power, meaning that it is able to direct the relevant activities of the controlled entity - i.e.
the activities that significantly affect the investee's returns.

Generally, the majority of the voting rights entails control. In support of this presumption and when the
Group holds less than a majority of the voting rights (or similar rights), the Group considers other
relevant facts and circumstances to determine whether it controls the investee, including:

= contractual agreements with other holders of voting rights.

= rights arising from contractual agreements.

= voting rights and potential voting rights held by the Group.

The assets and liabilities, and the expenses and income of the subsidiary companies are consolidated on

a line-by-line basis, meaning that they are included in their entirety in the consolidated financial
statements. The carrying amount of these equity investments is offset against the corresponding
portion of equity of the investee companies, giving each individual asset and liability item its current
value at the date of acquisition of control (Purchase Method), or when the Full Goodwill Method is
applied (an option that can be exercised separately for each individual business combination) by also
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recognising the amount of goodwill not belonging to the Group with an offsetting entry of the minority
interest in equity. Any remaining difference, if positive, is recorded under the non-current asset item
"Goodwill" and, if negative, is recognised as income in profit and loss.

In the case of acquisitions of equity investments by a common holding company (business combination
under common control), which are excluded from the scope of obligatory application of IFRS 3, and in
the absence of specific IAS/IFRS standards or interpretations for these types of operations, the principle
of pooling of interests is generally considered to apply, taking into account the provisions of IAS 8.
According to that principle, the assets and liabilities must be transferred to the acquirer's financial
statements for the amounts shown in the consolidated financial statements as at the date of the
transfer of the common entity controlling the parties that carry out the business combination, with any
difference between the consideration paid for the equity investment and the net book value of the
assets recorded recognised in the relevant Group shareholders' equity reserve.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all receivables, payables, costs and revenues
between consolidated companies, as well as unrealised profits on intercompany operations, have been
removed.

The amounts of shareholders’ equity and income for the period of the consolidated companies belonging
to minority shareholders are identified and shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and the Consolidated Statement of Income.

In the event of a loss of control, the difference between the fair value of consideration received and the
carrying amount of consolidated net assets is recognised in profit and loss. If the set of activities
discontinued constitutes a material business (a business sector or a business unit), this difference is
posted to Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations., together with the profit or loss generated by
the discontinued activities up until the date of deconsolidation. Changes resulting from purchases or
sales of minority interests held in subsidiary companies are treated as transactions with shareholders,
as long as they do not result in a loss of control. Consequently, the difference between the fair value of
the consideration paid or received for these transactions and the adjustment made to minority interests
is recognised under Reserves for minority transactions (including under “Other Reserves™) of the
shareholders’ equity of the holding company. Likewise, in accordance with IAS 32, transaction costs
must also be recognised in shareholders' equity.

The assets and liabilities of foreign companies that fall within the scope of consolidation and that

originate in currencies other than the Euro, including goodwill and fair value adjustments of the assets
and liabilities identified at the time of allocation of the price paid in a business combination, are
translated using the spot exchange rates at the financial statement reporting date; income and costs, on
the other hand, are translated at the average exchange rate for the year. Any translation differences
that arise from applying these methods are recognised under a special shareholders’ equity reserve until

the equity investment is sold.

The accounting balances of associates and of companies subject to joint control are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method, as described in the Equity Investments item
below.

Pursuant to IAS 28, an associate is a company in which the Group is able to exert significant influence,
but not control or joint control, by participating in decisions regarding the financial and operational
policies of the investee.

On the other hand, with reference to IFRS 11, a joint venture is an arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control have rights to the net assets of the arrangement (shareholders' equity).

137



e

Joint control is defined as the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when the significant decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of all parties
sharing control.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant, machinery, equipment, buildings and land are recognised at purchase, production or transfer cost,
including any transaction costs, any dismantling costs and direct costs necessary to make the asset
available for use. These fixed assets, with the exception of land, which is not subject to depreciation, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis in each financial year using depreciation rates set according to the
remaining useful life of the assets.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the cost of the assets, net of any residual values
(where significant), according to their estimated useful lives, with the following rates applied:

Tipe of fixed asset Finacial statement category Amortisation rate

Buildings Land and building 2% -3%

Plant and equipment Plant and equipment 10%- 20%
Technical and commercial

Constructions and equipment equipment 5%-16%

Office furniture and machines Other tangible assets 8% - 20%

Motor vehicles and other means of
transport Other tangible assets 10% - 25%

The recoverable amount of the above is calculated based on the criteria laid down in IAS 36, described

in the "Impairment of assets” section below.

Ordinary maintenance costs are recognised in full in profit and loss. Incremental maintenance costs are

allocated to each asset and depreciated over its remaining useful life.

Leasehold improvements are allocated to each class of assets and depreciated at the residual life of the

lease contract or the residual useful life of the type of asset improved, whichever is lower.

Whenever individual components of a complex tangible fixed asset have different useful lives, they are
recognised separately in order to be depreciated according to their individual useful lives (component
approach).

In particular, according to this principle, the value of land and of the buildings on it are kept separate,

and only the buildings are depreciated.

Gains and losses resulting from sales or disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the
sale revenue and the net book value of the asset, and are posted to the income statement under Other
revenues and income and Other operating costs, respectively.

Leased-in assets

Assets acquired under financial leasing contracts are posted under intangible fixed assets in an item

entitled "Rights of use" at the value of the financial liability, calculated based on the current value of
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future payments, in turn discounted at the incremental borrowing rate for each contract. The payable is
progressively reduced according to the repayment schedule for the amounts of principal included in the
contractual instalments. The interest amount, on the other hand, is recognised in the income statement
under financial expenses. The value of the asset recognised under tangible fixed assets is depreciated
on a straight-line basis according to the expiry date of the lease agreement, while also taking into
account the likelihood of renewal of the agreement where an enforceable renewal option exists.

Fees for leasing contracts with a duration of 12 months or less and for contracts with a low-value
underlying asset are posted on a straight-line basis according to the duration of the contract.

Television and movie rights

Television broadcasting rights are amortised on a straight-line basis, starting from the time when the
asset is available for use and throughout the period of its expected usefulness. The recoverable amount
of the above is calculated based on the criteria laid down in IAS 36, described in the "Impairment of
assets" section below.

This standard also applies to television broadcasting rights for which the amortisation method is
required to provide a reasonable and reliable reflection of the relationship between the various
broadcasting opportunities available, the number of screenings permitted by contract and their actual
broadcast. Based on the respective business models, straight-line amortisation is generally applied for
the Italian television library, whereas reducing balance amortisation is used for the Spanish television
library. This different accounting reflects the different contractual conditions and the consequent
methods of exploitation of the two main countries in which the Group operates.

When, irrespective of the amortisation already posted, all showings made available under the related
television broadcasting rights contracts have been completed, the residual value is expensed in full.

The rights for sporting events to be transmitted in Pay or Pay Per View mode by DTT technology are
amortised entirely (100%) when the event is broadcast.

Rights to sports, news and entertainment programmes are amortised entirely (100%) in the year when
the right commences. Rights to long-running TV drama series are 70% amortised during the first twelve
months after their availability date, with the remaining 30% amortised during the following twelve
months.

Rights available for multiple means of use, to be utilised in distribution activities, are amortised
according to international accounting best practice based on the ratio between the actual revenues
achieved and the estimated total overall revenues from use of the right. This estimate is periodically
revised to determine the amortisation to be recognised during the year.

Goodwill

Goodwill and the other non-current assets with indefinite useful lives or not available for use are
not systematically amortised, but are subject to impairment testing, at least yearly, carried out at the
level of each Cash Generating Unit, or groups of Cash Generating Units to which Management allocates
goodwill.

Any write-downs of goodwill cannot be subsequently written back.

The goodwill resulting from the acquisition of control of an equity investment or of a business unit is the

excess of the acquisition cost, understood as being the consideration transferred in the business
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combination, plus the fair value of any equity investment that was previously owned in the acquired
enterprise, over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired entity at the date of acquisition.

For the purposes of calculating goodwill, the consideration transferred in the business combination is
calculated as the sum of the fair values of the assets transferred and the liabilities assumed by the
Group at the date of acquisition and of the equity instruments issued in exchange for the control of the
acquired entity, also including the fair value of any contingent considerations subject to conditions
established in the acquisition agreement.

Any goodwill adjustments may be recognised in the measurement period (which cannot be more than
one year from the date of acquisition) that are due to either subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent considerations or to the calculation of the current value of the assets and liabilities acquired,
if recognised only provisionally at the date of acquisition and when these changes are calculated as
adjustments based on additional information regarding facts and circumstances existing at the date of
the combination.

Any subsequent differences compared to the initial estimate of the fair value of liabilities for contingent
considerations are recognised in the income statement, unless they derive from additional information
existing at the acquisition date (in which case they can be adjusted within 12 months from the
acquisition date). Likewise, any rights to receive back some parts of the consideration paid if certain
conditions arise must be classified as assets by the acquirer.

The transaction costs for business combinations are recognised in the accounting period when they
are incurred, with the exception of those incurred for issuances of debt securities or shares that must be
recognised in accordance with IAS 32 and IFRS 9.

In the case of acquisition of controlling interests of less than 100%, the goodwill and the
corresponding minority interest in the goodwill can be calculated at the acquisition date either with
respect to the percentage control acquired (partial goodwill) or by measuring the fair value of the
minority interests in equity (full goodwill method).

The measurement method can be chosen from time to time for each transaction.

For step acquisitions of controlling interests the acquirer must recalculate the fair value of the
previously held interest, up till that time, recognised, depending on the case, in accordance with IFRS 9 -
Financial Instruments, in accordance with IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures or in
accordance with IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements, as if it had been sold and reacquired at the date when
control was acquired, recognising any gains or losses resulting from that measurement in the income
statement. In addition, in these circumstances any amount previously recognised in shareholders’
equity as Other comprehensive income and losses must be reclassified to the income statement, except
where the investment is designated as a financial asset measured at FVOCI without recycling to profit
and loss.

In the case of disposal of controlling interests, the remaining amount of goodwill attributable to the
interests is included in the calculation of the gain or loss from disposal.

The goodwill recognised as a result of business combinations taking place before 1 January 2010 has
been treated in accordance with the criteria laid down in the previous version of IFRS 3, which required:

- for acquisition of controlling interests of less than 100%, calculation of goodwill based on the
proportional amount of the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired.
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- for step acquisitions of controlling interests, the calculation of goodwill as the sum of the fair values
generated separately with each transaction.

- the inclusion of transaction costs in the amount of the acquisition cost.

- the recognition of contingent considerations at the acquisition date only if their payment was
considered probable and their amount could be reliably determined.

Other Intangible Assets

Intangible fixed assets are assets without an identifiable physically form, which are controlled by the
company and able to generate future economic benefits. They also include goodwill when acquired
against consideration.

These assets are recorded at purchase or production cost, including transaction costs, according to the
criteria described above for tangible fixed assets.

For purchased intangible assets whose availability for use and related payments are deferred beyond
ordinary periods, the purchase value and the related payable are discounted by recognising the financial
expenses implicit in the original price.

Internally generated intangible assets, where relating to research costs, are recognised in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred. Development costs, which mainly relate to
software, are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (three
years on average), provided they can be identified, that their cost can be reliably calculated, and that
the asset is likely to generate future economic benefits.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis, starting from the time
when the asset is available for use and throughout the period of its expected usefulness. The
recoverable value of such assets is assessed according to the criteria established in IAS 36, as described
in the Impairment of assets section below.

Costs relating to rights of use to television frequencies, to be used for setting up digital terrestrial
networks acquired from third parties in accordance with applicable legislation, are amortised on a
straight-line basis according to the expected duration of their use, beginning the moment the service is
activated and ending 30 June 2032, based on the validity period of the definitive assignment order of
right of use in Italy dated 28 June 2012.

The television broadcasting license to the “Cuatro multiplex" held by Mediaset Espafia is considered an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life; accordingly, it is not systematically amortised, but is
subject to impairment testing, at least every year.

As of 1 January 2016, rights of use to radio frequencies are amortised on a straight-line basis over a
period of 25 years. The useful life of these rights was estimated as part of the evaluation processes for
business combinations concerning the Group’s radio broadcasting operations.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of tangible and intangible fixed assets are periodically reviewed in accordance
with 1AS 36, which requires the assessment of the existence of any losses in value, where indicators
suggest that impairment may exist. In the case of goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and assets not available for use, impairment testing is carried out at least yearly, normally at the time of
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the preparation of the annual financial statements, but also at any time when there is an indication of
possible impairment.

The recoverability of the carrying amounts is assessed by comparing them to the higher of their value in
use in their current condition or the fair value of the assets (the price that would be received from their
sale) less disposal costs.

Value in use is measured by discounting the future cash flows expected from the use of the individual
asset or the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs and from its disposal at the end of its useful
life.

The cash generating units are identified, in line with the organisational and business structures of the
Group, as homogeneous aggregations that generate autonomous incoming cash flows from the
continuous use of the assets attributable to them.

Fair value (less costs to sell) is measured in accordance with IFRS 13 (Fair value measurement) by
guantifying the price that would be received to sell the asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, taking into account any restrictions on the sale
or use of the asset that such market participants would take into consideration.

In the case of impairment, the cost is charged to the income statement, first by reducing goodwill and
then recognising any excess amounts, proportionally to the value of the other assets of the CGU
concerned. With the exception of goodwill and assets with indefinite useful lives, impairment can be
reversed for other assets when the conditions that resulted in the impairment write-down have changed.
In such case, the carrying amount of the asset can be increased within the limits of the new estimated
recoverable amount, but no more than the value that would have been calculated if there had been no

previous write-downs.

Equity investments in associates and joint ventures

These equity investments are recognised at equity in the consolidated financial statements. At the time
of acquisition, the difference between the cost of the equity investment, including any transaction costs,
and the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and identifiable contingent
liabilities of the investee is accounted for according to IFRS 3, with the recognition of goodwill if it is
positive (included in the carrying amount of the equity investment) or of income in the consolidated
income statement if it is negative.

The carrying amounts of these equity investments are adjusted after initial recognition, based on the
pro-rata changes in the equity of the investee appearing in accounting statements prepared by those

companies, available at the time of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

When there are losses attributable to the Group that are higher than the carrying amount of the equity
investment, the carrying amount is written off and appropriate provisions or liabilities are recognised
for the amount of any additional losses, but only if the investor is committed to fulfilling legal or implicit
obligations towards the investee or, in any case, to cover its losses. If no further losses are identified
and the investee subsequently realises gains, the investor will only recognise the amount of the gains
attributable to it after these have offset the losses not recognised.

After measurement at equity, the carrying amount of these equity investments, also including any
goodwill, if the conditions established by IAS 36 apply, must be tested for impairment.
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In the case of impairment write-downs the related cost is charged to the income statement. The original

value can be reinstated in the following financial years if the conditions for the write-down no longer
apply.

Other non-current financial assets

Equity investments other than investments in associates or joint ventures are posted to the “other
financial assets” item in non-current assets, are measured pursuant to IFRS 9 and are designated to the
category of financial assets measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised through other
comprehensive income without recycling to profit and loss

The risk resulting from any losses exceeding the shareholders’ equity value is recognised in a specific
risk provision to the extent that the investor is committed to fulfilling legal or implicit obligations
towards the investee or, in any case, to cover its losses.

Dividends relating to equity investments are recognised in profit and loss.

This category also includes non-controlling interests acquired by the Group within “Ad4Ventures", a
venture capital with the aim of making medium-term non-speculative investments in new ltalian
businesses with high growth potential, operating in the technology and digital field. The fair value of
these investments can be determined based on special valuation models, by taking account of the prices
of recent transactions on the capital of those companies or by referring to market valuation in the event

of investments in listed companies.

Financial receivables posted under this item are recognised at their amortised cost, using the actual
interest rate method.

Non-current assets available for sale

Non-current assets available for sale are measured at the lower of their previous net book value and
their market value minus cost of sales. Non-current assets are classified as available for sale when their
carrying amount is expected to be recovered by means of a sale rather than through their use in
company operations. This condition is only satisfied when the sale is considered highly likely and the
asset is available for immediate sale in its current condition. For this purpose, Management must be
committed to the sale, which must take place within 12 months from the date of classification of the

item.

Current assets
Inventories

The inventories of raw materials, semi-finished and finished products are measured at the acquisition or
production cost, including transaction charges (FIFO method), or their estimated net realisable value
based on market conditions, whichever is lower. Finished products relating to teleshopping activities
are measured at weighted average cost. Inventories also include television broadcasting rights acquired
for use periods of less than 12 months and the costs of already completed television productions, as
these rights are intended to be enjoyed in full on their first broadcast. These inventories are stated at

actual cost of purchase or production.

Trade receivables

143



e

Receivables are posted at their fair value, which — except where customers have been granted
significantly extended payment terms — is the same as the value calculated using the amortised cost
method. Pursuant to IFRS 9, trade receivables are classified within the categories provided for in the
"held to collect” or "hold to collect and sell” business models. Their value at year-end is adjusted to their
estimated realisable value and written down in the event of impairment, with expected credit loss
measured using a time horizon of 12 months in the absence of any evidence of a significant increase in
credit risk. Receivables originating in non-EMU currencies are measured at the year-end spot rates
issued by the European Central Bank.

The recognition of the sale of receivables is subject to the requirements laid down by IFRS 9 regarding
the derecognition of financial assets. As a result, all receivables sold to factoring companies, with or
without recourse, if the latter include clauses that entail maintaining a significant exposure to the
performance of the cash flows from the receivables sold, remain in the financial statements, even if they
have been legally sold, with a corresponding recognition of a financial liability for the same amount.
Factoring fees are classified under the item "Purchases, services, miscellaneous costs”.

Current financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the financial statements based on their transaction date and they are
initially measured at cost, including the expenses directly connected with their acquisition.

At subsequent reporting dates, the financial assets to be held until maturity are recognised at amortised
cost, according to the actual interest rate method, net of write-downs made to reflect their impairment.

Financial assets not classed with the categories provided for in the “hold to collect” or "hold to collect
and sell” business models are measured at fair value in each accounting period with their impacts
recognised in profit and loss under the item “Financial (Expenses)/Income" or to a specific shareholders’
equity reserve and until they are realised or have suffered an impairment (this reserve is classified

under “Valuation reserve").
The fair value of securities listed on an active market is based on market prices at the reporting date.

The fair value of securities that are not listed on an active market and of trading derivatives is calculated
by using the measurement models and techniques most widely adopted in the market, or by using the

price supplied by several independent counterparts.

Cash and cash equivalents

This item includes petty cash, bank current accounts and deposits that are repayable on demand and
other short-term and highly liquid financial investments that are readily convertible into cash, with an

insignificant risk of a change in value.

Treasury Shares

Treasury shares are recognised at cost and recorded as a reduction of shareholders' equity and all the
gains and losses resulting from their trading are allocated to a specific shareholders' equity reserve

(classified under “Other Reserves").

Employee benefits
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Post-employment benefit plans

The Employee Leaving Indemnity (ELI), which is obligatory for Italian companies pursuant to article
2120 of the ltalian Civil Code, is a type of deferred remuneration and is related to the length of the
working lives of the employees and the remuneration received.

As a result of the Supplementary Pension Reform, amounts of ELI accrued up to 31 December 2006 will
continue to remain within the company as a defined benefit plan (with the obligation of actuarial
valuation of the accrued benefits). Amounts accruing from 1 January 2007 (except for employees in
companies with less than 50 employees), according to the choice made by the employees, are either
allocated to supplementary pension funds or transferred by the Company to the treasury fund managed
by the Italian National Social Security Institute (INPS) and, from the time when the employees make
their choice, shall constitute defined contribution plans no longer subject to actuarial valuation.

For the benefits subject to actuarial valuation, the ELI liability must be calculated by projecting forward
the already accrued amount up to the future date of dissolution of the employment relationship and
then discounting the amount to its present value, at the reporting date, using the actuarial “Projected
Unit Credit Method"”. The discount rate used to determine the liability is the “Composite"” interest rate
curve for securities issued by corporate issuers with an AA rating.

From an accounting perspective, the actuarial valuation results in recognition in profit and loss under
the item “Financial Expenses/Income”, which represents the theoretical charge that the Company would
incur if it requested a market loan for the amount of the ELI, and a current service cost under the item
“Personnel expenses”, which establishes the amount of the benefits accrued by the employees during
the financial year, but only for companies of the Group with less than 50 employees that, consequently,
have not transferred the amounts accrued from 1 January 2007 to supplementary pension schemes.
The actuarial gains and losses that reflect the impacts from changes in the actuarial assumptions used
are recognised directly in shareholders' equity without ever going through profit and loss and they are
shown in the comprehensive income statement.

Share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS 2, the Group classifies stock option plans and medium/long-term incentive plans
as "share-based payments". Those that are "equity-settled", i.e. involving the physical delivery of the
shares, are measured at the fair value at the grant date of the option rights (which is calculated on the
basis of the share price) assigned and recognised as a personnel expense to be spread evenly over the
vesting period of the rights, with a corresponding reserve booked to shareholders' equity. This
allocation is carried out based on the estimate of the rights that will actually accrue to the person
entitled, in consideration of their vesting conditions not based on the market value of the rights.

At the end of the exercise period the related shareholders’ equity reserve is reclassified under reserves
available for use.

Payables and other current liabilities

Payables and other current liabilities are recorded at their nominal amount, which is usually close to
their amortised cost; those originating in non-EMU currencies are measured at the year-end spot rates

issued by the European Central Bank.

Provisions for risk and charges
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Provisions for risks and charges are costs and charges whose existence is either certain or probable,
whose amount or date of occurrence cannot be determined as at the reporting date. These provisions
have been made only when there is a current obligation, resulting from past events, that can be of a
legal or contractual nature, or arising from declarations or behaviour by the Company that create valid
expectations in the persons concerned (implicit obligations). The provisions are recorded at the value
that represents the best possible estimate of the amount that the enterprise would have to pay in order
to settle its obligation. When they are significant, and the payment dates can be reliably estimated, the
provisions are recognised at present values with the charges resulting from the passage of time
recognised in profit and loss under the item “Financial (Expenses)/Income”.

Payables to banks and other financial liabilities (current and non-current)

Financial payables are recognised at amortised cost, using the actual interest rate method.

Financial derivatives and hedge accounting
The Mediaset Group is exposed to financial risks linked to:

e Exchange rate fluctuations, primarily in relation to the acquisition of television broadcasting
rights in currencies other than the Euro and secondarily in relation to merchandise acquisitions;
e Interest rate fluctuations for long-term variable-rate loans;
e  Price fluctuations for equity instruments.
As mentioned on the section on Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations applied from 1

January 2019, the hedge accounting provisions in IFRS 9 became applicable at the start of the year.

Exchange rate hedging

The Group uses financial derivatives - mainly currency futures - to hedge risks arising from foreign
currency fluctuations both for highly probable future commitments and for payables relating to

purchases already made.

For the Mediaset Group, the exchange risk is linked to the possibility of the currency rates changing
from the moment the acquisition of assets in a foreign currency has become highly probable (authorised
purchase negotiations over broadcasting rights) to the moment when those assets are recorded in the
financial statements; therefore, the hedging goal is to set the exchange rate of the price in euro at the
approval date of the transaction (hedge accounting as set out in the IAS/IFRS). The hedging of
merchandise purchase orders is treated the same way as, like with the case above, the hedging goal is
to set the equivalent price of the merchandise in euro at the time the order was issued. Hedge
accounting is therefore maintained, over all payables, until the payables are settled. In this case, the
exchange rate hedging goal is to set the equivalent euro price of the non-euro denominated debt so as
to eliminate the effects of exchange rate fluctuations and pre-determine the settlement value of the
non-euro denominated payables.

Derivatives are classified under current financial assets and liabilities, and are recognised at fair value.

Fair value of the currency futures contracts is calculated as the discounting to present value of the
difference between the notional amount measured at the forward contract rate and the notional amount

measured at the fair forward rate (the end exchange rate calculated at the reporting date).
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Fair value is adjusted to take account of the creditworthiness of the counterparty risk in the event of
positive fair value and of the creditworthiness of Mediaset S.p.A. and Mediaset Espafia S.A. in the event
of negative fair value. Lastly, please note that the adjustment for creditworthiness is only calculated for
derivatives with maturity more than 4 months from the measurement date.

For the purposes of hedge accounting, Mediaset designates hedging instruments as those related to the
hedging of currency exposures linked primarily to commitments for future purchases of television
broadcasting rights to be made in foreign currency (forecast transactions), for which the relationship
between the derivative and the hedged item, as well as the high level of probability/effectiveness
connected to the actual occurrence of the hedged event is formally